
 Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 846621 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Pensions Committee 
 
Wednesday, 13 December 2023, 10.00 am 
Lakeview Room, County Hall, Worcester 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 
WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

• Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  
• Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 
• Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 
• Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 
• Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 
 

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

• Register it within 28 days and  
• Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  

- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 
• No need to register them but 
• You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 

  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 

 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 
• affects your pecuniary interests OR  

relates to a planning or regulatory matter 
• AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
DON'T FORGET 

• If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

• Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

• Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

•  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 

 
 



 

Agenda produced and published by Hazel Best, Assistant Director for Legal and Governance County Hall, 
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Simon Lewis, Committee Officer on 01905 
846621, slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
 
Date of Issue: Monday, 4 December 2023 

 
 
Pensions Committee 
Wednesday, 13 December 2023, 10.00 am, Lakeview Room, 
County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:  Cllr Elizabeth Eyre (Chairman), Cllr Adrian Hardman, Cllr Karen Hanks, 

Cllr Luke Mallett and Cllr Scott Richardson Brown 
 
Co-opted Members 
 
Shane Flynn                 Employer Side Representative 
Cllr Peter Stoddart        Herefordshire Council 
Vacancy                        Employee Side Representative 
 

Agenda 
 
Item No Subject Page No 

  
1  Apologies/Named Substitutes 

 
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 
3  Public Participation 

Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant 
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by e-mail indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case 12 December 2023). 
Further details are available on the Council’s website. Enquiries can be 
made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in this agenda 
and on the website. 

 

 
4  Confirmation of Minutes 

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2023 
(previously circulated) 

 

 
5  Pension Board and Pension Sub-Committee Minutes 

 
1 - 2 

 
6  Pension Fund Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 
3 - 110 

 
7  Business Plan 

 
111 - 122 

 
8  Governance Update 

 
123 - 132 

 
9  Risk Register 

 
133 - 148 

 
10  Training update 149 - 154 



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

 

  
11  Forward Plan 

 
155 - 158 

 
12  Exclusion of Public and Press 

The Committee will be asked to exclude the public and press from the 
meeting for Agenda items 13 and 14 as it is likely that exempt 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the local authority holding that information) will be 
disclosed. 

 

 
13  Pension Investment Update 

 
159 - 300 

 
14  LGPS Central Update 

 
301 - 410 

 



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 
 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
PENSION BOARD AND PENSION INVESTMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE MINUTES  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. The Committee is asked to note the Minutes of the Pension Investment Sub-

Committee and Pension Board. 
 

2. As set out in the Terms of Reference of the Pension Investment Sub Committee 
(PISC), all decisions taken and recommendations will be reported back to the next 
available ordinary meeting of the Pensions Committee in the form of the minutes of the 
PISC. A link to its Minutes on the Council’s web site is set out below. 
 
3. The Pensions Board has requested that their deliberations be reported to the 
Committee and a link to its Minutes on the Council’s web site is also set out below.  

 
4. The relevant Minute for this meeting relates to the PISC meeting on 30 November 
2023 and the Pension Board meeting on 17 November 2023. Please note that the 
Pension Board meeting was inquorate and was unable to take any decisions. 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Links to the Pensions Investment Sub-Committee and Pension Board Minutes can be 
found below: 
Agenda for Pension Board on Friday, 17th November, 2023, 10.00 am - Worcestershire 
County Council (moderngov.co.uk) 
Agenda for Pension Investment Sub-Committee on Thursday, 30th November, 2023, 
10.00 am - Worcestershire County Council (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
Contact Points 
 
Simon Lewis, Committee Officer 
Tel: 01905 846621 
Email: slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) there are no background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report. 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 5

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=395&MId=5911&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=395&MId=5911&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=532&MId=5900&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=532&MId=5900&Ver=4
mailto:slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 
 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2023  
 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
1. The Committee is asked to note and comment on the Fund’s Annual Report for 

the year ended 31 March 2023 as set out in the attached Appendix. 
  

Background 
 

2. The Council and the Fund are required to prepare annual statement of accounts and 
to arrange for them to be audited and reported in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 2022/23 Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The statement of accounts presents the overall 
financial position of the Fund, reflecting its net asset position.  
 
3. The statutory publication deadline for the Fund’s annual report is 31 December 
2023. Pension officers continue to work with the Fund’s external auditors towards the 
issue of an audit opinion. It is expected that the Fund will successfully publish its annual 
report before the statutory deadline. 
 
4. Due to the change in timing of the statutory deadline for submission of unaudited 
financial statements, the Pensions Committee received a report on the unaudited 
statutory accounts for 2022/23 at the 28 June 2023 meeting detailing some of the key 
highlights. Despite a lengthy process the audit is now nearing its completion. The audit 
findings report is due to go to the Audit & Governance Committee on 1 December 2023 as 
part of the Worcestershire County Council financial statements approval process.  
 
2023 annual report 
5. The annual report is a key communications channel between the Fund and a wide 
variety of stakeholders. The report contains information relating to the Fund’s audited 
financial statements, investments, administration, governance, valuations, accounts, and 
membership. The attached appendix is the current proposed 2023 annual report. 
 
6. The report’s index is: 

 
a) Chairman’s Foreword; 
b) Management & Financial Information; 
c) Risk Management; 
d) Financial Performance; 
e) Administration Report; 
f) Investment Policy & Performance; 
g) Governance Arrangements; 

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 6

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135


 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

h) Governance Compliance Statement; 
i) Local Pension Board Annual Report 2022 / 2023; 
j) Audited Statement of Accounts 2022 / 2023; 
k) Appendix A Funding Strategy Statement; 
l) Appendix B Pension Administration Strategy; and 
m) Appendix C Investment Strategy Statement. 

 
7. The Chairman’s Foreword to the report provides the most notable achievements 
during the 2022 /2023 financial year and some extracts from the foreword are listed: 
 

a) Successfully completing the (as at 31 March) 2022 actuarial valuation at which 
point we were 101% funded on a solvency basis. I think that’s quite an 
achievement considering that on 31 March 2019 the Fund was 90% funded and 
the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 included not only COVID but the 
Russian invasion of Ukraine. Incidentally, the position for our two largest 
employers who have a 45% share of the Fund’s assets between them was that 
Worcestershire County Council was 107% funded and Herefordshire County 
Council was 98% funded; 

b) Retaining our signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code 2020; 
c) Making significant progress on restructuring our pensions administration 

department whilst continuing to have no backlogs, delivering a business-as-
usual service, and meeting our KPI’s; 

d) As part of the 2022 actuarial valuation producing updated versions of our 
Funding Strategy Statement and our All About our Investment Pots guidance 
note, and also reviewing our Making a Formal Representation for an Exit Credit 
Payment guidance note; 

e) Reviewing (and producing updated versions of) our key policy documents: 
Investment Strategy Statement, Governance Policy Statement, Pension 
Administration Strategy, Policy Statement on Communications, Policy Statement on 
our Discretions, Training Policy and Programme, and Climate Change Risk Strategy; 

f) Adding a Policy on Conflicts of Interest, a Policy on Representation, and a Policy 
on Payment of Death Grants to our governance documents and reviewing our 
Business Plan and Risk Register; and 

g) Delivering the Fund’s third Climate Risk Report. 
 

 
8.   The report also includes highlights of what was agreed by the Pensions Committee 
during the year. 
 
9.  The Pensions Committee is asked to note and comment on the attached Appendix 
2022 / 2023 annual report. 
 
 

 
 
Contact Points 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury Management and Banking 
Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: sloutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 

Page 4

mailto:sloutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

Supporting Information 
 
• Appendix – Annual Report 2022 / 2023 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Annual Report and 
Financial Statements 

 
 

for the year ending 31 March 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

Contents 
 

 

 Annual Report and Financial Statements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1 
 
1.   Chair’s Foreword . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 
2.   Management & Financial Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 
3.   Risk Management . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 
4.   Financial Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
5.   Administration Report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 
6.   Investment Policy & Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 
7.   Governance Arrangements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45 
8.   Governance Compliance Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 49 
9.   Worcestershire Pension Fund Local Pension Board Annual Report 2022 / 2023 . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . 55 

   
Audited Statement of Accounts 2022/23 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  56  
 
Appendix A Funding Strategy Statement 2023 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . .  .  .  .101 
 
Appendix B Worcestershire Pension Fund Administration Strategy.  .  .  .  .  .  . .  .  .102 
 
Appendix C Investment Strategy Statement 2023 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  103 
 
 

Page 8



 

 Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

3 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  3 

1. Chair’s Foreword

Page 9



 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 
 

 Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 4 

 

 1 Chair’s Foreword  
 

 
Welcome to the annual report for the Worcestershire Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) for the year ending 31 March 
2023. 
 
On behalf of the Pensions Committee, I am pleased to introduce an annual report which looks back on a 
scheme year in which the most notable achievements were: 
 

 
• Successfully completing the (as at 31 March) 2022 actuarial valuation at which point we were 101% 

funded on a solvency basis. I think that’s quite an achievement considering that on 31 March 2019 
the Fund was 90% funded and the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 included not only COVID 
but the Russian invasion of Ukraine. Incidentally, the position for our two largest employers who 
have a 45% share of the Fund’s assets between them was that Worcestershire County Council was 
107% funded and Herefordshire County Council was 98% funded. 
 

• Retaining our signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code 2020.  
 

• Making significant progress on restructuring our pensions administration department whilst 
continuing to have no backlogs, delivering a business-as-usual service, and meeting our KPI’s. 

 
• As part of the 2022 actuarial valuation producing updated versions of our Funding Strategy 

Statement and our All About our Investment Pots guidance note, and also reviewing our Making a 
Formal Representation for an Exit Credit Payment guidance note. 

 
• Delivering a funding position of 101% at the latest actuarial triennial valuation as at 31 March 2022. 

 
• Reviewing (and producing updated versions of) our key policy documents: Investment Strategy 

Statement, Governance Policy Statement, Pensions Administration Strategy, Policy Statement on 
Communications, Policy Statement on our Discretions, Training Policy and Programme, and Climate 
Change Risk Strategy. 

 
• Adding a Policy on Conflicts of Interest, a Policy on Representation, and a Policy on Payment of 

Death Grants to our governance documents and reviewing our Business Plan and Risk Register. 
 

• Delivering the Fund’s third Climate Risk Report. 
 
 
Picking out some highlights, the Committee agreed: 
 

• To reduce further the carbon footprint of the Fund’s listed equity portfolio; set an internal 
decarbonisation reduction target up to 2025 at which point it will be further reviewed; continue to 
invest a proportion of the Fund’s portfolio in low carbon & sustainable investments; and use the 
Climate Scenario Analysis to track and better understand the portfolio’s capacity to transition into a 
low carbon economy. To remove the Funds equity protection strategy, invest in private equity, and 
reduce exposure to the UK whilst increasing investment in North America. 
 

• Actions in response to the proposals made by the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance 
project. 

 
• Our 2022 audited/unaudited annual reports that were completed within the required timescales. 

Page 10



 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 
 

 Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 5 

 
• LGPS Central Limited’s (LGPSC) Strategic Business Plan & Budget for 2023/34. 

 
• Our climate related Financial Disclosures. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Scheme membership has also continued to grow and is now 67,739. 
 
As readers will be aware, the Fund primarily exists to pay pensions. This core activity of pension scheme 
administration was again delivered successfully throughout the year. From a Fund management perspective, it is 
worth noting that the increase in pensioners since 2009 reflects the fact that people are living longer these days. 
This in turn means that the Fund needs to have more money available for longer to meet the ‘guaranteed pension 
for life’ promises made to its pensioners compared to what was needed in the past. 
 
The year saw the total employers who were contributing to the Fund increase from 183 to 189. 
 
Whilst this annual report by its nature looks back on 2022/2023, our quarterly rolling Business Plan is provided at 
each Pensions Committee meeting. It reviews our ongoing progress in our key target areas and towards achieving 
our aspirations. It details our latest investment performance v benchmark and our latest performance against our 
target turnarounds for our key pension administration processes. 
 
I’d like to finish my foreword by thanking all new and continuing members of the Committee, the Chair and members 
of the Pension Board, our advisers, staff at the Fund and our employers for all their continuing hard work for the 
Fund and its members. 
 

 

 

Councillor Elizabeth Eyre Chair 

Worcestershire Pension Fund Pensions Committee 

Page 11



 

 

6 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  6 

2. Management & Financial Performance

Page 12



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

 

7 

 

2. Management & Financial Performance 
 

 

  Scheme management and advisors on 31 March 2023 
 

  Administering Authority:   Worcestershire County Council 
  Address:                           County Hall, Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
  Scheme Manager:                Phil Rook, Chief Financial Officer 
 

 Pensions Committee on 31 March 2023 

 
 

  Pension Board on 31 March 2023  
 

 

Representative 
 

Meetings attended 
 

              Training received 
  

 07/ 05/ 22/ 03/ 13/ 22/ 03/ 08/ 
 06 10 11 03 05 06 10 02 

Roger Phillips (Chair) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 
 

✓ 
 

Cllr Paul Harrison   
✓ ✓ ✓ 

  
✓ 

Bridget Clark  
✓ ✓ ✓ 

  
✓ ✓ 

Andrew Lovegrove         

Adam Pruszynski (Lucy Whitehead to 
22/11) 

✓ 
 

✓ ✓ ✓ 
   

Kim Wright   
✓ 

     

Cllr Tony Miller    
✓ 

   
✓ 

 
 The Chair of the Pensions Committee, Councillor Elizabeth Eyre, also attends the Board. 

 

Representative 
 

Meetings attended 
   

Training received 
 

 28/ 13/ 13/ 08/ 22/ 13/ 22/ 03/ 08/ 
 06 10 12 02 03 05 06 10 02 

Cllr E Eyre (Chair) 
 ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓   ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓ 

  Cllr A Hardman (Vice Chair) 
 

  ✓  ✓   ✓  ✓ 
    ✓ 

  Cllr L Mallett 
 

      ✓ 
   

  Cllr T Marsh 
 

✓  ✓  ✓ 
   

✓ ✓ ✓ 

  Cllr S Richardson Brown 
 

 ✓  ✓ 
  ✓   ✓ 

   ✓  ✓ 

  J Evans – Unison 
 
 

         

  (Employee Representative)          

  S Flynn (Employer Representative) 
 

  ✓  ✓  ✓ 
  ✓ 

   ✓ 

  Cllr K Hanks 
  

 ✓   ✓ 
  ✓  ✓ 

    

Page 13



 

 

8 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

Notes: 
 

 (1) The training on 13 May was on ‘Does what we are paying our investment managers represent value for 
money?’. 
 (2) The training on 22 June was on the actuarial valuation 2022. 
 (3) The training on 3 October was on private equity. 
 (4) The training on 8 February was an ESG / responsible investment workshop. 
 
 

 Pension Investment Sub-Committee on 31 March 2023 
 Councilor A I Hardman (Chair) 
 Councilor E Eyre 
 Councilor K Hanks 
 Councilor T Marsh  
 

 LGPS Central Limited Shareholder Representative 
 Councilor A I Hardman 
 

 Investment managers on 31 March 2023 
 AEW 
 Bridgepoint (was EQT) 
 Gresham House Alternative Asset Management & Investment 
 Hermes Investment Management 
 Igneo (was First Sentier) Investments 
 Invesco Real Estate 
 Legal & General Investment Management 
 LGPS Central Limited 
 Macquarie Group Ltd (was UK Green Investment Bank) Nomura Asset Management UK Ltd 
 Stonepeak Infrastructure partners 
 Venn Partners 
 Walton Street Capital, LLC 
 

 Global custodian (2022/2023) 
 BNY Mellon (Northern Trust for assets managed by LGPSC) 
 

 Independent investment adviser (2022/2023) 
M J Hudson 

 

 Actuary 

Mercer 

Page 14



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

 

9 

 Environmental Social Governance (ESG) Adviser 
  LGPS Central Limited 
 
  Bankers 
  Barclays 
 
  Auditors to the Fund 
  Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 
  Legal adviser 
  Worcestershire County Council 
 
  In-house AVC providers 
  Scottish Widows and Utmost Life 
 
  LGPS Central Limited 
  Mike Weston, Chief Executive Officer 
 
  Pension Administration Advisory Forum 
  All employers were invited to the 22 June 2022 forum. 

Page 15



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  10 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

3. Risk Management

Page 16



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
  

 

11 

 

3. Risk Management 
 

Risk management is the process of identifying risks, evaluating their likelihood and potential impact and determining 
the most effective methods for controlling or responding to them. 
 
The Fund has a dedicated Risk Register that is regularly reviewed by the leadership team and updated quarterly. 
The Pensions Committee receives regular updates on the key risks facing the Fund, and the latest Risk Register is 
reported to each regular Committee meeting. 
 
Each risk is initially assigned a score designed to reflect the likelihood of it occurring and impacts faced by the Fund 
if it were to occur. 
Risks are then categorised against a series of mitigations designed to reduce the likelihood and/or impact. Risks are 
colour coded and assigned a red, amber or green status according to the degree of risk posed. On 31 March 2023 
the Fund’s most significant risks were after taking into account mitigating actions and 
controls: 
 

• Mismatch in asset returns and liability movements, leading to exposure to risk or missing investment 
opportunities or increases in employer contributions.  
 

• Having insufficient resources in pensions administration, leading to Insufficient staff resource or remaining 
staff not having the skills to do their areas of work.  

 

• Inflation, leading to (1) higher employers pay settlements, leading to increases in liabilities; (2) lower real 
investment returns, requiring increases in employer contributions and leading to weaker employer 
covenants and (3) increased pension payments, putting pressure on liquidity 

 

The nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments are detailed in note 16 of the accounts further on 
in this document. 
 

LGPS Central Limited 

There is a separate risk register relating to investment pooling which the Practitioner Advisory Forum, the main 
Partner Fund working group, maintains. The LGPSC Joint Committee oversees the risk register to ensure risks are 
logged and mitigating actions put in place. LGPSC, the pooling delivery company, maintains its own risk register, 
which is overseen by the company board. 
 

Systems of internal control 
The Fund’s Statement of Accounts and Annual Report are subject to an external audit by Grant Thornton that 
provides a separate opinion for both the accounts and the annual report. Grant Thornton also conducts a number 
of interim audits throughout the year to test the design effectiveness of the Fund’s internal controls. 

In addition to external audit, the Fund receives regular reviews from the Council’s Internal Audit department who 
test the internal control systems and processes employed. Internal Audit obtains assurance on the internal control 
environment through a series of audits of key areas. 

Page 17



 

 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  12 

4. Financial Performance

Page 18



 

 

13 

 

4. Financial Performance 
 
 

Triennial valuation 

Every three years the Fund commissions a formal valuation from the Fund’s actuary which produces two key 
outputs. 

Firstly, it quantifies the ongoing funding level, i.e. the level to which the Fund’s pension liabilities for the accrued 
benefits of current employees, deferred pensioners and pensions in payment are matched by the market value of 
the Fund’s assets. A funding level of less than 100% implies that there is a deficit between the Fund’s assets and 
liabilities at that date. 

Secondly, it also sets the rate at which employers should contribute to the Fund for the following three years along 
with any deficit recovery payments. 

The table summarises the funding position on 31 March 2022 compared to the funding position at the last formal 
valuation on 31 March 2019. 

Summary valuation results 
 

 31 March 2019 £m 31 March 2022 £m 

Total past service liability 3,090 3,585 

Fund assets 2,795 3,562 

Surplus/ (deficit) (295) 23 

Funding level  90% 101% 
 

On 31 March 2023 we estimate that the Fund was 96% funded as a result of the impact of macroeconomic and 
geopolitical pressures on global markets. 

To meet the requirements of the regulations, we have set a clear long-term funding objective; to achieve and then 
maintain assets equal to 100% of projected accrued liabilities, assessed on an ongoing basis. 

In tandem with the actuarial valuation the actuary helps us to produce a Funding Strategy Statement that focuses 
on the pace at which future benefits will be funded and on practical measures to ensure that employers pay for 
their own liabilities. 

 

Contribution rates 
Members’ contributions are set at a rate which covers only part of the cost of accruing benefits after the valuation 
date. Employers pay the balance of the cost of delivering future benefits to members. 

At the 2022 actuarial valuation a common rate of contribution of 18.8% of pensionable pay per annum was set for 
employers from 1 April 2023. These range over individual employers from 15.5% to 29.2%. 

As the actuary assessed the particular circumstances of each employer, including the strength of its covenant and 
its individual membership experience within the Fund, the actuary applied individual adjustments to each employer 
to reflect these circumstances. 

This resulted in a higher contribution rate than the baseline percentage and/or an annual cash contribution at a 
fixed amount being set for many employers. 

The next actuarial valuation and review of the Funding Strategy Statement will be carried out as at 31 

March 2025, with any changes to employers’ contribution rates being implemented with effect from 1 April 2026. 
Our Funding Strategy Statement and the 2022 Actuarial Valuation Report are available from our website.

Page 19



 

 

14 

Analytical review of Fund Account and Net Assets Statement 

The following table provides a brief overview of the major movements in the Fund Account and Net Assets 
Statement for the financial year 2022/2023. The full Statement of Accounts is included from page 56 of this report. 
 

Fund Account category 2021/22 £m 2022/23 £m Notes 

Net contributions (44.4)  (33.0) 

Contributions received 
increased year on year 

whilst Management 
expenses decreased. 

This was in part offset 
by an increase in 

benefits paid. 

Return on investments 264.2 57.0  

Investment income 
remained stable year on 

year however the 
change in market value, 

although still positive, 
wasn’t as great in 

2022.23 as in 2021.22. 
 

Operational expenses – comparison of 2022/23 forecast to actual. 

  
2022/23 Budget 

£000 
2022/23 Actual 

£000 2022/23 Variance £000 

Administration, oversight & governance 

Employees 930 1,137 207 

Supplies & services 231 385 154 

Actuarial fees 410 500 90 

Investment advisor expenses 88 55 -33 

IT costs 393 373 -20 

External audit fees 34 89 55 

LGPSC governance & running 
costs 777 622 -155 

Other expenses  0 40 40 

Legal fees 10 29 19 

Total 2,873  3,230 357 

Investment management 

External fund managers 16,029 10,657 -5,372 

Transaction costs 2,000 3,665 1,665 

Custodian 113 113 0 

Total 18,142 14,435 -3,707 

Overall total 21,015  17,665 -3,350 

Page 20



 

 

15 

 
 

Administration and management costs per member past 5 years 

Process 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
  

Investment management expenses 

Total cost (£’m) 11.9 14.4 17.3 20.4 15.1 

Total membership (Nos) 62,254 63,635 64,770 66,599 67,739  

Cost per member (£) 191 226 267 306  223 

  

Administration costs 

Total cost (£’m) 1.1 1.5 2.0 1.7 1.5 

Total membership (Nos) 62,254 63,635 64,770 66,599 67,739 

Cost per member (£) 18 24 31 26 22 
 

Oversight and governance costs 

Total cost (£’m) 0.1 0.1 0.9 1.1 1.0 

Total membership (Nos) 62,254 63,635 64,770 66,599 67,739 

Cost per member (£) 1.6 1.6 13.9 17 15 

         
Total cost per member (£) 210.6 251.6 311.9 348.0 260.0  

 

 

Oversight and governance costs have not significantly changed since 2020/21 when the allocation of LGPSC pool 
governance and running costs were included. Previously they were included as part of the investment management 
expenses.  

 

The table below outlines the Fund’s performance for key financial variables for the past 
5 years 

 
* The contributions receivable was higher in 2020/21 than in other years due to some larger employers paying their 
contributions 3 years in advance. 
 
** The increase in transfers 2020/21 was due to a large employer transferring into the Fund. 
 
 

Page 21



 

 

16 

 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
  £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m 
Contributions and Benefits 

Contributions receivable* 81.8 87.5 201.2 90.7 97.9 

Individual transfers 12.9 12.9 29.0 13.7 22.0 

Total contributions and transfers in 94.7 100.4 230.2 104.4 119.9 

Benefits payable (106.3) (111.9) (112.6) (115.6) (122.6) 

Payments to and on account of leavers (8.7) (11.2) (9.5) (10.0) (12.7) 

Total benefits paid and transfers out (115.0) (123.1) (122.1) (125.6) (135.3) 

Management and admin expenses (13.1) (16.0) (20.2) (23.2) (17.6) 

Sub total (33.4) (38.7) 87.9 (44.4) (33.0) 
Return on investments 

Investment income 50.2 47.9 28.7 37.0 37.9 

Change in market value of investments 77.5 (159.1) 602.8 227.2 19.1 

Net return on investments 127.7 (111.2) 631.5 264.2 57.0 
Net increase in the Fund during the year 94.3 (149.9) 719.4 219.8 24.0 

Page 22



 

 

17 

 

3-year forecast management expenses 2023/24 to 2025/26 

  

      

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Budget £'000 Budget £'000 Budget £'000 

Administration/oversight & governance 

Pension scheme administration recharge 1,331 1,388 1,448 

Actuarial services* 380 380 430 

Audit 34 35 36 

Legal fees 10 10 10 

Committee and governance recharge 10 10 10 

Total 1,765 1,823 1,934 

Investment administration costs 

Investment administration recharge 163 167 170 

LGPSC central governance & running costs 870 840 874 

Investment custodial and related services 140 147 155 

Investment professional fees 165 97 140 

Performance measurement 44 45 46 

Total 1,382 1,296 1,385 

Investment management 

External fund managers** 17,817 19,080 20,877 

Transaction costs 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Total 19,817 21,080 22,877 

Overall Total 22,964 24,199 26,196 

 

 
* Actuarial fees are higher in 2025/26 due to this being a valuation year. 
 
** External managers’ fees are subject to market valuations

Page 23



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page I  18 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

5. Administration Report 2022/23

Page 24



 

 

19 

 

5. Administration Report 2022 / 2023 
 

 
Making significant progress on restructuring our pensions administration department whilst continuing to have no 
backlogs, delivering a business-as-usual service, and meeting our KPIs makes 2022 / 2023 , we believe, a year to 
be very proud of . 
 
We are dedicated to delivering good governance, and in that regard it was a year that saw us reviewing (and 
produce updated versions of) our key policy documents: Governance Policy Statement, Pensions Administration 
Strategy, Policy Statement on Communications, Policy Statement on our Discretions, and Training Policy and 
Programme. We added a Policy on Conflicts of Interest, a Policy on Representation, and a Policy on Payment of 
Death Grants to our governance documents and reviewed the format of our quarterly our Business Plan and Risk 
Register. We also produced quarterly position statements to summarize progress on how we are taking forward 
the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB) Good Governance workstream in preparation for statutory guidance 
being issued. 
 
On cyber security we checked out our pensions administration supplier’s cyber security review and produced cyber 
security tips for Board and Committee members who would not otherwise be updated by Worcestershire County 
Council’s ongoing training programme. 
On data quality the results of our 2022 NFI data matching showed us only having 2 mismatches overall. 
We collected employer declarations on a McCloud checklist / declarations form that had links for employers to 
supply all missing data if they had not confirmed that there was no data missing. 
We launched our own completely stand-alone (from Worcestershire County Council’ website) website and 
delivered an online stewardship survey of our pensioners. In 2022 / 2023 our website had 80,317 visits compared 
to 44,567 in 2021/2022. 
 
As usual, paying pensions, processing retirements, processing deaths, processing refunds, delivering our year end, 
providing employers’ with FRS / IAS information for their accounts, and issuing annual benefit statements / 
newsletters / Pension Savings Statements / pensioner P60s and pay slips were our major administration 
deliverables. New employers, employer restructures and delivering training for Pensions Committee and Pension 
Board members also required significant resource. 
We deliver our service using: 
 

• The Altair pensions administration system. 
•  Our stand-alone website. 
•  Dedicated resource for each member requirement. 
•  Monthly employer newsletters and online training. 
• Computer hardware, software and the County Council’s computer network. 

We have arrangements in place to ensure the accuracy and confidentiality of personal data. The Fund conforms 
with Worcestershire County Council’s (WCC) breach notification process and WCC’s data policy, for example 
through the use of data encryption and password protection. Systems are reviewed by internal and external audit 
and set up in line with data protection regulations. 

 

Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP) 
There are times when members, employers and the Fund may find themselves in disagreement about a pensions 
issue. The first approach in these situations is for those involved to talk to each other to reach resolution. However, 
should this not prove possible, the Fund has an IDRP. Our appeals procedure is detailed on our website. 
 
 
 
 

 
Policy Statement on Communications 

Page 25



 

 

20 

The Policy Statement provides an overview of how the Fund will communicate with its stakeholders. An effective 
communications strategy is vital for the Fund to meet its objective of providing a high quality and consistent service. 
Scheme communications are a critical activity; they are the external face of the Fund and provide a key link with 
its stakeholders. The Fund continuously looks at ways to enhance its communication offering to the various 
audiences and the Policy Statement is reviewed annually with a revised version will be published following any 
material change. Our Policy Statement on Communications is included within the Fund’s Administration Strategy 
and is referenced in Appendix B below. 

 

Membership and employer movement and Scheme complexity 

The Fund continues to experience a year-on-year increase in the total number of members. 

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

3
1
.0

3
.1

4

3
1
.0

3
.1

5

3
1
.0

3
.1

6

3
1
.0

3
.1

7

3
1
.0

3
.1

8

3
1
.0

3
.1

9

3
1
.0

3
.2

0

3
1
.0

3
.2

1

3
1
.0

3
.2

2

3
1
.0

3
.2

3

Deferred Pensioners Active

Page 26



 

 

21 

 
The table below summarises the age ranges of the membership over the three categories of active, deferred and 
pensioner on 31 March 2023: 

 

Age group     Active  Pensioner*  Deferred  Total         % 

0-20  262 109 10 381 0.56 
 

21-25  1,063 34 255 1,352 2.00 
 

 

26-30 1,437 1 853 2,291 3.38 
 

 

31-35 2,006 2 1,883 3,891 5.74 
 

 

36-40 2,397 7 2,604 5,008 7.39 
 

 

41-45 2,845 25 2,993 5,863 8.66 
 

 

46-50 3,117 55 3,614 6,786 10.02 
 

 

51-55 3,792 174 4,875 8,841 13.05 
 

 

56-60 3,408 1,168 4,569 9,145 13.50 
 

 

61-65 2,044 3,363 1,930 7,337 10.83 
 

 

66-70 387 4,957 204 5,548 8.19 
 

 

71-75 64 4,482 55 4,601 6.79 
 

 

76-80 0 3,392 10 3,399 5.02 
 

 

81-85  0 1,825 0 1,825 2.69 
 

 

86-90 0 1,009 0 1,009 1.49 
 

 

90+  0 462 0 462 0.68 
 

 

Total                               22,822 21,062   23,855 67,739   100%  

 

* Pensioner column includes dependents.

Page 27



 

 

22 

 

Retirements during 2022/23 

There were 1,139 retirements during 2022/23 as summarised in the chart below: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Fund has 189 contributing employers whose employees are members of the LGPS: 

  

Active on 31/03/2023 

Scheduled bodies 114   
Designated bodies 26  

 
Admitted bodies  49  

 
Total  189  

 

Notes: 
 

 

• Scheduled (in the regulations) bodies are organisations whose employees qualify to become members 
of the LGPS by right. These include county councils, district councils, foundation schools/colleges 
and academies. 

• Designated bodies are organisations that have passed resolutions with town or parish councils to 
offer the LGPS to their employees. 

• Admitted bodies are organisations that fall into none of the previous 2 categories. Admitted bodies 
are voluntary/charitable bodies and other organisations to whom local government 
employees have been transferred under the outsourcing of local government services whose staff 
can, at the discretion of their employer, become members of the LGPS. 

 

Page 28



 

 

23 

 

Our performance 

The Fund benchmarks its administration performance against CIPFA benchmarks as outlined in the table below. 
The Fund achieved 100% compliance. We measure how we perform against our target turnarounds for our key 
processes: 

 

 
 
We continue to monitor this and improve our data capturing of the information against the CIPFA benchmarks. 
For example, in response to the cost of living being a major news story over the year, we monitored our number 
of flexible retirements and opt-outs.  

Detailed below are the number of each case type processed in the year and the percentage achieved within the 
KPI. 

Activity / process  Number processed 
2022/23 

% Processed within KPI 
2022/23 

Joiners’ notification of date of joining 3979 94 

Process and pay refund 826 93 

Calculate and notify deferred benefits 1968 99 

Letter notifying actual retirement benefits 546 99 

Letter notifying amount of dependent’s benefits 205 98 

 
 

 

Activity / process                                                

Average 
turnaround 

achieved 
(working days) 

2021/22 

Average 
turnaround 

achieved 
(working days) 

2022/23 

Target 
turnaround 

(working days) 

Joiners’ notification of date of joining 19 15 40 

Process and pay refund 4 5 10 

Calculate and notify deferred benefits 8 7 30 

Letter notifying actual retirement benefits 2 2 15 

Letter notifying amount of dependent’s benefits 3 3 10 

Letter acknowledging death of member 3 4 5 

Letter detailing Cash Equivalent Transfer Value 
2 2 45 

(CETV) for divorce 

Letter notifying estimate of retirement benefits 3 3 15 

Letter detailing transfer in quote 2 2 10 

Process and pay lump sum retirement grant 10 14 23 

Letter detailing transfer out quote 3 3 10 

Letter detailing PSO implementation 4 4 15  

Page 29



 

 

24 

Activity/Process Number processed 
2022/23 

% Processed 
within KPI 

2022/23 
Letter acknowledging death of a member 493 79 

Letter detailing cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) for divorce 128 100 

Letter notifying estimate of retirement benefits 1471 99 

Letter detailing transfer in quote 634 98 

Process and pay lump sum retirement grant 1188 100 

Letter detailing transfer out quote 524 96 

Letter detailing Pension Sharing Order (PSO) implementation 2 100 
 

 

The administration team comprises of 39.6 full time equivalent (FTE) staff. The Fund therefore has a ratio of one 
full time equivalent member of the team for every 1,710 Fund members. 

In 2022/2023 we had two data breaches, completed seven Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP), and have 
four cases in progress. 

 

Value for money 

At £1.5m our administration costs for 22/23 were £0.2m less than the previous year. Our cost per member is 
£23.09. 

In 2022/23 our administration team of 39.6 FTE (as at 31 March 2023) achieved the average CIPFA benchmark 
turnaround target for all 12 standard processes. 

In line with guidance from The Pensions Regulator (TPR), we continue to measure the quality of our data. The last 
measure was taken in October 2022. 

The percentage of member records passing ALL tests required by The Pensions Regulator was: 

• Common data 95.4% (our 2021 score was 95.0%). 
• Scheme-specific data 98.4% (our 2021 score was 98.7%). 

 

The percentage (2021 previous year in brackets) of our member records without a single ‘common data’ failure was 
92.4% (92.4%). 

In the core list of TPR ‘common data’ tests our pass rates were: National Insurance Number 99.7% (100%); Name 
100% (100%); Sex and Date of Birth 100% (100%); Date Commenced and Normal Retirement Date 100% (99.9%); 
Status 100% (100%); and Address 93.5% (95.1%). 

The percentage of our member records without a single ‘scheme-specific data’ failure was 98.3% (98.7%). In the 
core list of TPR ‘scheme-specific data’ tests our pass rates were Member Benefits 99.6% (99.9%); 

Member Details 99.5% (99.9%); CARE benefits 98.6% (98.0%); HMRC 99.8% (100.0%); and Contracted Out 98.8% 
(98.5%). 

Looking ahead, we are committed to delivering an even more modern and efficient value for money service. 

Page 30



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  25 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

6. Investment Policy & Performance

Page 31



 

 

26 

 

6. Investment Policy & Performance 
 

 

Investment management 
Subject to the LGPS regulations on allowable investments, the Fund may invest in a wide range of assets including 
quoted equity, government bonds, corporate bonds, money markets, traded options, financial futures/derivatives 
and alternative strategies including infrastructure/property pooled funds. 

The Fund’s investment objective is to support the funding strategy by adopting an investment strategy and 
structure which incorporate an appropriate balance between risk and return. Our Investment Strategy Statement 
is referenced at Appendix C. 

The Pensions Committee has responsibility for the investment strategy of the Fund but has established a Pension 
Investment Sub-Committee and delegated oversight of its implementation to the Chief Financial Officer. The 
Committee regularly reviews the Fund’s investment management arrangements. In broad terms on 31 March 2023 
the Fund’s strategic allocation was to be invested 70% in equities, 10% in fixed income and 20% in 
property/alternatives/private equity. The Fund’s assets are managed day to day by the Fund’s appointed specialist, 
external investment managers. 

Target asset allocation 

The table below shows the actual distribution of assets across the main asset categories. This changes year on year 
as a result of the target asset allocation, the performance of the underlying asset classes, managers’ performance, 
and rebalancing. 
 
Strategic Actual and Target Asset Allocations 

 

Asset Class Actual portfolio 
weight 

Actual portfolio 
weight 

Target portoflio 
weight 

  31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 

Total Equities 74.4% 68.5%  70.0%  

        

Total Actively Managed Equities 19.4% 24.2%   26.0% 

Far East Developed 10.5%  10.1%  10.0% 

Emerging Markets 9.2%  8.6%  10.0% 

Global Sustainable Active Fund 0.0% 5.5% 6.0% 

        

Total passively managed equities – 
market capitalisation indices 38.7%  28.5%  29.0% 

United Kingdom 19.1%  17.2%  17.0% 

North America 12.2%  5.1%  6.5% 
 

 
 

Page 32



 

 

27 

 

 

Asset class Actual portfolio 
weight 

Actual portfolio 
weight 

Target portfolio 
weight 

  31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 

Europe ex UK 7.4% 6.2%   5.5% 

        

Passively managed equities – 
alternative indices 16% 15.8%   15.0% 

        

Equity Protection Strategy 6.4%   0.0%  0.0% 

        

Total Fixed Interest 7.5% 7.8% 10.0%  

Actively managed bonds & corporate 
private debt 7.5%  7.8% 10.0%  

        

Total actively managed alternative 
assets 18.1%  23.7% 20.0%  

Property 5.8% 8.6%   7.5% 

Infrastructure 12.3% 15.1%   12.5% 

        

TOTAL 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
 

 

The Fund had an equity protection strategy in place on 31 March 2022 but not on 31 March 2023. 

There are still a number of undrawn capital commitments related to property and infrastructure. These take a 
number of years and are being funded from disinvestments in the equity portfolio to meet the strategic target 
allocations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

 

28 

 Details of the largest equity investments as at 31 March 2023 
 

Top 10 direct equity investments Market value of holding on 
31st March 2023 (£) Percentage of total fund assets 

AstraZeneca 43,194,092 1.22% 

Shell 41,977,357 1.18% 

Taiwan Semicon Man 41,329,842 1.17% 

Tencent Holdings 37,181,483 1.05% 

Apple 36,190,620 1.02% 

Microsoft 33,521,751 0.95% 

HSBC 29,201,639 0.82% 

Unilever 27,376,537 0.77% 

BP 23,726,332 0.67% 

Diageo 20,684,494 0.58% 
 

 
Report of the Independent Investment Advisor 
 
What a year that was! 
In a sense this last year has seen a roll forward of the consequences arising from what was breaking news at the 
end of the last year; namely the Russian invasion of Ukraine. It should have been the post Covid-19 recovery period, 
instead we saw world markets unsettled by substantially higher fuel and food prices, leading to a much higher level 
of inflation than we have seen for a very long time. Of much greater impact to our members would have been the 
even higher rate at which the cost of living was rising. In the UK the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) peaked at 11.1% 
in October, with a small decline to 10.1% by March. 
 
Central banks were effectively caught between a rock and a hard place, knowing that they had to raise interest 
rates to try to bring inflation back to more reasonable levels, but at the same time not wishing to cause unnecessary 
damage to economic activity as a result. In March the UK Base Rate rose to 4.25%, with an expectation that further 
increases would be necessary, given that inflation is staying higher and for longer than had been forecast by the 
Bank of England. 
 
One notable success in the economic battle with Putin was that European gas supplies had been boosted by an 
increase in storage capacity ahead of the 2022-23 winter. That, combined with a generally mild winter, has seen 
energy prices falling considerably from the peak levels seen after the invasion of Ukraine. Attention has also been 
focused on increasing the amount of energy derived from non-fossil fuel origins, thus increasing the sustainability 
of future energy supplies independent of Russia. 
 
The 2022-23 fiscal year was certainly a tale of two halves so far as Fund values were concerned, along with the 
differentiated performance of public and private markets. Fund values fell during H1and then recovered to some 
extent during H2, ending the year down by just -1.0% (£3.55bn. v. £3.59bn.). Given the turmoil seen at times during 
the course of the year, this is an encouraging outcome in the circumstances. In general terms equities fell during H1 
and then recovered to some degree during H2, with the position reversed for the private market investments. 
Emerging Markets were particularly volatile, driven in large part by China. 
 

Page 34



 

 

29 

While the Fund and its benchmark have generated positive returns, the Fund has underperformed its benchmark 
by -0.5%. The underperformance has  
been primarily generated by equity assets, and by the underperformance of the Fixed Income assets. Infrastructure 
slightly underperformed whilst the Property outperformed. It should be noted that many of the Alternative assets 
are investing in new portfolios; these types of portfolios often underperform initially due to the expenses of these 
funds ‘investing’ and that it takes time for many of these vehicles to generate significant positive returns from their 
investments. It is pleasing to be able to report that the Funding Level has remained stable over the year, at or near 
100%. 
 
The two main focuses of attention for the Pensions Committee have been the Triennial valuation and following on 
from that the Strategic Asset Allocation review. The Triennial valuation provided encouraging reassurance that the 
Fund remains in good health, with just a flag of concern about a possible deteriorating cashflow outlook, reflecting 
higher inflation and consequent increases in pension payments. This has been considered as part of the Strategic 
Asset Allocation review, which recommends that we consider building up a portfolio of income generating assets 
over time. As part of the evolution of the investment portfolio to reflect the improved Funding position and to help 
with matching to liabilities an initial investment strategy to invest in Private Equity has been approved. 
 
As the year drew to a close the Fund bade farewell to Michael Hudson, the Chief Financial Officer and to Rob 
Wilson, the Finance Manager for Pensions. They have been instrumental in overseeing a complete transformation 
of the Fund’s governance and operational management over the last five years, such that Worcestershire Pension 
Fund is now amongst the elite of the Funds within the LGPS. We have welcomed Phil Rook as the new Chief 
Financial Officer and Sherief Loutfy as Rob’s successor in charge of the Fund’s investments. 
 
The outlook for the economy and world markets is distinctly cloudy, in fact a deep look into the proverbial crystal 
ball is about as good as it gets at the moment. Even the Bank of England doesn’t seem to have much of a clue about 
what happens next. 
 
Geopolitics has a big part to play in this uncertainty. It has to be hoped that Ukraine’s resolve to drive the invaders 
out of their country is successful in the near term and that Putin is put in his box. The trouble is that instability in 
that region is likely to continue, regardless of the short-term outcome. Continued and if anything intensified sabre 
rattling by the Chinese government certainly doesn’t help the nerves, for us or investment markets. This will almost 
certainly run and run for the foreseeable future. 
 
In the short term the current volatility in financial markets, coupled with high interest rates and inflation clearly 
raises some concerns. LGPS pensioners have the benefit of index linked (CPI) increases to their pensions each year. 
This is in contrast to most private sector pension schemes, that tend to have a cap (or a limit) on the amount that 
pensions will increase each year, regardless of the rate of inflation. Certainly, for pensioners this provides some 
relief to the rapid increase in the cost of living, but it is acknowledged that with the large increases seen in energy 
costs and most food items times will still be challenging for many.  
 
Over the longer term the investment strategy of the Fund is designed to ensure that the ability to pay pensions in 
the short, medium, and long term is fully maintained. The Fund invests in a diversified range of assets that over time 
is anticipated to increase in value and to provide a secure flow of income to pay those pensions. The assumptions 
that are made in the management of the Fund are regularly reviewed to ensure that changes to economic forecasts, 
including the cost of living, are incorporated within the investment strategy. With the expectations that the rate of 
inflation and interest rates will stay relatively high in the short term, but then fall back to lower levels (but higher 
than we have seen in recent years), the recent asset allocation review ensures that the investment strategy is 
adjusted accordingly to maintain the correct balance of assets between those that see a growth in value over time 
and those that generate a steady flow of income. One of the great strengths of the LGPS is the way in which it is 
designed to provide a secure income in retirement to our pensioners and to be able to absorb short term challenges 
due to the long-term strength of the asset base. 
 
 Philip Hebson 
 Independent Investment Advisor 
 July 2023 
Investment monitoring and performance 

The Pension Investment Sub-Committee monitors external managers’ performance and makes investment manager 
and asset allocation recommendations.  The Fund does not automatically rebalance mandates in line with the long-
term investment policy as set out in the Investment Strategy Statement. Therefore, portfolio weights may vary 

Page 35



 

 

30 

compared to their long-term strategic total Fund weight. The Fund’s actual asset valuations across UK, Non-UK and 
Global on 31 March 2023 are shown below. 

 

Asset class UK  
£m 

Non-UK 
 £m 

Global 
 £m 

Total  
£m 

Equities 612.2 1,062.8 756.9 2,431.9 

Bonds 0.0 0.0 184.0 184.0 

Pooled property 232.7 90.8 0.0 323.6 

Pooled infrastructure 204.3 307.5 0.0 511.8 

Pooled debt 34.8 57.5 0.0 92.3 

Cash and cash equivalents 12.4 0.0 0.0 12.4 

Other 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total 1,096.5 1,518.6 940.8 3,556.0 
 

 
 

The Fund’s investment performance is measured quarterly by Portfolio Evaluation Ltd against a number of 
benchmarks. The table below details the Fund’s actual performance against these benchmarks over the 1 year, 3 
years and 5 years to 31 March 2023. 

Fund performance by Asset Class 
 
The Fund produced a return of 1.2% for the year to 31 March 2023, which gave an underperformance of 0.5% 
against the benchmark of 1.7%. The Fund’s performance continues to be in line with benchmark over the 10-year 
period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  
 

 

 

Page 36



 

 

31 

 

 

 

 
Performance was better than the LGPS universe over 1 year. The Fund slightly underperformed the LGPS universe 
and over 3 and 5 year periods but performance is in line over the 10-year period. 
 
Comparison of average annual performance of the Fund with the LGPSC partners’ 
median return and the LGPS universe 
 

 
 

 
The following chart tracks the cumulative impact of long-term Fund performance since 2013/14 relative to the 
following key measures, the LGPSC universe, the Retail Prices Index (RPI) and annual average weekly earnings. 
 

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

COMPARISON OF AVERAGE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE OF THE FUND WITH THE 
LGPS UNIVERSE AVERAGE

Worcestershire LGPS Universe

1 year ending 31.03. 23 5 years ending 31.03.233 years ending 10 years ending 31.03.23

Asset class 
1-year 
actual 

return % 

1-year 
benchmark 

return % 

3-year 
actual 

return % 

3-year 
benchmark 

return % 

5-year 
actual 

return % 

5-year 
benchmark 

return % 
Active equities -4.8 -1.3 7.7 10.1 2.1 3.9 

Passive equities 2.6 3.0 16.5 16.0 9.1 8.2 

Alternative passive 
equities 0.3 0.5 12.7 13.3 8.8 9.4 

Bonds -10.8 -9.0 -2.0 -1.9     
Pooled private 
debt 11.3 6.0 6.9 6.0     

Pooled property 9.9 -6.4 4.4 5.5 4.5 6.1 
Pooled 
infrastructure 12.8 13.0 10.6 10.9 8.5 10.0 

Total Fund 1.2 1.7 9.6 11.0 5.8 6.3 
 

Page 37



 

 

32 

 

Fund’s Annual Growth Compared to Retail Price Index, National Average Weekly 
Earnings and LGPSC Universe Returns 
 

 
 

 

 

Investment fees 
The Fund generally has an ad-valorem fee scale applied in respect of the investment management services it 
receives.  This is generally accepted practice for passive tracking mandates and is easily understood. 

A performance-related fee basis is sometimes set if it is believed to be in the overall financial interests of the Fund, 
particularly for active mandates where higher fees are paid for more consistent outperformance of market indices. 
The approach taken varies depending on the type of investment and the target being set. 

The Fund reports in line with the CIPFA requirements under the Transparency Code and requires its investment 
managers to provide sufficient information to fulfil these requirements. The table below shows the fees paid to 
managers in each asset class as at the 31 March 2023. 
 

 
 

          

     
 

 
 

 
 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Annual RPI worcestershires Annual Growth

Average Weekly Earnings LGPS Universe Average

FUND'S ANNUAL GROWTH COMPARED TO RETAIL PRICE INDEX, NATIONAL AVERAGE 
WEAKLY EARNINGS and LGPS UNIVERSE AVERAGE RETURNS

2012/13 = 100

Index

Return

%

Index

Return

%

Page 38



 

 

33 

 

Asset class Management fees 
£'000 

Performance & 
other fees £'000 Total fees £'000 

Fixed interest securities 200 1,600 1,800 

Equities 700 300 1,000 

Pooled property 1,900 0 1,900 

Pooled infrastructure 4,300 0 4,300 

Private debt 1,500 0 1,500 

LGPSC 2,000 1,800 3,800 

Other 0 0 0 

Total Fund 10,600  3,700 14,300 
 

 

 
Custodial arrangements 

Custody of the Fund’s assets is provided by the Global Custodian, BNY Mellon Asset Servicing, or for assets 
managed by LGPSC, Northern Trust. 

In addition to the custodian’s role in the safe keeping of the Fund’s total assets, the custodian also provides 
services in relation to settlement and income collection, the exercise of voting rights and the execution of 
corporate actions in conjunction with investment managers. The appointment of a global custodian also secures 
an independent confirmation of the Fund’s assets and their value. 

 
Asset pooling 

The Fund is a partner Fund of LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC) pool and costs were incurred by all the partner funds 
under a cost sharing agreement with our contribution being as follows: 

  At 1st April 2022 
£'000 

Recharges in year 
£'000 

Settled in year 
£'000 

At 31 March 2023 
£'000 

Governance costs  257     

Operator costs   400      

IMMC  150 
      

Product development 
costs   74      

Sub total 166 881  (661)  386 
 

 

 
LGPSC set-up costs are detailed below. As the pool only launched in 2018, the information provided reflects the 
start-up nature of LGPSC: the level and complexity of the disclosures will increase in later years. 

Page 39



 

 

34 

LGPSC set-up costs 
 

£000 2018/19 direct 
£000 

2018/19 
indirect £000 

2018/19 total 
£000 

Cumulative 2014/15 to 
2018/19 total £000 

Set up costs         

Recruitment       27 

Procurement       2 

Professional fees       187 

IT       97 

Staff costs       142 

Other costs         

Premises        49 

Staffing related costs       5 

Travel and expenses       1 

Training and events       1 

Page 40



 

 

35 

 

 

£000 2018/19 
direct £000 

2018/19 
indirect £000 

2018/19 total 
£000 

Cumulative 2014/15 to 
2018/19 total £000 

FCA fees       1 

General admin costs       2 

Set up costs before funding      514 

Share capital       1315 

Debt       685 

Other costs         

Set up costs after funding       2,514 

Transition fees         

Taxation (seeding relief)         

Other transition costs         

Transition costs         

 
Although guidance from CIPFA has not provided a set definition of indirect costs, it is likely that the set- up costs 
captured to date relate to direct costs (i.e., either incurred directly by LGPSC or recharged by Partner Funds to 
LGPSC). 

 

 

£000 2014/15 
£000 

2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

Cumulative 
£000 

Set up costs before funding     95 419   514 

Set up costs after funding     95 2419   2514 

Transition costs             

Page 41



 

 

36 

 

LGPSC Investment Management Expenses Charged to Partner Funds 
 

   Direct 
 £000 

Indirect 
 £000 

Total 
 £000 

BPS charge 
 £000 

1 Ad valorem 2,365   2,365 26.70 

2 Performance         

3 Research         

4 PRIIPS compliance         

5 Other (provide details)         

  Management fees 2,365   2,365 26.70 

6 Commissions 207   207 2.33 

7 Acquisition/issue costs         

8 Disposal costs         

9 Registration/filling fees         

10 Taxes and stamp duty 217   217 2.45 

11 Other (provide details)         

  Implicit costs 1,343   1,343 15.15 

  Transaction costs 1,767   1,767 19.94 

            

12 Custody/depositary 139   139 1.57 

13 Other (provide details)         

  Fund accounting 45   45 0.51 

  Transfer agent 5   5 0.06 

  External audit 12   12 0.14 

  Performance reporting 19   19 0.21 

  Transaction charges 31   31 0.35 

  MACS fees      

  Total costs 4,383   4,383 49.47 

Page 42



 

 

37 

 

Fund’s Assets Under Management & Performance By 
Product within the LGPSC Pool 
 

 
AUM at 

1 April 
2022 £m 

AUM at 
31 March 
2023 £m 

1-year gross 
performance 

% 

1-year net 
performance 

% 

Passive 
benchmark used 

One-year 
passive index 

% 

Emerging 
market equity  323  307 -5.79%   -6.20% FTSE emerging 

market index -4.07%  

Corporate 
bonds 206 184  -12.85%  -12.92% 

ICE BofAML 
Sterling Non-Gilt 

Index 50%; ICE 
BofAML Global 

Corporate Index 
50% 

-11.26% 

Climate factor 
fund 207 208 -2.10% -2.11% 

FTSE All-World 
climate balanced 

comprehensive 
factor index 

-2.23% 

Sustainable 
Targeted  77 -3.40% -3.60% FTSE All World 

Index -2.40% 

Sustainable 
Thematic  117 -3.20% -3.50% FTSE All World 

Index -2.40% 

ACS sub-funds 736  893         

Total 736  893         

 

 

 

  Statement of responsible investment 

The Fund is a long-term investor aiming to deliver a sustainable pension fund for all stakeholders. 
Worcestershire County Council as the administering authority has a fiduciary duty to act in the best long- term 
interests of the Fund’s employers and scheme members. The Fund believes that in order to fulfil this duty, it must 
have a clear policy on how it invests in a responsible manner. 
 
Responsible investment is a fundamental part of the Fund’s overarching investment strategy as set out in the 
Investment Strategy Statement. The Fund is committed to ensuring that the companies in which it invests have 
good corporate governance, adopt a responsible attitude towards the environment and adopt high ethical 
standards. The Fund is a signatory to the UK Stewardship Code 2020. 

 

 
Policies adopted 

The Fund adopts a positive engagement approach with the companies in which it invests in order to promote high 
standards of corporate governance. It believes that this will help to raise standards across all markets and that this 
is in the long-term interests of the Fund and its stakeholders. 

Investment performance is monitored on a quarterly basis and the Fund expects investment managers to engage 
with companies to address concerns affecting performance. 

Page 43



 

 

38 

The Fund believes that the greatest impact on behaviour can be achieved when working together with others. It is 
a member of the Local Authorities Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), to enable it to act collectively with other local 
authorities on corporate governance issues. The Forum currently has over 80 member funds representing assets 
of more than £350 billion. LAPFF’s mission is to protect the long-term investment interests of beneficiaries by 
promoting the highest standards of corporate governance and corporate responsibility amongst investee 
companies. 

The Fund continues to exercise its ownership rights by adopting a policy of voting stocks it holds. The Fund 
believes that it is beneficial to take the voting decisions away from our active fund managers and have the votes 
executed in line with LGPSC’s voting principles which are in line with our own. This enables improved monitoring 
and reporting to the Pensions Committee. Wherever practicable votes must be in accordance with industry best 
practice as set out in the combined code of corporate governance with a clear focus on enhancing long-term 
shareholders value. 

In order to ensure that the governance practices employed by the Fund’s investment managers are aligned to that 
of the Fund, investment managers’ quarterly performance reports are required to include specific briefing in 
corporate governance detailing all votes cast on the Fund’s behalf as detailed in the charts below. 

Page 44



 

 

39 

 

 Meeting where Resolutions made 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Engagement with 286 Companies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

 

40 

 
 

 

 Issues on which we recommended voting against or abstaining on resolutions 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) in 2021 

 
As detailed in our 2021 annual report, the Fund commissioned a company called Minerva to conduct an 
Environment Social and Governance (ESG) audit of the Fund and be able to map all the Funds’ investments to the 
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). This was to establish a baseline for the Fund as to where 
we are and help formulate future strategic actions required for the Fund’s investment approach.  

A key outcome was to prioritise the following SDGs that the Fund considered are likely to have the biggest 
investment impact. At a Fund ESG review in February 2022 it was agreed to add SDG 12 

Responsible consumption & Production to the Funds existing investment beliefs within the Investment Strategy 
Statement. There are now 6 specific SDG’s that are targeted by the Fund from an investment and ESG perspective. 

• SDG 9. Industry, Innovation & Infrastructure (covers off 11 sustainable cities) 
• SDG 7. Clean Energy (covers off 6 clean water and sanitation) 
• SDG 8. Decent Work & Economic Growth 
• SDG 13. Climate Action 
• SD3. Health & Wellbeing 
• SDG 12. Responsible consumption & Production 

 
In February 2023 the Fund conducted an ESG workshop, facilitated by Pensions For Purpose. Investment Managers 
participated and were engaged in robust discussions with Pension Committee members. The key outcome of the 
exercise was that the Fund intends to explore and agree an internal climate target with the aim of engaging 
investment fund managers to achieve alignment with the Fund’s objectives.   
 
The Fund intends to conduct an SDG mapping of the Fund every 3 years. SDG 2000. Minerva used the World 
Benchmarking Alliance (WBA) SDG2000 to measure the alignment between the Fund’s investments and the SDGs. 
The WBA SDG 2000 measures and ranks 2000 of the world’s most influential companies in respect of SDGs. These 
are seen as global companies that are likely to have the greatest potential to help deliver the SDGs. 
 

Page 46

https://www.pensionsforpurpose.com/


 

 

41 

The illustration below shows the Funds exposure to the prioritised SDGs  
 
Prioritised SDG Exposure: Worcestershire’s initial exposures to the Fund’s prioritised SDGs** (£ Million) 

 

 
 

£1,190                 £1,425                  £945                   £1,385 
 

 
 

 
 

£1,439                 £1,323 
 

 
*as defined by the SDG2000 benchmark. 

**as defined by the Pensions Committee in a Pensions for Purpose workshop in May 2020. 

Climate Risk Report 
The Fund has produced its third Climate Risk Report which was reviewed alongside the findings from the ESG Audit 
at the February 2023 workshop. 

The Fund recognises that climate-related risk is very real and can impact the Fund both negatively and positively, 
depending on our approach to managing that risk. There is sector and stock specific risk in being invested in those 
areas that include fossil fuels, as they decline in usage, whereas investing in new more environmentally friendly 
areas, such as renewable energy, can enhance our investment returns. 

The warmer the planet becomes, the risks increase much further, which at the simplest levels include substantial 
flooding of low-lying areas globally with all the negative implications that flow from that. 

The key conclusions / points were part of the report to Pensions Committee on the 22 March 2023. The updated 
Carbon Risk Metrics implies that the existing management of carbon risk in the Fund continues to exceed that of 
the benchmarks. Between 29th May 2020 and 31st March 2022, the carbon footprint of the Total Equity portfolio 
decreased by 13.63%. The Total Equity carbon footprint was 30.1% more carbon efficient than the blended 
benchmark. Exposure of the Total Equity portfolio to fossil fuel reserves is demonstrated by the Fund’s Climate Risk 
Report.  

LGPSC who produce our Climate Risk Reports commented ‘We find that WPF has made significant enhancements 
to its published documentation and governance arrangements in the past year. The Fund has implemented 12 of 
the 13 recommendations issued in the first Climate Risk Report including, publishing its first TCFD-disclosure 
report, developing a Climate Change Risk Strategy and reporting against the 2020 Stewardship Code. 

Page 47

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46425/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App4%20-%20RiskRpt2022_Public.pdf
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46425/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App4%20-%20RiskRpt2022_Public.pdf


 

 

42 

In our view, the Fund’s approach to RI, including climate risk management, is above industry average standards and 
significantly in excess of the regulatory minimum. We suggest that the Fund maintains this current level of practice 
and implements any recommendations that are still outstanding from the first report. 

The Fund’s third year overarching Climate Change Strategy is contained within its Investment Strategy Statement 
and also within its Climate Related Financial Disclosures Report. 

 

Statement of Compliance with the UK Stewardship Code for Institutional Investors 
The introduction of the Stewardship Code in July 2010 by the Financial Reporting Council strongly encouraged best 
practice in respect of investor engagement. The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA updated the code in 2020 and 
made it more outcome focussed. The Fund was successful in its application and retained its signatory status to the 
UK Stewardship Code 2020. 

Page 48

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46422/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App%201%20-%20Draft%20Statement.pdf
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46426/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App5%20-%20WPFTCFDReportdraft.pdf


 

 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  44 

7. Governance Arrangements

Page 49



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 

45 

T
h

e
 P

e
n

si
o

n
s 

R
e
g

u
la

to
r 

 

7.Governance Arrangements 

 
Our governance arrangements take account of: 

• The way in which the LGPS is governed. 
• The governance arrangements of LGPSC. 
• Guidance issued by The Pensions Regulator. 

 
Overall responsibility for managing the Fund lies with the full council of Worcestershire County Council who have 
delegated the management and administration of the Fund to the Section 151 Officer. The full Council reviews 
the discharge of its responsibilities through the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee. The Pension Board 
assists the Council to deliver efficient governance and administration of the Fund’s responsibilities through the 
Council’s Audit and Governance Committee. 

The Section 151 Officer is advised by the Pensions Committee and also takes appropriate advice from the Fund’s 
actuary and the Fund’s appointed investment advisor. The Pensions Committee receives recommendations from 
the Pension Investment Sub-Committee to enable it to discharge its responsibilities effectively. 

 

 Our current governance arrangements are contained in our Governance Policy Statement. 
 

 

LGPS Governance Model 
 

Mandatory Roles Other Stakeholders

  

 

 
 
 

Scheme 
Advisory 
Board 

LGA 
 
 
 

TPO / Money 

Helper

 
 

 GAD 
 
 

 
 

 

Employers
 
 
 

 
 

Pensions Committees 
and Pension Boards 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Scheme Member 

Other Advisors 
(e.g. actuaries, audit) 
 

 
 

LGPC, CIPFA, 
PLSA, etc

Responsible Authority: Department for 
Levelling up, Housing and Communities 

Administering    
Authorities 

GAD 

Page 50

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/about-us/useful-information


 

 

46 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

 

LGPSC 
In collaboration with Cheshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, and West 
Midlands we continue to plan to pool actively managed assets using LGPSC using the following governance model. 
 

 
 

Shareholder / Client 
 

A

u

d

i

t 

R

i

s

k 

a

n

d 
C
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e 
C
o
m 

Page 51



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 

47 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund Governance 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 52



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page I  48 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

 
 

8. Governance Compliance Statement 

Page 53



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

 

49 

 

8. Governance Compliance Statement 
 

 

Ref Principles Compliance statement  Evidence of compliance 

A Structure     

a. 

That the management of the 
administration of benefits 
and strategic management of 
fund assets clearly rests with 
the main committee 
established by the appointing 
council. 

Compliant The responsibilities of the 
Pensions Committee (PC) and its 
Sub-Groups are set out in the 
Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement. The Governance Policy 
Statement was approved by Full 
Council. 

b.  

That representatives of 
participating LGPS 
employers, admitted bodies 
and scheme members 
(including pensioner and 
deferred members) are 
members of either the main 
or secondary committee 
established to underpin the 
work of the main committee. 

Compliant The Pensions Committee 
membership includes an employee 
and employer representative. Full 
membership details are set out in 
the Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement. 

c. 

That where a secondary 
committee or panel has been 
established, the structure 
ensures effective 
communication across both 
levels. 

Compliant The Pension Investment Sub 
Committee provides strategic 
advice to the Pensions Committee 
regarding the management of the 
Fund’s assets. The Chairman of 
the Pensions Committee also sits 
on the Pension Investment Sub 
Committee to ensure effective 
communication. The Pensions 
Committee receives quarterly 
investment updates from the 
Pension Investment Sub 
Committee. 
A Pension Administration Advisory 
Forum has been established. The 
employer and employee 
representatives from the Pensions 
Committee attend the forum and 
there is a standing invitation for 
the Pension Board to attend the 
forum. 

Page 54



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 
 

 50 

 

Ref Principles Compliance statement  Evidence of compliance 

B Representation     

a. 

That all key stakeholders 
have the opportunity to be 
represented within the main 
or secondary committee 
structure. These include: 
employing 
authorities 
(including non- 
Scheme employers, 
e.g., admitted 
bodies). 
 
ii)    scheme members 
(including deferred 
and pensioner 
scheme members). 
 
iii)   where appropriate, 
independent 
professional 
observers and 
 
 iv) expert advisers (on an ad-
hoc basis). 

Compliant Membership of the Pensions 
Committee and Pension 
Investment Sub Committee 
include employer and employee 
representatives and an 
independent investment adviser. 
Full membership details are set 
out in the Fund’s Governance 
Policy Statement. 
Expert advisors attend the 
Pensions Committee as required 
for the nature of the main 
decisions. For example, the 
actuary attends when the 
valuation is being considered, and 
the main investment advisor 
attends when a strategic asset 
allocation decision is being made. 
The investment advisor regularly 
attends Pension Investment Sub 
Committee meetings. 
 
All members are treated equally in 
terms of access to papers and to 
training that is given as part of the 
Committee process. 

C Selection and role of lay 
members 

    

a. 

That committee or panel 
members are made fully 
aware of the status, role and 
function they are required to 
perform 
on either a main or 
secondary committee. 

Compliant The Pensions Committee has 
noted its terms of reference and 
the Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement. Minutes of Pensions 
Committee meetings are published 
on the Council’s website. A 
detailed training programme is 
also provided to Committee 
members and Pension Investment 
Sub Committee members. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Page 55



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 
 

 51 

Ref Principles Compliance statement  Evidence of compliance 

C Selection and role of lay 
members 

    

b. 

That at the start of any 
meeting, committee 
members are invited to 
declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to 
specific matters on the 
agenda. 

Compliant Declaration of interests is a 
standing agenda item at the start 
of all Pensions Committee 
meetings. The Pensions 
Committee and Pension 
Investment Sub Committee are 
serviced by Legal and Democratic 
Services who invite members to 
declare any financial or pecuniary 
interest related to specific matters 
on the agenda. Members have also 
from December 2021 made 
declarations regarding conflicts of 
interest. Minutes of the Pensions 
Committee and Pension 
Investment Sub Committee 
meetings are published on the 
Council’s website. 

D Voting     

a. 

That the individual 
administering authorities on 
voting rights are clear and 
transparent, including the 
justification for not 
extending voting rights to 
each body or group 
represented on main LGPS 
committees. 

Compliant Voting rights are clearly set out in 
the Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement. 

E Training/facility 
time/expenses 

    

a. 

That in relation to the way in 
which the administering 
authority takes statutory and 
related decisions, there is a 
clear policy on training, 
facility time and 
reimbursement of expenses 
for members involved in the 
decision-making process 

Compliant A policy on expenses is set out in 
the Council’s constitution. The 
Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement sets out the number of 
Committee meetings required 
each year. The Fund has an 
approved Training Policy and 
programme. 

b. 

That where such a policy 
exists, it applies equally to all 
members of committees, 
sub- committees, advisory 
panels or any other form of 
secondary forum. 

Compliant These polices apply to all 
committee members and this is 
clearly set out in the Fund's 
Governance Policy Statement and 
Training Policy and Programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 
 

 52 

Ref Principles Compliance statement  Evidence of compliance 

E Training/facility 
time/expenses 

    

c. 

That the administering 
authority considers adopting 
annual training plans for 
committee members and 
maintains a log of all such 
training undertaken. 

Compliant Regular training needs analyses 
are conducted as detailed in the 
Fund’s Training Policy and 
Programme. A log of all training 
undertaken is maintained. Regular 
updates on training are provided 
to the Pensions Committee. 

F Meetings 
(frequency/quorum) 

    

a. 

That an administering 
authority’s main committee 
or committees meet at least 
quarterly.  

Compliant The Pensions Committee meets 
quarterly. This requirement is set 
out in the Fund’s Governance 
Policy Statement. 

b. 

That an administering 
authority’s secondary 
committee or panel meets at 
least twice a year and is 
synchronised with the dates 
when the main committee 
sits. 

Compliant The Pension Investment Sub 
Committee meets quarterly. These 
meetings are synchronised with 
the dates when the Pensions 
Committee sits. These 
requirements are set out in the 
Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement. The Pension 
Administration Advisory Forum 
meets twice a year. 

c. 

That an administering 
authority that does not 
include lay members in its 
formal governance 
arrangements must provide a 
forum outside of those 
arrangements to represent 
the interests of key 
stakeholders. 

Compliant The Fund has employee 
representatives on its Pensions 
Committee and its Pension Board. 
It has established a Pension 
Administration Advisory Panel 
which meets twice yearly. All Fund 
employers are invited to attend 
the Panel meetings. The Panel 
arrangement and terms of 
reference are set out in the Fund's 
Governance Policy Statement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
 

 53 

 
 

Ref Principles Compliance statement  Evidence of compliance 

G Access     

a. 

That subject to any rules in 
the Council’s constitution, all 
members of main and 
secondary committees or 
panels have equal access to 
committee papers, 
documents and advice that 
are due to be considered at 
meetings of the main 
committee. 

Compliant All members of the Pensions 
Committee, Pension Investment 
Sub Committee and the Pension 
Administration Advisory Panel 
have equal access to committee 
papers, documents and advice that 
are due to be considered at 
meetings of the main committee. 
The Pensions Committee agendas 
and associated papers are 
published on the Council’s website 
prior to the committee meeting. 
Pension Board papers and minutes 
are equally available to all Board 
members. 

H Scope     

a. 

That administering 
authorities have taken steps 
to bring wider scheme issues 
within the scope of their 
governance arrangements. 

Compliant The Pension Administration 
Advisory Panel is attended by the 
employer and employee 
representatives who sit on the 
Pensions Committee.  
This ensures flow of information 
between the wider scheme 
employers and the main 
committee. Scheme employers are 
invited to bring wider scheme 
issues to the attention of the 
Pensions Committee through the 
established communication routes. 
The Council has included benefits 
administration, investments and 
wider governance issues under the 
remit of the Pensions Committee.  
All aspects of fund management 
and performance are also reported 
to the Pensions Committee. 

I Scope     

a. 

That administering 
authorities have published 
details of their governance 
arrangements in such a way 
that stakeholders with an 
interest in how the scheme is 
governed can say they want 
to be part of those 
arrangements. 

Compliant The Fund’s Governance Policy 
Statement is published on the 
Council’s website and all scheme 
employers are invited to attend 
the Pension Administration 
Advisory Panel meetings. The 
Fund ran an open recruitment 
process for the employer and 
employee representative 
appointments to the now 
established Pension Board. 
Contact details are provided on 
the website, so other interested 
parties can find out more if they 
wish. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



 

 

 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page I  54 

9. Local Pension Board Annual Report

Page 59



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 55 

 

9.    Worcestershire Pension Fund Local Pension Board 
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 

 

 
In addition to ensuring that at every meeting the Board reviews the Business Plans, Training updates, Governance 
Updates and Risk Registers being tabled at the next Pensions Committee, this year the Board has: 

• Monitored the Fund’s progress against the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB) Good Governance 
workstream in preparation for draft statutory guidance being issued. 

• Reviewed the Fund’s application for retaining signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s 2022 annual report. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement, Funding Strategy Statement, Climate- related 

Financial Disclosures, Governance Policy Statement, and Climate Change Risk Strategy. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s Pensions Administration Strategy that includes the Fund’s Policy Statement on 

Communications. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s Training Policy and programme. 
• Reviewed the progress on the restructure of pensions administration. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s Cyber Security Tips for Board and Committee members. 
• Reviewed the Fund’s Policy on Conflicts of Interest and the Fund’s Policy on Representation. 

Board members have participated in joint training sessions with the Pensions Committee on: 

• Does what we are paying our investment managers represent value for money?’ 
• The actuarial valuation 2022. 
• Private equity. 
• ESG / responsible investment. 

The standard agenda for Board meetings includes reviewing: 

• Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) updates. 
• The minutes of the previous Pensions Committee meeting. 
• LGPS Central Limited updates. 
• The Fund’s future work plans and budget positions. 

The papers tabled at Board meetings can be accessed from the Fund’s website. 

I meet twice yearly with the chairs from the Boards of the LGPS funds within the Fund’s pool to discuss current 
issues and to share ideas. 

Looking ahead, the Board intends to pay particular attention to the Fund’s approach to training; the implementation 
of the McCloud and GMP equalisation remedies; and progress towards delivering on Pensions Dashboards and 
Member Self Service. 

Page 60



 

 

Councillor Roger Phillips 
Herefordshire Council 
Chair of Worcestershire Pension Fund’s Local Pension Board 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Statement 
of Accounts 2022/23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 61



 

 57 

 

Contents 
 
 

About the Accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58 

 

1.  Fund Account (money received and spent during 2021/22) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64 

 

2.  Net Assets Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 (showing the  
     financial position at 31 March 2021 and 2022) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  65 
 

3.   Notes to the Accounts (providing additional information for the Fund  

      Account and Net Assets Statement) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . 67 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Worcestershire County Council 

on the financial statements of Worcestershire Pension Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 

 

58 

 

About the accounts 
 
 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the 2022/2023 financial year and its position 
at year-end as at 31 March 2023. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on 
Local Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector. 
 
The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. 
The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the 
financial year.  
 
Explanatory Foreword and a Review of the Year 2022/23 
Contains a review of the year and other general information about the accounts. 
 
The Fund Account 
Details the money received and spent within the Pension Fund during 2022/23. 
 

Net Assets Statement 
Statement showing the Fund's financial position at 31 March 2023. 
 

Notes to the Fund Accounts 
Notes providing additional information for the Fund Account and Net Assets Statement. 
 
Statement of Accounting Policies 
These are shown against the relevant note.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 63



 

 

59 

 

1. Explanatory Foreword and a Review of the Year 2022/23  

Foreword by the Chief Financial Officer 
Welcome to the Fund’s 2022/23 Statement of Accounts. Worcestershire County Council administers the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which provides for the occupational pensions of employees, other than 
teachers, police officers, and fire fighters of the local authorities within the Herefordshire and Worcestershire area.  
Worcestershire County Council also administer the LGPS for members of other organisations which have made 
admission agreements with the Fund and designated bodies who have passed resolutions with Worcestershire 
County Council.  
 

Table 1 Aim and Purpose of the Fund 
 

The aims of the Fund are to: 
•  Enable employer contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible and at reasonable 

cost. 

•  Manage employers’ liabilities effectively. 

•  Ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due. 

•  Maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters. 

The purpose of the Fund is to: 
•  Receive monies in respect of contributions, transfer values and investment income.  

•  Pay out monies in respect of scheme benefits, transfer values, costs, charges, and expenses. 

 

 

- Key headlines  
- Chart 1 shows that the value of the Fund’s net assets increased 

by £24.0 million from £3,584.6 million at 31 
March 2022 to £3,608.6 at 31 March 2023:  

 
- Income from contributions increased to £97.9 

million, from £90.7 million, due largely to the 
effect of the 2022/23 local authority pay award 
increasing basic pay, the value on which 
contributions are calculated. 

 
- Net investment returns decreased by £207.2 

million compared to 2021/22 which was mainly 
due to volatility in financial markets during 2022 
and geopolitical factors.  

 
 

 

 

 
 
  

2,000

2,250

2,500

2,750

3,000

3,250

3,500

3,750

Net Assets 31
March 2022 £'M

Net Assets 31
March 2023 £'M

£3,585 £3,609 

The Funds Net Assets

Page 64



 

 

60 

 Contributions from staff and employers were less than the 
benefits paid as well as administration and 
management expenses in 2022/23 by £33.0 
million, compared to £44.4 million in 2021/22. 
This reduction was due to contributions 
received growing more than benefits paid 
whilst Admin and Management  expenses have 
been reduced.. 
 

- Chart 2 shows that during the year a surplus 
resulted on the Fund Account (aside from the 
net investments returns) totaling £4.9 million, 
an increase of £12.3 million from the 2021/22 
deficit of £7.4 million.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Table 2 analysis of changes within the Fund's membership profile 
 

  31 March 31 March Change Change 
  2022 2023  % 
Contributors to the Fund 23,078 22,822 -256 -1.1 
Pensions paid 20,273 21,062 789 3.9 
Deferred members 23,248 23,855 607 2.6 
  66,599 67,739 1,140 1.7 

 

- Table 2 above shows that the scheme membership has continued to grow. Active employer numbers have 
increased from 66,599 to 67,739 during 2022/23, due mainly to auto enrolment initiatives and an increase in the 
number of designated employers. Given the administrative challenges presented by this continued growth, the 
Fund regularly review its systems and processes and importantly, the way it engages with, and receives data from 
scheme employers. 
 

Pensions Administration 
Throughout 2022/23 the Administration Team continued to work flexibly but maintained excellent performance 
monitoring achieving its average turnaround targets for all the twelve key performance indicators it measures. This 
is also set in a context whereby in 2022/23 the team processed its highest volumes. 
 

Activity / Process Target 
turnaround 
(Working 

days) 

2021/22 
average 

turnaround 
(Working days) 

2022/2023 
average 

turnaround 
(Working days) 

Joiners’ notification of date of joining 40 19 12 
Calculate and notify deferred benefits 30 8 6 
Letter notifying actual retirement 
benefits 

15 2 2 

Letter notifying estimate of retirement 
benefits 

15 3 2 

Process and pay lump sum retirement 
grant 

23 10 12 

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

2021/22 £'M 2022/23 £'M

(£7)

£5 

Surplus / deficit (-) on the Fund 
account 

Page 65



 

 

61 

 

 
 2021/22 2022/23 
Total Number of staff FTE 22.3 39.6 
Admin Cost per member* £25.38 £23.09 
‘*’ the lower administration costs per member in 2022/23 was mainly due to the timing of recruitment to the 
pensions administration team which occurred towards the end of the financial year. The increase in FTE in 2022/23 
was due to an approved restructure of the Pensions Admin Team. 
 
Governance 
The Council has established a Pensions Committee to exercise the Administering Authority's responsibility for the 
management of the Fund. The Pensions Committee has overall responsibility for the management of the 
administration of the Fund and for the strategic management of the Fund's assets. In order to discharge its 
responsibility effectively the Pensions Committee is supported by the Pension Administration Advisory Forum and 
the Pension Investment Sub Committee. Note, it is the Audit and Governance Committee that is charged with 
governance for the purpose of the accounts. 
 
The Council established a Pension Board in July 2015. The purpose of the Board is to assist the Administering 
Authority in its role as a scheme manager. Such assistance is to: (a) secure compliance with the Regulations, any 
other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements imposed by the 
Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme and (b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Scheme. 
 
The Fund's Governance Policy Statement is published on the Council's website. It complies with LGPS Regulations 
and is aligned to prescribe best practice guidance.  
 
The Fund also reports quarterly to the Pensions Committee on the Fund’s progress towards delivering the 
recommendations arising from the Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB) ‘Good Governance project.  

1. Management of the Fund's assets 
The management of the Fund's assets is operated through fourteen specialist external managers with nineteen 
mandates in total. The Pensions Committee is advised in relation to asset allocation decisions and the monitoring 
of external managers' performance by the Pension Investment Sub Committee, which includes an independent 
investment adviser.  
 
The Fund's asset allocation is kept under regular review and the current long-term investment allocation includes 
investments in a wide variety of UK and overseas companies, corporate bonds, corporate private debt, property, 
and infrastructure. A strategic asset allocation review took place in December 2019 and was endorsed by the 
Pensions Committee in March 2020 and the following recommendations arising from the review continued to be 
progressed during 2022/23, and will continue over the medium term: 

a) Increase in the allocation to infrastructure or a mix of infrastructure and real estate by 5% from the current 
strategic allocation of 15% of the Fund to up to 20%.  

 
b) Maintain the Fund's allocation to fixed income at 10%. 

 
c) Decrease in the Fund’s strategic asset allocation to passive equities by 5% from 55% to 50%. The active 

equities allocation of 20% remained the same. 
 

The 2019 strategic asset allocation review’s recommendation of a 20% commitment to 'alternatives including 
property' continued to be implemented during the 2022/23 financial year following investments into: - 
 
• Gresham House British Strategic Infrastructure Fund II: £38m. 
• Gresham House Forestry Growth & Sustainability Fund: £22m. 

Page 66



 

 

62 

• Gresham House Forestry Fund VI: £85m. 
• First Sentier (Now Igneo) European Diversified Infrastructure Fund III: £8m. 
• Stonepeak Infrastructure Fund III: £17m. 
• Stonepeak Infrastructure Fund IV: £21m. 

 
To enhance the Fund’s investment returns whilst reducing its carbon footprint, the Fund also  
disinvested from passive equity LGIM ‘low Volatility’ factor funds and invested £200m in LGPS Central Limited’s 
(LGPSC) All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund. 
 
Given conditions in equity markets at the time, the Fund took the opportunity to exit the protection given by its 
equity protection vehicle managed by Schroders (formerly River & Mercantile). This was fully exited early November 
and the resultant £231m was reinvested back into the passive equity market cap funds on the 10 November 2022.  
 
The following chart details the distribution of the Fund's assets as at 31 March 2023:  

 

Chart 3 Distribution of the Fund’s Assets  
 

 
 

Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) & Responsible Investment (RI) 
The Fund has continually looked to develop and improve its approach to RI and conducted an ESG audit last year 
which included mapping the Fund’s entire portfolio to the United Nations’ sustainable development goals (SDGs). 
The Fund conducted its second annual ESG workshop for its Pensions Committee on the 8 February 2023 to 
review progress against the identified actions and was found to have made significant headway. 
 
In January 2023 the Fund’s latest annual Climate Risk Report delivered a view of the climate risk of the Fund’s 
entire equity asset portfolio, accompanied by proposed actions the Fund could take to manage and reduce that 
risk. The results were used in the Fund’s public-facing Climate related Financial Disclosures for the third year. The 
Fund was particularly pleased to see that our initial focus on transitioning out of our passive mandates with the 
greatest carbon footprint has resulted in the Fund’s overall listed market portfolio now being 30.1% (28% in 2022) 

17%

5%

6%

9%

10%

0%

21%0%

5%

15%

9%
3%

0%
0%

UK Equities North America Developed Equities
Europe Developed Equities Pacific Developed Equities
Emerging Markets Equities Frontier Markets Equities
Global Alternative Indices Equities UK Fixed Interest
Overseas Fixed Interest Pooled Infrastructure Investments
Pooled Property Investments Pooled Debt Funds
Derivatives Cash

Page 67

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46425/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App4%20-%20RiskRpt2022_Public.pdf
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46426/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App5%20-%20WPFTCFDReportdraft.pdf


 

 

63 

more carbon efficient than the benchmark. The Fund transitioned a further £200m (6% of its portfolio) from its 
passive mandates into active sustainable equity funds by May 2022. 
 
The Fund recognises that its investments in private markets also have a significant role to play in addressing climate 
related issues. Building on existing assets in this space, the Fund maintained its commitment of £175m towards a 
forest and sustainability fund and £200m to a number of sustainable infrastructure and housing investments, 
evidenced by the investments illustrated above, which will have a long term environmental and social impact.  
 
Impact of Global Financial Market Volatility and Geopolitical Landscape 
Ongoing discussions throughout the year have taken place with existing fund managers and our actuary to continue 
to consider and understand the implications of inflationary pressures and geopolitical instability on financial 
markets and the wider investment landscape. As detailed above the Fund had already taken steps to diversify some 
of its asset allocations from equities into property and infrastructure as well as implementing an equity protection 
strategy to guard against major market fluctuations. This helped cushion somewhat the initial impact on the Fund’s 
market valuations, which then recovered, resulting in the decision to exit that strategy in November 2022. 
Excessive volatility in market risk is also managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of 
geographical and industry sectors and also individual securities. The Fund recognises that equity protection can 
play a key role in managing risk and is keeping it under constant review.   
 
LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC) 
The Fund’s 2017/18 accounts highlighted the government's requirements and reasoning (opportunities for 
collaboration, cost savings and efficiencies) for asset pooling NB responsibility for asset allocation stays with the 
Fund.  The Fund is a partner fund along with Cheshire, Leicestershire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands, 
Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire in a collective investment vehicle called LGPSC. The company is authorised to 
operate as an alternative investment fund manager (AIFM) and became formally operational from the 1 April 2018.  
 
Each partner fund approved the regulatory capital requirements for LGPSC and its introduction on the 31 January 
2018. As all FCA regulated entities are required to hold regulatory capital designed to protect the solvency of the 
entity, £16m of capital was introduced (“Capital Introduced”) by the eight shareholders to cover the capital 
requirement, a prudent buffer, set-up costs and operational liquidity.  Each partner fund provided £2million of 
capital on 31st January 2018, with the Fund’s share consisting of £1.3million of equity and £0.7million of debt. 
 
LGPSC has been in operation just over 5 years and the Fund has, by market value at 31 March 2023, 20% of its 
assets in LGPSC's Emerging Markets Equity Active Multi Manager Fund / Global Corporate Bonds Fund / Global 
All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund and Global Sustainable active equities. This increases to 59% when 
including the Pooling undertaken by the ‘Shire’ Pension Funds for passive equities just before LGPSC was formed 
which is included in the DLUHC pooling return. 
 
Management of the Fund's liabilities 
The Funds’ funding strategy is kept under regular review by the Pensions Committee and the Fund's actuary 
assesses at three yearly intervals the Fund's assets and its liabilities. An actuarial valuation of the Worcestershire 
Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2022 to determine the contribution rates with effect from 1 April 
2023 to 31 March 2026. Key outcomes of the valuation at that point in time are detailed below: 
 

• The Fund’s assets of £3,585 million represented 101% of the Fund’s past service liabilities of £3,562 million 
(the “Funding Target”) at the 31 March 2022 valuation date. This compares to the 90% funded position at 
the previous valuation at 2019.   
  

• A common rate of contribution of 18.8% (2019: 17.5%) of pensionable pay per annum will be required from 
employers covering 2023-26.  The common rate is calculated as being sufficient, together with contributions 
paid by members, to meet all liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date. Different rates 
apply across fund employers based on specific factors.    
 

To meet the requirements of the Regulations, the Fund has set a clear long-term funding objective; to achieve and 
then maintain assets equal to 100% of projected accrued liabilities, assessed on an ongoing basis. 
 
Phil Rook  
Chief Financial Officer 

Page 68



 

 

64 

1. Fund Account (money received and spent during 
2022/23) 
 

 

2021/22 2022/23 

£m         Notes £m 

  Dealings with members, employers and others 
directly involved with the fund     

90.7 Contributions 4 97.9  

13.7 Transfers in from other pension funds 5 22.0  

104.4           119.9 

(115.6) Benefits 6 (122.6)  

(10) Payments to and on account of leavers 7  (12.7) 

(125.6)      (135.3) 

(21.2) Net withdrawals from dealings with members    (15.4) 

(1.7) Administrative expenses 8  (1.5) 

(21.5) Management expenses 9  (16.1) 

(44.4) Net withdrawals including fund management and 
administrative expenses    (33.0) 

  Returns on investments     

37.2 Investment income 10  37.9 

(0.2) Taxes on income 11  0.1 

227.2 Profit and (losses) disposal of investments and 
changes in the market value of investments 12a & 15b  19.1 

264.2 Net return on investments    57.0 

219.8 Net increase in the net investments available for 
benefits during the year    24.0 

3,364.8 Opening net assets    3,584.6 

3,584.6 Closing net assets    3,608.6 
 

 
Management expenses have decreased mainly due to redirecting some actively managed investments to existing 
passive equity funds which by their nature have smaller management fees. In addition, due to the volatility in global 
equity markets during 2022, actively managed equity mandates where an element of management fees are based 
on investment performance, have attracted reduced fees. 

 
 
 

 
Page 69



 

 

65 

2. Net Assets Statement for the year ended 31 March 
2023 (showing the financial position at 31 March 2022 
and 2023) 
 

 

2021/22 2022/23 

£m         Notes £m 

1.4 Long term investment assets 12 1.4  

2,960.1 Investment assets - internally managed  12 & 
15 

 2,654.0 

736.0 Investment assets - LGPSC managed 12 & 
15  893.6 

13.0 Cash deposits 12  8.7 

3,710.5            3,557.7 

(167.1) Investment liabilities  12 (0.3)  

46.2 Current assets 17  55.5 

1.5 Non-current assets 18  1.7 

(6.5) Current liabilities 19  (6.1) 

3,584.6 Net assets of the Fund available to fund 
benefits at the period end    3,608.6 

 

 

These financial statements do not take into account liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period 
end. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits (determined in accordance with IAS 19) is disclosed 
in the Actuarial Statement (Note 2 to the Accounts). Note 14 to the Accounts provides details on the fair value of 
assets. 

Financial assets are included in the Net Assets Statement above on a fair value basis as at the reporting date apart 
from those financial instruments that are held solely for the payments of principal and interest (SPPI) such as cash 
and debtors which are measured at amortised cost. A financial asset is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on 
the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date any gains or losses 
arising from changes in the fair value of asset are recognised in the Fund Account. The values of investments as 
shown in the Net Assets Statement have been determined as follows: 

 

i. Market-quoted investments the value of an investment for which there is a readily available market price is 
determined by the bid market price ruling on the final day of the accounting period. 

ii. Fixed interest securities fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current 
yields. 

iii. Unquoted investments the fair value of investments for which market quotations are not readily available 
is determined as follows:  

a. Valuations of delisted securities are based on the last sale price prior to delisting, or were subject to 
liquidation, the amount the Fund expects to receive on wind-up, less estimated realisation costs. 

b. Securities subject to takeover offer – the value of the consideration offered under the offer, less estimated 
realisation costs. 

Page 70



 

 

66 

c. Directly held investments include investments in limited partnerships, shares in unlisted companies, trusts 
and bonds. Other unquoted securities typically include pooled investments in property, infrastructure, debt 
securities and private equity. The valuation of these pools or directly held securities is undertaken by the 
investment manager or responsible entity and advised as a unit or security price. The valuation standards 
followed in these valuations adhere to industry guidelines or to standards set by the constituent documents 
of the pool or the management agreement. 

d. Investments in unquoted property and infrastructure pooled funds are valued at the net asset value or a 
single price advised by the fund manager. 

e. Investments in unquoted listed partnerships are valued based on the Fund’s share of the net assets in the 
limited partnership using the latest financial statements published by the respective fund managers in 
accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, updated at 
December 2022. 

iv.        Limited partnerships fair value is based on the net asset value ascertained from periodic valuations 
provided by those controlling the partnership. 

v.         Pooled investment vehicles Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer 
prices are published; or if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment 
vehicles that are accumulation funds, change in market value also includes income, which is reinvested in 
the fund, net of applicable withholding tax. 

 

Financial Liabilities 
The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date apart from those financial instruments 
that are held solely for the payments of principal and interest (SPPI) such as cash and debtors which are measured 
at amortised cost. A financial liability is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes 
party to the liability. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value or amortised cost of 
the liability are recognised by the Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 71



 

 

67 

 3. Notes to the Accounts (providing additional 
information for the Fund Account and Net Assets 
Statement) 

 
 

These comprise of a summary of significant accounting policies against the relevant note as opposed to a prescribed 
list of accounting policies. Further information and detail of entries in the prime statements and other explanatory 
information and disclosures are as follows: 

 

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF FUND 

a) General 

The Fund is administered by Worcestershire County Council on behalf of their own employees, those of the 
Herefordshire Council, the District Councils, private sector admitted bodies with staff transferred under TUPE 
from the administering authority and other bodies in the county of Worcestershire and Herefordshire, other than 
teachers, police officers, and fire fighters. 
 
In matters relating to the management of the Fund's assets the Pensions Committee is advised in relation to asset 
allocation decisions and the monitoring of external managers' performance by the Pension Investment Sub 
Committee, which includes an independent investment adviser. 
 
The Pensions Committee consists of County Councillors and an Employer and Employee Representative. Formal 
monitoring takes place on a quarterly basis through meetings with investment managers to discuss their 
performance. Asset allocation is reviewed at least annually, and pension administration issues are discussed at the 
Pension Administration Advisory Forum with any resulting recommendations considered by the Pensions 
Committee. 
 
The day-to-day management of the Fund's investments is divided between external investment managers who 
operate in accordance with mandates set out in the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement.  
 
b) Membership 

Organisations participating in the Fund include the following: 

• Scheduled bodies which are automatically entitled to be members of the Fund. These include county 
councils, district councils, foundation schools / colleges and academies. 
 

• Admitted bodies, which participate in the Fund under the terms of an admission agreement between the 
Fund and the employer. Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar not for profit 
organisations, or private contractors undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the 
private sector. 

 
• Designated bodies which are organisations that have passed resolutions with town or parish councils. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 

 

68 

 
 

Membership details are set out below: 

 

  31 March 2022 31 March 2023 Diff 

Number of employers 208 198 (10) 

Employee Members of the Fund       

County Council  7,467 7,433 (34) 

Other Employers 15,611 15,389 (222) 

Total  23,078 22,822 (256) 

Pensioner Members of the Fund       

County Council  6,143 9,190 3047 

Other Employers 14,130 11,872 (2,258) 

Total  20,273 21,062 789 

Deferred Members of the Fund       

County Council  9,034 6,476 (2,558) 

Other Employers 14,214 17,379 3165 

Total   23,248 23,855 607 

Total Number of Members in the Fund 66,599 67,739 1,140 
 

 

The member numbers have increased mainly due to an increase in pensioners and deferred members. 

 

c) Funding 

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by employee members of 
the Fund in accordance with the LGPS Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the 
financial year ending March 2023. Employee contributions are in addition to employer contributions which are set 
based on actuarial valuations. The last valuation conducted was at 31 March 2022. The common employer 
contribution rate for the Fund will be 18.8%.  

d) Pension Benefits 

Prior to 1 April 2014 pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable pay and length of 
pensionable service. From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue 
benefits based on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is updated 
annually in line with the Consumer Prices Index. 

A range of other benefits are also provided including early retirement, disability pensions and death benefits, as 
explained on the LGPS website.  

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme actuary 
in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 and relevant actuarial standards. 
As permitted under the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement 
benefits by way of a note to the Net Assets Statement (Note 2 below). 

NOTE 2: FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS AND ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF 
PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

 
Page 73



 

 

69 

Funding Arrangements 

This statement has been provided to meet the requirements under Regulation 57(1)(d) of The Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. An actuarial valuation of the Worcestershire Pension Fund was carried out as 
at 31 March 2022 to determine the contribution rates with effect from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026. 
 
On the basis of the assumptions adopted, the Fund’s assets of £3,585 million represented 101% of the Fund’s past 
service liabilities of £3,562 million (the “Solvency Funding Target”) at the valuation date. The surplus at the valuation 
was therefore £23 million. 

 

The valuation also showed that a Primary contribution rate of 18.8% of pensionable pay per annum was required 
from employers. The Primary rate is calculated as being sufficient, together with contributions paid by members, to 
meet all liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date. 

The funding objective as set out in the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) is to achieve and maintain a solvency 
funding level of 100% of liabilities (the solvency funding target). In line with the FSS, where a shortfall exists at the 
effective date of the valuation, a deficit recovery plan will be put in place which requires additional contributions 
to correct the shortfall.  Equally, where there is a surplus, it is usually appropriate to offset this against contributions 
for future service, in which case contribution reductions will be put in place to allow for this. 

The FSS sets out the process for determining the recovery plan in respect of each employer.  At this actuarial 
valuation the average recovery period adopted was 12 years for employers in deficit and 14 years for employers in 
surplus, and the total initial recovery payment (the “Secondary rate” for 2023/26) was an addition of approximately 
£2.7m per annum in £ terms (which allows for the contribution plans which have been set for individual employers 
under the provisions of the FSS), although this varies year on year. Further details regarding the results of the 
valuation are contained in the formal report on the actuarial valuation dated March 2023. 

In practice, each individual employer’s position is assessed separately, and the contributions required are set out in 
the report. In addition to the certified contribution rates, payments to cover additional liabilities arising from early 
retirements (other than ill-health retirements) will be made to the Fund by the employers 

The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each individual employer is in accordance with the 
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). Any different approaches adopted, e.g. with regard to the implementation of 
contribution increases and deficit recovery periods, are as determined through the FSS consultation process. 

The valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method and the main actuarial assumptions used 
for assessing the Solvency Funding Target and the Primary rate of contribution were as follows: 

 

Page 74



 

 

70 

  For past service liabilities 
(Solvency Funding Target) 

For future service liabilities 
(Primary rate of contribution) 

  

Rate of return on investments 
(discount rate) * 4.60% per annum  5.10% per annum 

Rate of pay increases (long 
term) ** 4.60% per annum  4.60% per annum  

 

Rate of increases in pensions 
in payment (in excess of GMP) 3.10% per annum 3.10% per annum  

 

 
 

* This is the discount rate for the “growth pot” and applies to the majority of employers. Certain employers have a more cautious 
investment strategy, and so a lower discount rate. 

** A minimum of 4% p.a. over the 3 years to 31 March 2026 and then reverting to the long-term rate. 

The next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund is due as at 31 March 2025. Based on the results of this valuation, 
the contribution rates payable by the individual employers will be revised with effect from 1 April 2026. 

 

The McCloud Judgement 

The “McCloud judgment” refers to a legal challenge in relation to historic benefit changes for all public sector 
schemes being age discriminatory.  The Government has accepted that remedies are required for all public sector 
pension schemes and a consultation was issued in July 2020 including a proposed remedy for the LGPS. The key 
feature of the proposed remedy was to extend the final salary underpin to a wider group of members for service 
up to 31 March 2022. This applies to all members who were active on or before 31 March 2012 and who either 
remain active or left service after 1 April 2014.  The figures above allow for the impact of the judgment based on 
the proposed remedy. 

 

Impact of Covid 19 / Ukraine inflation? 

The financial assumptions allow for these factors to the degree that they are reflected in the market values on which 
the assumptions are based.  The impact of COVID deaths over the period 2019/22 will be included in the actuarial 
gains / losses item above.  The mortality assumption includes no specific adjustment for COVID as our view is that 
it is not possible at this point to draw any meaningful conclusions on the long-term impact. 

The period-end above figures allow for the impact of actual known CPI at the accounting date as noted above.  The 
period-end assumptions then allow for expected (market implied) CPI from that point. 

 

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits for the Purposes of IAS 26 

IAS 26 requires the present value of the Fund’s promised retirement benefits to be disclosed, and for this purpose 
the actuarial assumptions and methodology used should be based on IAS 19 rather than the assumptions and 
methodology used for funding purposes. 

To assess the value of the benefits on this basis, we have used the following financial assumptions as at 31 March 
2023 (the 31 March 2022 assumptions are included for comparison): 

 

 

 

Page 75



 

 

71 

  31 March 2022 31 March 2023 

Rate of return on investments 
(discount rate) 2.8% per annum   4.8% per annum 

Rate of CPI Inflation / CARE 
benefit revaluation 3.4% per annum  2.7% per annum  

Rate of pay increases* 4.9% per annum* 4.2% per annum**  
 

Rate of increases in pensions 
in payment (in excess of GMP) 

/ Deferred revaluation 
3.5% per annum  2.8% per annum 

 

 
 

* This is the long-term assumption. An adjustment has been made for the short-term salary growth assumption in line with the 2019 actuarial 
valuation. 
** This is the long-term assumption. An adjustment has been made for the short-term salary growth assumption in line with the 2022 
actuarial valuation. 

 
The demographic assumptions are the same as those used for funding purposes:   

• the start of period assumptions are based on the 2019 actuarial valuation assumptions (but updated to the 
2021 CMI future improvement tables) 

• the end of period assumptions are based on the updated assumption adopted for the 2022 actuarial 
valuation, with a long-term rate of life expectancy improvement of 1.5% pa.  

 
Full details of the demographic assumptions are set out in the formal reports to the respective valuations.   
 

The movement in the value of the Fund’s promised retirement benefits for IAS 26 is as follows: 
  

Start of period liabilities £5,148m 

Interest on liabilities £143m 

Net benefits accrued/paid over the period* £93m 

Actuarial gains (see below) -£1,726m 

End of period liabilities £3,658m 

 

Key factors leading to actuarial gains above year are: 
 

• Change in financial assumptions:  Corporate bond yields increased significantly over the year, with a 
corresponding increase in discount rate to 4.8% p.a. from 2.8% p.a. In addition, there has been a reduction 
in long-term assumed CPI to 2.7% p.a. from 3.4%. In combination, these factors lead to a significant 
reduction in liabilities. 

• Change in demographic assumptions:  As noted above, the assumptions have been updated to reflect the 
2022 actuarial valuation assumptions. This acts to reduce the liabilities. 
 

• Pension increases / high short-term inflation:  The figures allow for the impact of the April 2023 pension 
increase of 10.1%, along with the high levels of CPI since September 2023 (which will feed into the 2024 
pension increase).  As current inflation is higher than the long-term assumption, this increases the liabilities. 
 

Page 76



 

 

72 

• 2022 actuarial valuation:  The year-end liabilities allow for the final 2022 valuation results, and so will allow 
for the difference between the assumptions and actual member experience over 2019/22.  This will include 
factors such as the impact of actual pay increases awarded, actual rates of ill-health retirement, etc. 

 
 
 

GMP Indexation 

The above figures allow for the provision of full CPI pension increases on GMP benefits for members who reach 
State Pension Age after 6 April 2016.  
 
 
Paul Middleman    Laura Evans 
Mercers Ltd     Mercers Ltd 
Fellow of the Institute and                 Fellow of the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries                 Faculty of Actuaries 
 
Mercer Limited 
May 2023  

Page 77



 

 

73 

NOTE 3: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

These are events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. The two types of events are: 
 
•  those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events); and 
 
•  those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events). 
 
An entity adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events, but it does not 
adjust those amounts to reflect non-adjusting events. Management have reviewed and can confirm that there are 
no significant events after the reporting period. 
 
It is anticipated that the future value of investments may continue to be exposed to increased market volatility as 
a result of COVID-19 and more recently the effects of the Russia / Ukraine conflict as well as inflation rises which 
may impact on the value of the Fund in the short to medium term; however, it is not possible to reliably estimate 
the financial impact of this on the position and performance of the Fund in future periods.  
 
The impact of inflation and consequent price rises on fuel and the cost of living is likely to impact on increasing 
budgetary pressures and it is unlikely that the level of funding that local government bodies receive in future years 
will keep pace with pressures being faced. This will need to be taken into account for employer’s contributions to 
the Fund. 
 
The Fund Accounts include more detail regarding the impact of COVID-19, the Russia / Ukraine conflict and 
inflation in the accompanying disclosure notes concerning Funding Arrangements and Accounting Assumptions 
and the Chief Financial Officer’s foreword. 
 

NOTE 4: CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE 

Normal contributions, both from the members and from employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis at the 
percentage rate recommended by the Fund’s actuary in the payroll period to which they relate. 

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable under the 
schedule of contributions set by the actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date. 

Employers’ augmentation contributions and pension strain contributions are accounted for in the period in which 
the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Amounts not 
due until future years are classed as long-term financial assets. The contributions received are detailed below: 

 

  2021/22 2022/23 

By Category £m £m 

 Employers     
 Normal contributions  47.6 54.2 

Deficit recovery contributions 14.6 14.9 
 Augmentation contributions  2.6 0.7 

Additional contributions 0 0 
 Employees     

 Normal contributions  25.6 27.8 
Additional contributions 0.3 0.3 

  90.7 97.9 

Page 78



 

 

74 

 

  2021/22 2022/23 

By authority: £m £m 

     
Worcestershire County Council 11.2 13.8 

Scheduled bodies 68.3 72.2 

Community admission bodies 3.8 3.8 
Transferee admission bodies 6.4 7.1 
Designated bodies 1 1 

  90.7 97.9 
 

The increase in contributions in 2022/23 was due an increase in the number of members and the unwinding of a 
number of major employers previously paying three years of contributions upfront. 
 

  NOTE 5: TRANSFERS IN AND FROM OTHER PENSION FUNDS 
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have either joined 
or left the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with LGPS regulations. Individual 
transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member liability is accepted 
or discharged. Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the 
transfer agreement. Individual transfers in and from other pension funds are as follows: 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Individual transfers 13.7 18.1 
Bulk transfers 0 3.9 
  13.7 22.0 

 

NOTE 6: BENEFITS PAYABLE 

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the financial year. 
Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities. The benefits paid are 
as follows: 

  2021/22 2022/23 
By category £m £m 
Pensions 95.5 100.3 
Commutations and lump sum retirement 
benefits 17.4 19.7 

Lump sum death benefits 2.7 2.6 

  115.6 122.6 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 
By authority £m £m 

Worcestershire county council 40.9 43.5 
Scheduled bodies  61.2 65.4 
Admitted bodies 1.7 1.7 
Community admission bodies 7.1 7.7 
Transferee admission bodies 4.1 3.7 
Designated bodies 0.6 0.6 

  115.6 122.6 

 
 

Page 79



 

 

75 

NOTE 7: PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

By authority £m £m 

Individual transfers 10.0 12.7 
Group transfers 0.0 0.0 

  10.0 12.7 
 

At year-end there were no potential liabilities in respect of individuals transferring out of the Fund upon whom the 
Fund is awaiting final decisions. 

NOTE 8: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs of the Fund’s administration team 
are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to 
this activity and charged as expenses to the Fund. 
 

 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Employee expenses 0.6 1.1 
Support services 0.5 0.1 
Actuarial services 0.4 0.5 
Other expenses 0.2 (0.2) 

  1.7 1.5 

 
 
The audit fee (included in support services above) for work completed by the Fund's external auditors for the year 
ended 31 March 2023 was £36,073 (31 March 2022: £32,473), 2.1% (31 March 2022: 1.8%) of total admin costs. 
A non audit service fee of £17,000 (31 March 2022:  £8,500) included in support services above was incurred 
relating to IAS19 requirements. An additional non audit service fee of £6,500 (31 March 2022: £nil) relating to 
requirements associated with the latest triennial valuation is included within support services above.    
 
NOTE 9: MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 1998 permit costs 
incurred in connection with the investment and administration of the Fund to be charged against the Fund. 

The Code of Practice does not require any breakdown of the Fund’s administrative expenses. However, in the 
interests of greater transparency, the Fund discloses its management expenses in accordance with CIPFA guidance 
Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs. 

All oversight and governance expenses are accounted for on an accrual’s basis. All staff costs associated with 
governance and oversight are charged direct to the Fund. Associated management, accommodation, and other 
overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as expenses to the Fund. 

 

  2021/22 2022/23 
  £m £m 
Oversight and Governance 0.4 0.4 
LGPSC* 0.7 0.6 
Investment Management Expenses     
Administration, management and custody 
fees 20.4 14.4 

Other expenses 0 0.7 
  21.5 16.1 

Page 80



 

 

76 

 
*LGPSC is the governance and management costs the Fund contributes towards the pooling company 

 
NOTE 9A: INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

Fixed income and equity investment managers’ expenses are charged on a percentage basis of the market value of 
assets under management and therefore increase or reduce as the value of these investments change. Global 
custodian fees are agreed in the respective mandate governing their appointment. 

The cost of obtaining investment advice from the Fund’s independent investment adviser is included in oversight 
and governance. All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accrual’s basis. The management 
costs are as follows: 

2022/23 Management 
Fees 

Transaction 
Costs 

Performance Related 
Fees Total 

      £m £m 
LGPS Central (Bonds) 0.2 0.6 0 0.8 

LGPS Central (Emerging Markets) 1.2 0.6 0 1.8 

LGPS Central (Global Climate Fund) 0.1 0.4 0 0.5 

LGPS Central (Global Targeted Fund) 0.2 0.2 0 0.4 

LGPS Central (Global Thematic Fund) 0.3 0 0 0.3 

Nomura Asset Management UK Ltd 0.4 0.3 0 0.7 

Legal & General Asset Management 0.3 0 0 0.3 

Green Investment Bank 0.6 0 0 0.6 

Hermes 0.6 0 0 0.6 

Invesco  0.9 0 0 0.9 

VENN 0.7 0 0 0.7 

Walton Street 0.2 0 0 0.2 

AEW 0.1 0 0 0.1 

Stonepeak 0.8 0 0 0.8 

Igneo (was First Sentier) 0.9 0 0 0.9 

First Sentier EDIF III 0 0 0 0.0 

Bridgepoint (was EQT) 0.8 0 0 0.8 

Bridgepoint Fund III (was EQT) 0.7 0 0 0.7 

River and Mercantile 0.2 1.6 0 1.8 

Gresham Forestry (0.6) 0 0 (0.6) 

Gresham Forest Fund VI 0.3 0 0 0.3 

Gresham (BSIF) 0 0 0 0.0 

Gresham (BSIF II) 1.6 0 0 1.6 

Closed Mandates & one-off advisory 
fees 

0 0 0 0.0 

Subtotal 10.6 3.7 0 14.3 

Custody Fees       0.1 

Total Fees       14.4 

Page 81



 

 

77 

2021/22 Management 
Fees 

Transaction 
Costs 

Performance 
Related Fees Total 

      £m £m 
LGPS Central (Bonds) 0.2 1 0 1.2 

LGPS Central (Equity Climate Fund) 0.1 0 0 0.1 

LGPS Central (Emerging Markets) 1.5 1.6 0 3.1 

Nomura Asset Management UK Ltd 0.7 0.4 0 1.1 

Legal & General Asset Management 0.5 0 0 0.5 

Green Investment Bank 0.6 0 0 0.6 

Hermes 0.7 0 0 0.7 

Invesco  0.8 0 0 0.8 

VENN 0.3 0 0 0.3 

Walton Street 0.1 0 0 0.1 

AEW 0.1 0 0 0.1 

Stonepeak 8 0 0 8 

First State 0.9 0 0 0.9 

Bridgepoint (was EQT) 1 0 0 1 

River and Mercantile 0.5 0.1 0 0.6 

Gresham Forestry 0.3 0 0 0.3 

BSIF 0.5 0 0 0.5 

Closed Mandates & one off advisory 
fees 

0.4 0 0 0.4 

Subtotal 17.2 3.1 0 20.3 

Custody Fees    0.1 

Total Fees    20.4 
 

 
 

The £14.3m investment management expenses incurred in 2022/23 represent 0.40% or 40 basis points (bps) of 
the market value of the Fund's assets as at 31st March 2023 (0.57% or 57bps as 31 March 2022).  The cash for 
pooled property investments, pooled infrastructure investment and equity protection strategy drawdowns was 
transitioned from the overweight position held in UK passive equities, which have a very low management fee in 
comparison.  
 
The reason for the investment in pooled property investments and pooled infrastructure investments was to further 
diversify the Fund's assets whilst maintaining long term target investment returns. These investments have a J-
Curve return profile, so are expected to provide increased returns as the pooled funds mature.  
 
 
 
* The Fund has applied CIPFA's guidance 'Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs', 
which requires external investment management fees and transaction costs to be deducted from asset values 
(rather than invoiced and paid directly). These are shown gross: the application of the guidance increases 
management expenses from £6.6 million to £14.9 million for 2022/23 (£13.0 million to £20.2 million for 2021/22). 
It is important to note that the application of the guidance does not represent an actual increase in costs, or a 
decrease in the Fund's resources to pay pension benefits. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

 

78 

NOTE 10: INVESTMENT INCOME 

Income from equities (dividend income) is accounted for on the date stocks are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount 
not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset. 

Income from fixed interest, cash and short-term deposits is accounted for on an accruals basis, using the effective 
interest rate of the financial institution as at the date of acquisition or origination. Income includes the amortisation 
of any discount or premium, transaction costs (where material) or other differences between the initial carrying 
amount of the instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis. Income from 
other investments is accounted for on an accrual’s basis. 

The changes in market value of investments during the year are recognised as income and comprise all increases 
and decreases in the market value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses 
realised on sales of investments and unrealised changes in market value. 

 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Fixed interest securities  (0.3) (0.2) 
Equity dividends 11.5 10.3 
Pooled property & infrastructure 
investments 26.1 26.5 

Interest on cash deposits (0.1) 1.3 
Securities lending 0.0 0.0 

  37.2 37.9 
 

 
NOTE 11: TAXES ON INCOME 
 
The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section (1) of schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as 
such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments 
sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin unless exemption is 
permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises. 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

        £m £m 

Withholding tax - equities   (0.2) 0.1 

        (0.2) 0.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



 

 

79 

 
 
NOTE 12: INVESTMENTS 
 

  Market value Market Value 
  31 March 2022 31 March 2023 
  £m £m 
Long term Investment Assets     
LGPS Central shares 1.4 1.4 
     

Investment Assets -LGPS Central 
Managed    

Equites 322.5 306.9 
Pooled investment vehicles 207.1 402.7 
Fixed Interest Securities 206.4 184 
     

Investment assets -WPF Managed    

Fixed interest securities 190.4 0.0 
Equities 332.9 328.5 
Pooled investment vehicles 1,508.80 1,393.80 
Pooled property investments 221.9 323.6 
Pooled infrastructure investments 426.7 511.8 
Pooled debt Assets 76.3 92.3 
Derivatives - futures 198.7 0.0 
Derivatives - forward FX 0.0 0.0 
Cash deposits 13 8.7 
Investment income due 4.4 3.7 
Amounts receivable for sales  0.0 0.3 

Total investment assets  3,710.5 3,557.7 

      
Investment liabilities     
Derivatives - futures (167.1) (0.0) 
Derivatives - forward FX (0.0) (0.0) 
Amounts payable for purchases (0.0) (0.3) 

Total investment liabilities  (167.1) (0.3) 

      

Net investment assets  3,543.4 3,557.4 

Page 84



 

 

80 

 

 
 

 
NOTE 12A: RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENTS AND 
DERIVATIVES 
 

  Market value Purchases  Sales during Change in Market value 

  
31 March 

2022 
during the 

year  
the year 

and  
market 

value 
31 March 

2023 

    
 and 

derivative derivative during 
the year   

    payments receipts     
  £m £m £m £m £m 

            

Long-term Investment Assets           

LGPS Central – Shares 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 

  1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 
Investment Assets -LGPS Central Managed      

Fixed Interest Securities 206.4 0 (0.8) (21.6) 184.0 
 

Pooled investment vehicles 207.1 201.3 (1.1) (4.6) 402.7  

Equities 322.5 0 (1.7) (13.9) 306.9  

  737.4 201.3 (3.6) (40.1) 895  

Investment Assets -WPF Managed          

Fixed interest securities 190.4 191.4 (382.5) 0.7 0  

Equities 332.9 162.7 (147.5) (19.6) 328.5  

Pooled investment vehicles 1,508.80 231.7 (375.5) 28.8 1,393.80  

Pooled property investments 221.9 127.1 (30.4) 5 323.6  

Pooled infrastructure investments 426.7 106 (49.8) 28.9 511.8  

Pooled debt investments 76.3 27 (16.1) 5.1 92.3  

  3,494.4 1,047.2 (1,005.40) 8.8 3,545.00  

  

  
        

 

Derivative contracts:  

Futures 31.6 343.4 (381.2) 6.2 (0.0)  

Forward currency contracts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0  

  3,526.0 1,390.6 (1,386.6) 15.0 3,545.0  

             

Other investment balances:            

Cash deposits 13.0     4.1 8.7  

Investment income due 4.4       3.7  

Amount receivable for sales of   
investments 0.0       0.3  

Amounts payable for purchases            

of investments  0.0       (0.3)  

Net investment assets  3,543.4     19.1 3,557.4  

Page 85



 

 

79 

 

 

Prior year comparators: 
 

 

  

Market 
value 

Purchases  
Sales 

during 
Change in 

Market 
value 

  

31 March 
2021 

during the 
year  

the year 
and  

market 
value 

31 March 
2022 

    
 and 

derivative 
derivative 

during the 
year 

  

    payments receipts     

  £m £m £m £m £m 

            

Long-term Investment Assets           

LGPS Central – Shares 1.4 0 0 0 1.4 

  1.4 0 0 0 1.4 

Investment Assets -LGPS Central Managed         

Fixed Interest Securities 159.7 60 (1.1) (12.2) 206.4 

Pooled investment vehicles 0 212.8 (0.1) (5.6) 207.1 

Equities 402.4 0 (43.1) (36.8) 322.5 

  563.5 272.8 (44.3) (54.6) 737.4 

Investment Assets -WPF Managed         

Fixed interest securities 192.7 196.7 (198.6) (0.4) 190.4 

Equities 448.8 207.2 (296.9) (26.2) 332.9 

Pooled investment vehicles 1,518.70 263.4 (489.2) 215.9 1,508.80 

Pooled property investments 160.7 75.6 (18.2) 3.8 221.9 

Pooled infrastructure investments 332.6 63.4 (33.9) 64.6 426.7 

Pooled debt investments 42.2 36.9 (4.5) 1.7 76.3 

  3,259.20 1,116.00 (1,085.60) 204.8 3,494.40 

Derivative contracts:           

Futures 4.2 47.4 (42.8) 22.8 31.6 

Forward currency contracts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

  3,263.4 1,163.4 (1,128.4) 227.6 3,526.0 

            

Other investment balances:           

Cash deposits 13.6     (0.4) 13 

Investment income due 5.3       4.4 
Amount receivable for sales of   
investments 0.0       0 

Amounts payable for purchases           

of investments  0.0       0 

Net investment assets  3,282.3     227.2 3,543.4 

Page 86



 

 

80 

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market 
value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments 
during the year. The changes in purchases and sales in derivatives relate to transactions made within the equity 
protection strategy maintained by River and Mercantile. 
 
Transaction costs are not included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds, as they have been included in 
investment management expenses as per CIPFA guidance. Transaction costs include costs charged directly to the 
Fund such as fees, commissions, and other fees.   
Transaction costs incurred during the 2022/23 year amounted to £3.7 million, (2021/22: £3.0 million). These 
transaction costs represent 0.09% or 9bps of the market value of the Fund's assets as at 31 March 2023 (0.8bps at 
31 March 2022).   
 
Indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments within pooled investments vehicles. The 
amount of indirect costs is not provided separately to the Fund. 
 
 

NOTE 12B: PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS ANALYSED BY FUND MANAGER 
 

The proportion of the market value of investment assets held by external fund managers at the year-end was: 
 

External Fund Manager 2021/22   2022/23   

  £m % £m % 

LGPSC (Bonds) 206.4 6 184 5 
LGPSC (Emerging Markets) 322.5 9 306.9 9 
LGPSC (Global All World Climate Factor 
Fund) 207.1 6 208.2 6 

LGPSC (Global Sustainable Active Equities) 0 0 194.5 5 

JP Morgan Asset Management (Bonds) 0.2 0 0.2 0 
JP Morgan Asset Management (Emerging 
Markets) 1.5 0 1.6 0 

Nomura Asset Management UK Ltd 365.8 10 355.5 10 
Schroder Investment Management 1.4 0 1.5 0 
Legal & General Asset Management 1,480.10 43 1366.8 38 
Green Investment Bank 44.7 1 46.7 1 
Hermes (Fund I and II) 103.6 3 91 3 
Invesco (Euro and a UK Property Fund)  107.6 3 116.9 3 
VENN (Fund I & II) 25.2 1 18.2 0 
Walton Street (Fund I & II) 10.2 0 10.6 0 
AEW 19.9 1 18.6 1 
Stonepeak (III & IV) 134.9 4 174.2 5 
Igneo (II & III, was First Sentier) 114.7 3 133.4 4 
Bridgepoint Fund II & III (was EQT) 76.3 2 92.2 3 
River and Mercantile 223.4 6 0.0 0 
WCC Managed Account 5.4 0 5.4 0 
Gresham House (BSIF I & II) 44.2 1 86.6 3 
Gresham House Forestry Growth & 
Sustainability 42.5 1 54.6 2 

Gresham House Forest Fund IV 0.0 0 84.7 2 

  3,537.6 100 3,552.3 100 

Page 87



 

 

81 

The above excludes £1.4m (2021/22: £1.4m) Invested in LGPSC and £3.7m (2021/22: £4.4m) of investment 
income due. The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the Fund: 

 
 

NOTE 12 C STOCK LENDING 

The Fund operates the practice of lending stock to a third party for a financial consideration. Securities released to 
a third party under the stock lending agreement with the Fund’s custodian, BNY Mellon, are included in the Net 
Assets Statement to reflect the Fund’s continuing economic interest of a proprietorial nature in those securities. 
 
The total amount of stock lent at the year-end was £3.6 million (2021/22: £0.8 million). Counterparty risk is 
managed through holding collateral at the Fund's custodian bank. The total collateral, which consisted of acceptable 
corporate and sovereign debt as well as equities was £3.7 million (2021/22: £0.8 million) representing 105.0% of 
stock lent. 
 
Income received from stock lending activities was £0.0 million for the year ending 31 March 2023 (2021/22: £0.0 
million).  This is included within the ‘Investment Income’ figure detailed on the Fund Account. 
   
Stock lending commissions are remitted to the Fund via the custodian. During the period the stock is on loan, the 
voting rights of the loaned stocks are passed to the borrower. There are no liabilities associated with the loaned 
assets. 
 
NOTE 13A: ANALYSIS OF DERIVATIVES 

During the year ending 31 March 2023, The Fund used derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to 
specific risks arising from its investment activities. The Fund did not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.  
 
The value of a futures contract is determined using exchange prices at the reporting date. Amounts due from or 
owed to the broker are the amounts outstanding in respect of the initial margin and variation margin. The future 
value of forward currency contracts is based on market forward exchange rates at the year-end date and 
determined as the gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contract were matched at the year-end with an 
equal and opposite contract.  
 
Objectives and Policies for holding derivatives 

The holding in derivatives was designed to hedge exposures to reduce risk in the Fund. Derivatives were used to 
gain exposure to an asset more efficiently than holding the underlying asset. The use of derivatives was managed 
in line with the investment management agreement between the Fund and its investment managers. 

Due to the downward trends in equity market valuations at the time, the Fund took the opportunity to exit the 
protection of the hedge entered into during 2019/20. This was fully exited in early November and the funds were 
then reinvested back into the passive equity market cap funds on 10 November 2022. 
 

  Market value % of 
total  Market value % of 

total  

  31 March 2022 Fund 31 March 
2023 Fund 

Security  £m   £m   

LGIM – UK Equity Index Pooled Fund 556.1 15.7 608 17.1 

LGIM - Client Specific unitised Fund -STAJ 352.6 10 354.2 10 

LGPS Central Emerging Market Equity Pool 322.6 9.1 306.9 8.7 

LGIM – Europe (ex-UK) Index Pooled Fund 216.1 6.1 221.8 6.3 

LGPS Central All World Equity Climate Factor Fund 207.1 5.9 208.2 5.9 
LGPS Central Global Active Investment Grade Corporate 
Bond Fund 206.3 5.8 184 5.2 

LGIM – North America Index Pooled Fund 355.2 10.1 182.8 5.2 
River and Mercantile UK Gilts 190.3 5.4 0.0 0.0 

Page 88



 

 

82 

 

a) Futures 
The Fund's investment managers hold cash balances to ensure efficient and timely trading when opportunities 
arise. The Fund's management did not want this cash to be 'out of the market' and so enabled several investment 
managers to buy and sell futures contracts which had an underlying economic value broadly equivalent to the 
cash held. The economic exposure represents the notional value of the stock purchased under futures contracts 
and is therefore subject to market movements. The portfolio cannot be geared to and must have the liquidity 
needed to cover open positions. Derivative receipts and payments represent the realised gains and losses on 
futures contracts.  
 
b) Forward Foreign Currency 
To maintain appropriate diversification and to take advantage of overseas investment returns, the Fund's bond 
mandate targets outperformance against a global benchmark index. To reduce volatility associated with the 
fluctuating currency rates, the Fund has enabled the bond mandate investment manager to purchase and sell 
forward foreign currencies as a hedge. 
 
Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been accounted for at the 
spot market rates at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value cash 
balances held in foreign currency bank accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales 
outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Futures 
Outstanding exchange traded futures contracts are as follows: 
 

Assets 
  

Economic 
Exposure  

Market 
Value 31 

March 2022 

Economic 
Exposure  

Market 
Value 31 

March 2023 
Type of future Expiration  £m £m £m £m 
UK Gilt exchange traded Under one year 0 0 0 0 
UK FTSE exchange traded option Under one year 0 138.4 0 0 

EUROSTOXX exchange traded option Under one year 0 21.4 0 0 

US S+P exchange traded option Under one year 0 38.9 0 0 

Overseas exchanged traded  under one year 0 0 0 0 

Total assets      198.7   0 

            

Liabilities 
  

Economic 
Exposure 

Value 

Market 
Value 31 

March 2022 

Economic 
Exposure 

Value 

Market 
Value 31 

March 2023 
Type of future Expiration  £m £m £m £m 

UK Gilt exchange traded Under one year 0 0 0 0 

UK FTSE exchange traded option Under one year 0 (98.7) 0 0 

EUROSTOXX exchange traded option Under one year 0 (29) 0 0 

US S+P 500 exchange traded option Under one year 0 (39.4) 0 0 

Overseas exchanged traded  Under one year 0 0 0 0 

Total liabilities     (167.1)                     
0.0 

     
   

Net futures      31.6   0.0 

Page 89



 

 

83 

 

OPEN FORWARD CURRENCY CONTRACTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 
 

Settlement Currency 
Bought  

Local 
Currency 

Value  

Currency 
Sold 

Local 
Currency 

Value  

Asset 
Value 

Liability 
Value  

    £m   £m £m £m 
One to Six 
Months JPY (0.3) USD 0.3 0.0   

One to Six 
Months USD (0.3) JPY 0.3   0.0 

          0.0 (0.0) 
Net forward currency contracts at 31 
March 2023       0.0 

Prior year comparative:           

Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2022 0.0 0.0 

Net forward currency contracts at 31 
March 2022       0.0 

 

 

ANALYSIS OF CASH 

Cash comprises demand deposits and cash equivalents; these include amounts held by the Fund's external 
managers. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value. Please see Note 16 for further analysis of Cash 
Instruments. 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 
 

Cash £m £m  

Cash deposits 5.3 4.7  

Cash 
instruments 

7.7 4  

  13.0 8.7  

Page 90



 

 

84 

 
NOTE 14: FAIR VALUE 
NOTE 14 A: BASIS OF VALUATION 
 
The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the valuation 
techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and best 
price available at the reporting date. 
 

Description of asset  Valuation 
hierarchy  Basis of valuation  

Observable and 
unobservable 

inputs  

Key sensitivities affecting the 
valuations provided 

Market-Quoted 
Investments  

Level 1  Published bid 
market price ruling 
on the final day of 

the accounting 
period  

Not required  Not required  

Fixed Interest 
Securities  

Level 1  Fixed interest 
securities are 
valued at net 

market value based 
on current yields  

Not required  Not required  

Pooled Equity Funds Level 2 Closing bid price 
where bid and offer 

prices are 
published; or the 

single price, as 
applicable 

Net Asset Value 
(NAV)-based pricing 

set on a forward 
pricing basis and in 

the case of 
accumulation funds, 

reinvested income 
net of applicable 
withholding tax 

Not required 

Forward Foreign 
Exchange 
Derivatives  

Level 2  Market forward 
exchange rates at 

the year-end  

Exchange rate risk  Not required  

Derivatives -Futures  Level 2  Option pricing 
model  

Annualised 
volatility of 

counterparty credit 
risk  

Not required  

Property, 
Infrastructure and 
Debt Funds 

Level 3  Unit or security 
price as advised by 

Investment 
Manager or 

responsible entity 

Funds share of net 
assets in limited 

partnership, using 
Financial 

Statements 
published by the 

manager as at the 
final day of the 

accounting period  

Valuations could be affected by 
material events occurring 
between the date of the 

financial statements provided 
and the fund’s own reporting 
date, by changes to expected 

cashflows, and by any 
differences between audited and 

unaudited accounts  

Page 91



Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 Worcestershire Pension Fund: Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023  

 
 

 85 

 
 

Please see paragraphs under the Net Assets Statement for more detail of our basis for measurement for the 
above Financial Instruments. 

NOTE 14 B: FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 

Level 1 
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed 
interest securities and quoted index linked securities.  
 
Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation 
of the relevant stock exchange. 
 
Level 2 
Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an 
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to 
determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.  
 
 
Level 3 
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input could have a significant effect on the instrument's 
valuation is not based on observable market data. 
 
Such instruments would include unquoted equity investments, pooled property investments and pooled 
infrastructure investments which are valued using various valuation techniques that require significant judgement 
in determining appropriate assumptions. 
 
The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund into levels 1 to 3, based on 
the level at which the fair value is observable: 
 
 

  

Quoted 
market 

price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs  
Total 

Values at 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   
  £m £m £m £m 

Fair Value Financial assets         
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1,017.9 1,602.0 927.7 3,547.6 

Total fair value financial assets 1,017.9 1,602.0 927.7 3,547.6 

Fair Value Financial Liabilities         
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss 0.0 (0.3) 0.0 (0.3) 

Total fair value financial liabilities 0.0 (0.3) 0.0 (0.3) 

Net fair value financial assets  1,017.9 1,601.7 927.7 3,547.3 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 

 

87 

  

Quoted 
market price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs  
Total 

Values at 31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3   
  £m £m £m £m 
Fair Value Financial assets         
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1,056.6 1,914.6 724.9 3,696.1 
Total fair value financial assets 1,056.6 1,914.6 724.9 3,696.1 

Fair Value Financial Liabilities         
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss 0 (167.1) 0 (167.1) 

Total fair value financial liabilities 0 (167.1) 0 (167.1) 

Net fair value financial assets  1,056.60 1,747.50 724.9 3,529.0 
 

NOTE 14 C: SENSITIVITY OF ASSETS VALUED AT LEVEL 3 

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment advisors, 
the Fund has determined that the valuation methods described in Note 14a are likely to be accurate to within the 
following ranges. This sets out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 
31 March 2023. 
 

Sensitivity Analysis Valuation 
range  

Value as at 
31st March 

2023 

Valuation 
Increase 

Valuation 
Decrease 

  +/- % £m £m £m 
Pooled Investments - Property Funds 5.6% 323.6 341.6 305.6 
Pooled Investments - Infrastructure Funds 6.6% 511.8 545.5 478.1 
Pooled Investments - Debt Funds 5.6% 92.3 97.4 87.2 

Total   927.7 984.6 870.8 
 

The valuation for these asset classes are based on the volatility over three years of monthly investment returns. 
The return is based upon the market value and income and trades supplied by our underlying managers and 
grouped accordingly. 
 
Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within Level 3 
 
 

Investment Movement 
Pooled 

Investments – 
Property Funds  

Pooled 
Investments – 
Infrastructure 

Funds 

Pooled 
Investments - 

Debt Funds 
Total 

  £m £m   £m 

Market Value 1st April 2022 221.9 426.7 76.3 724.9 

Transfers into Level 3 0 0 0 0 

Transfers out of Level 3 0 0 0 0 

Purchases and derivative Pymts 127.1 106 27 260.1 

Sales and derivative receipts (30.4) (49.8) (16.1) (96.3) 

Unrealised gains 5.3 21.8 4.8 31.9 

Realised gains/(losses) (0.3) 7.1 0.3 7.1 

Market value 31st March 2023 323.6 511.8 92.3 927.7 

Page 93



 

 

88 

 

NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
NOTE 15 A: CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income 
and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying 
amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category and Net Assets Statement heading. 

 

Fair value 
through profit 

and loss 

Financial 
Instruments at 

Amortised Cost 

  Fair value 
through profit 

and loss 

Financial 
Instruments at 

Amortised Cost 

2021/22 2021/22   2022/23 2022/23 
          

£m £m   £m £m 

    Financial assets     
  1.4 Other share capital   1.4 

736   LGPS Central Managed 893.6   
190.4   Fixed interest securities 0   
332.9   Equities 328.5   

1,508.80   Pooled investment vehicles 1,393.80   
221.9   Pooled property investments 323.6   

426.7   Pooled Infrastructure 
investments 511.8   

76.3   Pooled Debt investments 92.3   
198.7   Derivatives - Futures 0.0   

0   Derivatives - Forward FX 0.0   

  49.4 Cash   51.2 
4.4   Other investment Balances 4.0   

  9.8 Current assets   13.0 

  1.5 Non-current assets  1.7 

3,696.1 62.1  3,547.6 67.3 

    Financial liabilities     
(167.1)   Derivatives - Futures 0.0   

0   Derivatives - Forward FX 0.0   
0   Other investment balances (0.3)   

  (6.5) Current liabilities   (6.1) 

(167.1) (6.5)   (0.3) (6.1) 

        

3,529.0 55.6   3,547.3 61.2 

Page 94



 

 

89 

 

NOTE 15 B: NET GAINS AND LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

31 March 2022   31 March 2023 

£m   £m 

  Financial assets   
204.8 Fair value through profit and loss 8.8 

(0.4) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 4.1 

  Financial liabilities   

22.8 Fair value through profit and loss 6.2 

227.2 Total  19.1 
 
Fair value through profit and loss is the combination of realised and unrealised profit and loss. The Fund has not 
entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as financial instruments. 

NOTE 16: NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 

In the course of every day operating, the Fund is subject to a number of risk factors arising from the holding of 
financial instruments. The main risks arising from the holding of the Fund’s financial instruments are market risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk. 

As detailed in the Investment Strategy Statement, the Fund holds equity and bond instruments in order to meet its 
investment objectives. The Fund’s investment objectives and risk management policies are as follows. 

1)   The investment objective for the Fund is to: 

a.    ensure that sufficient assets are available to meet liabilities as they fall due.  

b.    Maximise the return at an acceptable level of risk. 

2)   Risk management is mostly concerned with: 

a.    avoiding the possibility of loss, or 

b.    limiting a deficiency in the underlying Fund, or 

c.    avoiding a contribution rate increase in the future. 

 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates 
and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its investment activities, particularly through its equity 
holdings. The level of risk exposure depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield 
movements and the asset mix. 

The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure within 
acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk. There are three main types of market risk that the Fund 
is exposed to as at 31 March 2023: 

• Equity Risk 
• Interest Rate Risk 
• Foreign Exchange Risk 

 
Equity risk refers to the risk arising from the volatility in stock prices; this can be systematic risk, the risk due to 
general market factors and affects the entire industry, or unsystematic risk, which refers to the risk specific to a 
company that arises due to the company specific characteristics. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a 

Page 95



 

 

90 

security will fall as a result of increase in interest rates. Foreign exchange risk arises because of fluctuations in the 
currency exchange rates. 

The Fund reduces its unsystematic equity risk by diversifying investments across global markets, investing in over 
1,000 companies worldwide through active segregated mandates and passive pooled funds. Investment restrictions 
are built into contracts held with each investment manager to ensure risk concentration is minimal and gearing of 
the Fund’s equity and fixed income assets cannot take place. An equity protection strategy has also been 
implemented to protect against significant market falls in its passive equity portfolio. 

Interest rate risk has been reduced through the holding of fewer bonds as a percentage of the Fund’s total assets. 

Foreign exchange risk exists in relation to the Fund’s overseas equity investments. The Fund runs un- hedged equity 
portfolios and therefore is subject to currency fluctuations. It is the Fund’s view that in the long-run currency 
volatility trends to an average of nil against Sterling and therefore any hedging of currency would just be an 
additional cost to the Fund. 

The Fund contracts Portfolio Evaluation Ltd to measure the Fund’s investment returns and the absolute and relative 
risk for each portfolio independently. The Fund receives quarterly reports from Portfolio Evaluation Ltd listing 
returns and risk. The Fund’s independent investment adviser also provides a yearly report to the Pension Investment 
Sub Committee, providing details of the Fund’s risk and comparisons to other LGPS funds. 

 

 
Equity Risk Analysis 

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in 
consultation with the Fund’s independent investment adviser and Portfolio Evaluation Ltd, the Fund has determined 
that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2022/23 reporting period: 

 

  
Potential Market Movements (+/-) 

Asset Type  

Fixed interest securities 7.0% 

Global bonds 7.0% 

UK equities 12.5% 

Overseas equities 12.6% 

UK pooled investment vehicles  12.5% 

Overseas pooled investment vehicles  10.7% 

Global pooled investment vehicles 10.7% 

Emerging markets pooled equities 10.7% 

Pooled property investments 5.6% 

Pooled infrastructure investments 6.6% 

Pooled debt investments 5.6% 
 

The potential price changes disclosed above are broadly consistent with a one standard deviation movement in the 
value of the assets. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates, remain the same. 

If the market price of the Fund’s investments increases/decreases in line with the potential market movements 
above, the change in the net assets available to pay benefits will be as follows (the actual prior year movement in 
all asset classes is shown in Note 12): 

 

 
Page 96



 

 

91 

 

Asset Type  Value as at 31 
March 2023 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase  

Value on 
decrease  

  £m % £m £m 
Cash and cash equivalents 8.7 0 8.7 8.7 
Investment portfolio assets:         
UK fixed interest securities 0 7 0 0 
Overseas fixed interest securities 0 7 0 0 
Global bonds 184 7 196.9 171.1 
UK equities 4.2 12.5 4.7 3.7 

Overseas equities 322.8 12.6 363.5 282.1 
UK pooled investment vehicles  608 12.5 684 532 
Overseas pooled investment 
vehicles  407.1 10.7 450.7 363.5 

Global pooled investment vehicles 756.9 10.7 837.9 675.9 
Emerging market pooled equities 332.9 10.7 368.5 297.3 

Pooled property investments 323.6 5.6 341.6 305.6 
Pooled infrastructure investments 511.8 6.6 545.5 478.1 
Pooled debt investments 92.3 5.6 97.4 87.2 
Net derivative assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Investment income due 3.7 0.0 3.7 3.7 
Amounts receivable for sales 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.3 
Amount payable for purchases (0.3) 0.0 (0.3) (0.3) 

Total  3,556.00   3,903.1 3,208.9 
 

Prior-year comparators 

Asset Type  Value as at 31 
March 2022 

Percentage 
change 

Value on 
increase  Value on decrease  

  £m % £m £m 

Cash and cash equivalents 13 0 13 13 
Investment portfolio assets:         
UK fixed interest securities 190.4 6.9 203.5 177.3 
Overseas fixed interest securities 0 6.9 0 0 
Global bonds 206.3 6.9 220.5 192.1 
UK equities 4.5 15.4 5.2 3.8 
Overseas equities 323.5 12.4 363.6 283.4 
UK pooled investment vehicles  556.1 15.4 641.7 470.5 
Overseas pooled investment 
vehicles  576.4 11.5 642.7 510.1 

Global pooled investment vehicles 559.7 11.5 624.1 495.3 

Emerging market pooled equities 351.2 11.5 391.6 310.8 

Pooled property investments 221.9 2.7 227.9 215.9 

Pooled infrastructure investments 426.7 5.2 449.1 404.3 
Pooled debt Investments 76.3 2.7 78.4 74.2 
Net derivative assets 31.6 0 31.6 31.6 

Investment income due 4.4 0 4.4 4.4 
Amounts receivable for sales 0 0 0 0 
Amount payable for purchases 0 0 0 0 

Total  3,542.0   3,897.3 3,186.7 
 

Page 97



 

 

92 

 
 
Interest Rate Risk Analysis 
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements is set out below. These disclosures present interest rate 
risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value: 

 

Asset type Value as at 31 March 2022 Value as at 31 March 2023 

  £m £m 

Cash and cash equivalents 13.0 8.7  

Cash balances 36.4 42.5  

Fixed interest securities 190.4  0.0 

Total change in assets available 239.8 51.2  
 

 

 

 

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The Fund recognizes that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the value of the net 
assets available to pay benefits. The Fund’s performance reporting advisor, Portfolio Evaluation Limited, has advised 
that medium to long-term average rates are expected to move less than 100 basis points from one year to the next 
and experience suggests that such movements are likely to happen. 
The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant, and shows 
the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 of a +/- 
100 basis points (BPS) change in interest rates: 
 

    Change in year in the net assets 
available to pay benefits 

Asset type Carrying amount as at 31 
March 2023 +100 BPS -100 BPS 

  £m £m £m 
Cash and cash equivalents 8.7  8.8  8.6  
Cash balances 42.5  42.9   42.1 
Fixed interest securities  0.0 0.0  0.0  

Total change in assets available  51.2 51.7  50.7  
 

 
 

 

    Change in year in the net assets 
available to pay benefits 

Asset type 
Carrying amount as at 

31 March 2022 +100 BPS -100 BPS 

  £m £m £m 
Cash and cash equivalents 13.0 13.1 12.9 

Cash balances 36.4 36.8 36.0 
Fixed interest securities 190.4 192.3 188.5 

Total change in assets available 239.8 242.2 237.4 
 

Page 98



 

 

93 

A 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed income but will reduce their fair value 
and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact the value of cash deposits / cash and cash equivalent 
balances but they will have a small effect on the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the 
fair value of assets and the income received from investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits. 

Currency Risk 

The following table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure: 

 

Currency exposure - asset type Asset value as at 31 March 
2022 

Asset value as at 31 March 
2023 

  £m £m 

Overseas quoted securities 323.5 322.8  

Overseas pooled investment vehicles 576.4 407.1  

Global pooled investment vehicles 559.7 756.9  

Global bonds and pooled EM equities 557.5 516.9  

Overseas pooled property investments 104.5 90.8  

Total overseas assets 2,121.6  2,094.5 
 

 

Overseas bonds are 100% hedged to GBP as at 31 March 2023. 

Currency Risk – Sensitivity Analysis 

Following analysis of historical data in consultation with the Fund's performance measurement provider, the Fund 
considers the likely volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements to be 5.9% (as measured by one 
standard deviation). 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 
A 5.9% strengthening/weakening of the pound against various currencies in which the Fund holds investments 
would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows: 
 

Currency exposure - asset type  Asset value as at 
31 March 2023 

Change to net assets available to pay benefits  

  5.90% -5.90% 
  £m £m £m 
Overseas quoted securities 322.8 341.8 308.8 
Overseas pooled investment vehicles  407.1 431.1 383.1 
Global pooled investment vehicles 756.9 801.6 712.2 
Global bonds and pooled EM equities 516.9 547.4 486.4 
Overseas pooled property 
investments 90.8 96.2 85.4 

Total change in assets available 2,094.5 2,218.1 1,970.9 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Page 99



 

 

94 

Currency exposure - asset type  Asset value as at 
31 March 2022 

Change to net assets available to pay benefits  

  6.50% -6.50% 
  £m £m £m 

Overseas quoted securities 323.5 344.5 302.5 
Overseas pooled investment vehicles  576.4 613.9 538.9 
Global pooled investment vehicles 559.7 596.1 523.3 
Global bonds and pooled EM equities 557.7 594 521.4 
Overseas pooled property 
investments 104.5 111.3 97.7 

Total change in assets available 2,121.8 2,259.8 1,938.8 

 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is an investor's risk of loss arising from a borrower who does not make payments as promised. In essence 
the Fund's entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, except for the derivatives position, 
where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive derivative position. However, the selection of high-
quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure to 
settle a transaction in a timely manner.  Investment restrictions are listed in the contract held with the manager, 
which limit the amount of credit risk the manager is allowed to take and states an average credit rating with regards 
to bonds held that should be maintained.  
 
The bond manager provides a quarterly investment report to the Fund, which details the credit risk held in the 
portfolio. The Fund's independent investment adviser also provides a yearly report to the Pension Investment Sub 
Committee, providing details of the Fund's bond portfolio absolute and relative risk.  
 
Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and have a strong 
credit rating. In addition, the Fund invests in Cash Instruments, which facilitate management of assets under 
custody, all liquidity funds chosen have an ‘AAA’ rating from a leading rating agency. Swap collateral is held to 
support our equity protection hedge. 
 
The Fund's cash holding at 31 March 2023 was £51.2 million (31 March 2022: £49.4 million). This was held with 
the following institutions: 
 

Summary  Rating  Balances as at 31 March 
2022 

Balances as at 31 March 
2023 

    £m £m 

Cash Instruments       
BNY Mellon US Dollar Liquidity 
Fund  AAA 7.7 4.1 

        
Bank deposit accounts       
The Bank of New York Mellon  A-1+  5.3 4.6 
Barclays Bank PLC – Notice 
Account A-1 0 10 

        
Bank current accounts       
Barclays Bank PLC A-1 36.4 32.5 

Total    49.4 51.2 
 
The above assets are held at amortised cost and are either liquid or very short-dated securities in high- quality 
counterparties. Therefore, the expected loss is assessed as a trivial sum and no allowance has been set aside for 
this. 
 

Page 100



 

 

95 

Liquidity Risk 
Market liquidity risk is the risk that a given security or asset cannot be traded quickly enough in the market to 
prevent a loss (or make the required profit) or to meet the financial obligations of the Fund as they fall due. The 
Fund's investment managers purchase quoted and tradable securities. Equities held are listed on major world stock 
markets and managers employed are highly experienced in equity trading. The liquidity risk relating to the bond 
holdings is monitored and managed by the bond manager on an on-going basis. The Council also takes steps to 
ensure that the Fund has adequate cash resources to meet commitments. 
 

NOTE 17: CURRENT ASSETS 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Contributions due from employer in respect of: 

Employer 6.4 7.3  

Members 2.0 2.0  

  
 

Cash balances  36.4 42.5   

Other debtors 1.4 3.7   

 46.2 55.5  
 

 
 

The above assets are carried at amortised cost, other than cash balances and other debtors (see below), as the funds 
are due from Government institutions and therefore no allowance for expected losses has been set aside. 

 

NOTE 18: NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

*LGPSC capital advance treated as 
loan                                                               

0.7 0.7  

**Reimbursement of lifetime tax 
allowances                                                        0.5  0.7 

Contributions from employers                                                                              0.1 0.2  

Augmentation           0.2 0.1  

  1.5 1.7  
 

 

*This was part of the regulatory capital required to set up the company LGPS Central Limited. 

**This includes debtor in relation to the lifetime tax allowance limit, as the Fund pays all the tax upfront on behalf of the pensioner and is 
reimbursed from additional pension deductions over time. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 101



 

 

96 

NOTE 19: CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Investment management expenses                                                                     (0.9) (0.7)  

Payroll and external vendors                                                                               (0.6) (0.6)  

Other expenses                                                                                                   (5.0) (4.8)  

  (6.5) (6.1)  

 

NOTE 20: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Worcestershire County Council 

The Fund is administered by Worcestershire County Council. Consequently, there is a strong relationship between 
the Council and the Fund.  
 
The Council incurred costs of £1.8 million in 2022/2023 (2021/2022: £1.4 million) in relation to the administration 
of the Fund and was subsequently reimbursed by the Fund for these expenses. The Council is also the single largest 
employer of members of the Fund and contributed £11.5 million to the Fund in 2022/2023 (2021/2022: £11.2 
million).  
 
LGPSC has been established to manage investment assets on behalf of eight LGPS funds across the Midlands.  It is 
jointly owned in equal shares by the eight Funds participating.   
 
The Fund’s share of LGPSC annual running costs of £0.7 million was charged to the Fund in 2022/2023 by LGPSC 
(£0.7 million in 2021/2022). 
 
Worcestershire County Council, as the Administering Authority of the Worcestershire Pension Fund has 
guaranteed a share of the pension liability relating to employees of LGPS Central Limited that transferred into the 
company on creation. If this guarantee is called, this will be funded by the Fund. 
 
Key Management Personnel 

The posts of Chief Financial Officer, Senior Finance Manager and Head of Pensions Administration are deemed to 
be key management personnel.  The financial value of their relationship with the Fund (in accordance with IAS24) 
is set out below: 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £000 £000 

Short-term benefits* 81 106  

Long term/ post-retirement 
benefits**                                                               213 143 

  294 249  
 

 

*This is annual salary, benefits in kind and employer contributions. 

**This is the accrued pension benefits, expressed as cash equivalent transfer value.  

Governance 

The Pensions Committee Employer Representative, Employee Representative and Chief Financial Officer are active 
members of the Fund. 

Page 102



 

 

97 

NOTE 21: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year-end giving rise to a possible financial 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events. 
 
Outstanding capital commitments (investments) at 31 March 2023 totalled £332.9 million (31 March 2022: £488.4 
million). Outstanding capital commitments are reduced due to the further drawdowns made during 2022, resulting 
in some investments becoming fully committed.   
 
These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership funds held in pooled 
property investments, pooled infrastructure investments and pooled debt investments. The amounts 'called' by 
these funds are irregular in both size and timing over a period of between one and three years from the date of the 
original commitment. 
 

NOTE 22: GUARENTEES 

The Councils below have provided guarantees to a number of organisations that have been admitted to the Fund 
to fund any potential pension liability. The organisations with a pension liability more than £195,000 (which the 
Fund considers to be material for these purposes) are: -  
 

• HALO Leisure (£0.168miIllion), Herefordshire Council. 
• Community Housing Group (£3.877 million), Wyre Forest District Council. 

• Freedom Leisure (£0.323 million), Worcester City Council. 
 
 

There are a further 4 organisations with a pension liability less than £195,000. The Fund has considered various 
factors in determining the potential risk of having to fund any future liability, including risk of failure of the business 
and membership profile, and is satisfied that they do not represent a significant potential liability.  There are also 
17 organisations with a guarantee via pass through arrangements. As new contractors, these employers will all 
commence fully funded with no initial funding deficit. In line with the ‘Initial pension guarantee’ employers above, 
we are assuming that the active members would remain active on termination of the contract and be transferred 
back to the relevant school/academy or to the new service provider. On this basis, the amount for all these 
employers is reflected as nil for this year’s accounts. 
 
Three admitted body employers in the Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the possibility of being unable 
to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the Fund and payment will only be triggered 
in the event of employer default. No bonds were called upon in this financial year.  
 
Note that the existing bonds and guarantees from the previous financial year have all been discussed with the 
actuary and updated where necessary. 
 

 
NOTE 23: ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVCS) 
 
The Fund provides an in-house AVC scheme for its members. In 2022/2023 some members of the Fund paid 
voluntary contributions and transfers to Scottish Widows and Utmost Life to buy extra pension benefits when they 
retire. Retirement benefits were also purchased during the year. The contributions are paid directly from scheme 
employers to the AVC provider. Each AVC contributor receives an annual statement showing the amount held in 
their account and the movements in the year. 

AVCs are not included in the Fund Account in accordance with Regulation 4(1) (b) of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed as a note only. 
 
 

Page 103



 

 

98 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Contributions received 0.2 0.2  

Investments purchased 0.2 0.2  

Change in market value 0.1 0.2  

Retirement benefits paid or transferred (0.6) (0.3)  

 
 

The combined value of the AVC funds as at 31 March 2023 was £3.0 million (31 March 2022: £2.9 million). 
 
NOTE 24: AGENCY SERVICES 

The Fund pays discretionary awards to the former employees of Herefordshire County Council. The amounts paid 
are not included within the Fund Account but are provided as a service and fully reclaimed from the employer. The 
sums are disclosed below. 

 

  2021/22 2022/23 

  £m £m 

Payments on behalf of Herefordshire County council 0.1 0.1  

  0.1 0.1   
 

NOTE 25: CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

There are no critical judgements in appling accounting policies in 2022/23. 
 
There were no significant changes to the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting (the code). 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTE 26: ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND ANY OTHER MAJOR 
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the year-end date and the amounts reported for the 
revenues and expenses during the year. Estimates and assumptions are made considering historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors. However, the nature of estimation means that the actual outcomes could 
differ from the assumptions and estimates. 
The item in the notes to the accounts as at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment 
in the forthcoming financial year is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



 

 

99 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Actuarial 
present value 
of promised 
retirement 
benefits (note 
2) 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, inflation, the 
rate at which salaries are projected to increase, 
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on assets. A firm of consulting 
actuaries is engaged to provide the Fund with 
expert advice about the assumptions to be 
applied. 

The effects on the net pension liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 

measured. For instance:  
● a 0.25% real investment return lower than 
assumed would result in an 4.4% increase in 

the pension liability, which is equivalent to 
£157m. 

● a 0.25% increase in assumed earnings 
inflation would result in a 0.5% increase in 

the value of liabilities, which is equivalent to 
£19m. 

● a 0.25% increase in assumed life 
expectancy would result in a 0.7% increase 

in the value of liabilities, which is equivalent 
to £26m. 

Property and 
infrastructure 
valuations 
(Level 3 
investments) 

The Fund’s directly held investment properties 
are valued at fair value by independent valuers in 
accordance with RICS valuation professional 
standards, whilst infrastructure investments are 
valued at fair value by independent experts. 
There is continuing uncertainty regarding the 
property and infrastructure valuations due to the 
time that it will take to fully realise the impact of 
geopolitical issues upon these illiquid assets as 
well as the concerns as to the current inflationary 
environment. The valuations have been updated 
based on the information available as at 31 March 
2023 and may be subject to variations as further 
market information becomes available. 
Investments are valued each month as per the 
latest quarterly statements available to our 
custodian, which are usually received between 45 
and 60 days after quarter end, +/- any activity 
post statement date. 

The total value of indirect property 
investments in the financial statements is 
£323.6m (£221.9m in 2021/22).  There is a 
risk that this investment may be under or 
overstated in the accounts. 
 
The total value of direct infrastructure 
investments in the financial statements is 
£511.8m (£426.7m in 2021/22).  There is a 
significant risk of valuation updates resulting 
in a material adjustment in the carrying 
amount within the next financial year. 

 
VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS LEVEL 3 
Financial instruments at level 3 are those where at least one input could have a significant effect on the instrument's 
valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include unquoted equity investments, 
pooled property investments and pooled infrastructure investments which are valued using various valuation 
techniques that require significant judgement in determining appropriate assumptions.   As well as the details in the 
table above, further detail is provided in Notes 14a to c above. 

Page 105



 

 

 
 
 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 
Worcestershire County Council on the pension fund 
financial statements of Worcestershire Pension Fund 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Find out more online: 

www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk

Page 106

http://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

 

Funding Strategy Statement 

22 March 2023 
 

 

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (“the 2013 Regulations”) and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 
(“the 2014 Transitional Regulations”) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (all as amended) (collectively; “the Regulations”) provide the 
statutory framework from which an Administering Authority is required to prepare an FSS. The FSS 
can be viewed here: 
 
  

Page 107

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-06/funding_strategy_statement_march_2023.pdf


 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

 

Worcestershire Pension Fund Pension 

Administration Strategy   
 
 
The Pension Administration Strategy (PAS) has been produced to set out the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) roles and responsibilities of Worcestershire Pension Fund and our employers 
& establish the levels of performance we and our participating employers are expected to achieve in 
carrying out their responsibilities. The PAS can be viewed here: 
 
 

    

 

 

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 108

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/Pension%20Administration%20Strategy%202023%20with%20Appendix.pdf


 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Appendix C 
 

 

ember of the as follows: 

Investment Strategy Statement 2023 
 

 Engagement Manager 01905 844004 

This is the Investment Strategy Statement (the ‘Statement’) of the Worcestershire Pension Fund (the 
Fund) as required by regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (the “Regulations”). In preparing this Statement, the Pensions 
Committee has consulted with such persons as it considered appropriate. 
 
The overall strategic asset allocation is set out in the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) which can 
be viewed here: 
 

Rob Wilson – Finance Manager, Pensions & Treasury Management, 

rwilson2@worcestershire.gov.uk 

01905 846908 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Find out more online: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/pensions 

Page 109

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46422/PC%202023%2003%2022%20Investment%20SS%20and%20Climate%20Strat%20-%20App%201%20-%20Draft%20Statement.pdf
http://www.lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php
https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/worcestershirepensionfund/info/1/worcestershire-pension-fund/4/pensions-administration
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/pensions


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
BUSINESS PLAN 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Worcestershire Pension Fund 

Business Plan as at November 2023 be noted. 
 
 

Background / Management Summary 
 

2. A rolling, quarterly Business Plans is produced which is designed to be a one-
stop-reference-shop for everything going on at Worcestershire Pension Fund and in 
the LGPS world. 
 
3. We are not aware of any matters that need to be escalated. 
 
4. Our latest pensions administration KPIs are reassuring and in line with targets, 
except for transfers where there is a backlog because of the delayed issue of new 
factors by GAD meaning that we could not process any cases. 
 
5. We have not had to report anything to The Pensions Regulator since the last 
quarterly, rolling Business Plan. 
 
6. In 2023 / 2024 we have had 1 data breach (Adare advised us that the name and 
address of one of our pensioners receiving a pay slip had been hacked). We have 9 
IDRPs in progress and 3 cases with the Pensions Ombudsman. We have also 
received an IDRP form that did not make it clear what the member was disputing. 
 
7. Our Fund performance for the quarter to 30 06 2023 of 0.4% was 1.1% below the 
benchmark that was 1.5%. 
 
8. Since the last update we have received improved communication with our in-
house AVC provider, Scottish Widows. However, we still have this issue ‘under 
review’ and will be monitoring this closely. 
 
9. The actuarial services procurement is underway, with submissions currently 
being evaluated, with the new contract to commence from 1 March 2024. 
 
10. The Fund has successfully internally recruited to the Benefits Manager role due 
to be vacated in March 2024.  We are currently in the process of recruiting two 
apprentices to work within the Systems and Projects team. 
 
11. We have measured and reported our data quality to the regulator for 2023, and 
the quality of the data continues to remain at a high level.  
 

Page 111

AGENDA ITEM 7



 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

12. Our projects / budgets are on schedule and members’ attention is drawn to our 
list of projects in section 3 (Looking Ahead). Section 3 also provides a more detailed 
statement of progress on McCloud and the member portal. It is worth noting that: 

 
a) We are live as far as implementing the McCloud remedy is concerned. Work to 

be carried out on retrospective cases showing a potential ‘guarantee amount’ is 
on hold until further guidance is released; and 

 
b) We are currently testing the member self-service portal within the Altair test 

system and, following successful sign off, will implement a plan to roll this out to 
our membership in a coordinated manner. 
 
 
 

Supporting information 
 
• Appendix - Business Plan November 2023 
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
 
Chris Frohlich, Governance & Engagement Manager  
Tel: 01905 844004 
Email: cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury Management & Banking 
Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Rich Sultana 
Head of Pensions Administration 
Tel: 01905 643805 
Email: rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer), there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 112

mailto:cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk


Page 1 of 8 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Business Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

As at 24 November 2023 
  

Page 113



Page 2 of 8 
 

1. THE LATEST ON INVESTMENT / FUNDING / FINANCE 
 
1.1 Separate reports are tabled at Board / Committee meetings covering in detail our 

investment / funding / finance activities, our budget position, and the risks facing us in 
these areas.  

 
1.2 The 2019 actuarial valuation set the following real annual discount rates for the Growth pot 

that were updated by the 2022 actuarial valuation on 1 April 2023 by the figures shown in 
brackets: Past service: Consumer Prices Index + 1.65% (1.50%) and Future service: 
Consumer Prices Index + 2.25% (2.00%). 

 
1.3 The assumed annual Consumer Prices Inflation is +2.4% (3.10%). 
 
1.4 Therefore our annual return on investment targets for the Growth pot are 4.05% (4.60%) 

for deficit recovery payments and 4.65% (5.10%) for future service contributions. 
 

1.5 Our Fund performance for the year to 30 09 2023 of 6.1% was 3.7% below the benchmark 
that was 9.7%. Over the 3 years to 30 09 2023 our 6.4% p.a. was 1.6% p.a. below the 
benchmark of 7.8% p.a.  

 
1.6 The Fund’s investment portfolio excluding cash totalled £3,673m, and its solvency funding 

level was 92%. 
 

1.7 Relative to the benchmarks for our sectors we have achieved the 3-year p.a. returns shown 
in the right column of the table below: 

 
 

Sector  
(market value) 

Benchmark  Performance p.a. over the 3 years to 
30 Sep 2023 v benchmark 

Active equities 
(£847m) 

Bespoke 0.4% (3.5% below benchmark) 

Passive equities 
(£1,011m)  

Bespoke 10.9% (0.4% below benchmark) 

Alternatives 
(£595m) 

20% RAFI / 40% MSCI WL Min / 40% 
MSCI WL Qual 

8.8% (0.7% below benchmark) 

Fixed Income 
(£272m) 
 

60% LGPSC Corp Index / 40% Absolute 
Return +6% 

Not available as only invested Apr 2021 
 

Property 
(£293m) 

60% MSCI UK / 40% Abs Ret +7.5% Not available 
 

Infrastructure 
(£662m) 

70% UK CPI +5.5% / 30% Abs Return 
+10% 

7.2% (3.6% below benchmark) 

 
1.8 The Government issued a consultation to which we responded that closed on 2 October, 

seeking views on proposals relating to asset pooling, levelling up, opportunities in private 
equity, investment consultancy services and the definition of investments.  
 

1.9 As PEL, our previous supplier of risk and return analyses, has ceased trading, Hymans 
Robertson will be providing us with a like-for-like service. We have received their first report 
for the quarter ended 30 September 2023. 

 
1.10 Our 2023 annual report has been drafted. It is expected that the Fund will successfully 

publish its annual report before the statutory deadline of 31 December 2023.  
 

1.11 We will be exiting the LGPSC Emerging Markets Active Equities Fund and 
redeploying funds in the LGPSC JPM Infrastructure Investment Fund and the LGPSC 
Active Gilt Fund. 

Page 114

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments


Page 3 of 8 
 

 
1.12 We are on schedule for all payments (for example to HMRC) and monitoring (for 

example cashflow) activities. 
 

1.13 There are no issues with managing / reconciling the custodian accounts for 
investments including transactions, tax doc, cash controls, etc. 

 
2 THE LATEST ON ADMINISTRATION 
 
Actuarial services procurement: 
We have arranged interviews to assess those suppliers interested in tendering for these 
services. The evaluation of received submissions has been scheduled for the end of November 
2023.  
 
In order for a full tender process to take place, the current contract has been extended until 
end of February 2024, to allow for the completion of the exercise.  The commencement of the 
new contract is set for 1 March 2024. 
 
AVCs: 
Since the last update we have received improved communication with our in-house AVC 
provider, Scottish Widows. However, we still have this issue ‘under review’ and will be 
monitoring this closely. 
 
Dashboards: 
The staging deadline for public sector schemes has been put back to 31 October 2026. 
 
The LGA has published a draft connection guide for administering authorities that includes 
actions to take, decisions to make, statutory timings, and the LGA’s recommendations on 
timings that are not prescribed. 
 
Data quality: 
An extract of our data at the end of October using Insights has revealed that the quality of our 
data remains at a high level when compared to the October 2022 extract.  
 
The percentage of member records passing ALL tests required by The Pensions Regulator 
was:  
• Common data 95.9% (our 2022 score was 95.4%)  
• Scheme-specific data 98.02% (our 2022 score was 98.3%)  
In the core list of TPR ‘common data’ tests our pass rates were: National Insurance Number 
99.95% (99.95%); Name 99.99% (100%); Sex and Date of Birth 99.9% (100%); Date 
Commenced and Normal Retirement Date 100% (100%); Status 99.99% (100%); and Address 
94.06% (93.5%).  
 
In the core list of TPR ‘scheme-specific data’ tests our pass rates were Member Benefits 
99.65% (99.6%); Member Details 99.07% (99.5%); CARE benefits 98.33% (98.7%); HMRC 
99.54% (99.8%); and Contracting Out 98.76% (98.8%). 
 
We recognise that addresses held (94.06%) could do with further work to improve the data 
quality. As set out in the data improvement plan, we will be using our external tracing provider 
to support the efforts to improve this area and reviewing progress against this over the coming 
year. 
 
 
 
 

Page 115

https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/gas/uk/PDv0.1.pdf


Page 4 of 8 
 

Employer changes: 
We have been made aware of the following employer changes in 2023 / 2024: 
 

• Brookfield will be joining Mercian Education Trust from 1 April 2023. 
• The Chantry High School and John Kyrle High School & Sixth Form Centre will be 

joining the Heart of Mercia Multi Academy Trust on the 1 September 2023. 
• The Forge will be joining Central Learning Partnership Trust. 
• Astwood Primary joining Shires MAT from 1 September 2023. 
• Maid Marion’s (Rivers MAT) from 26 September 2023. 
• Stoke Prior joining Three Counties Academy Trust (TCAT) from 1 November 2023. 
• Bellrock Property and Facilities Management Ltd ceasing to be an employer from 

31 July 2023. 
 
Engagement: 
We have issued our 2023 pensioner newsletter and life certificates. 
 
On 19 October we ran a ‘pensions taxation’ webinar for high earners and those who breached 
the annual allowance in 22/23.  
 
In September 2023, our website had 6,836 (228 per day) visits (sessions) compared to 5,583 
(186 per day) in September 2022. Page views were 8,523 in September 2023 (compared to 
5,792 in September 2022). 
 
FRS: 
We are on schedule to supply employers with a 31 December year end the required 
information for their accounts. Mercer have added information about the accounting treatment 
of surplus for those employers in surplus at their year-end. 
 
Governance: 
A Governance Update is tabled at Board / Committee meetings covering our activities and the 
risks facing us in this area. 
 
The key take away is a draft Breaches of Law Policy to add to our range of governance 
material. 
 
Internal Audit Review 
We are working with WCC’s Internal Audit team to review of a number of areas including the 
system controls we have in place; data protection and record keeping; monitoring of key risks; 
and workflow processes linked to our KPIs. A report will be produced detailing the outcome. 
 
KPIs: 
We measure our performance against CIPFA industry standard targets for our key pension 
administration processes.  
 
As detailed below in Sep 2023 and for the LGPS part year 2023 / 2024, we met our average 
target turnaround for 10/12 of our key measured processes. The two that we did not meet are 
transfer related where we did not have GAD factors. 
 
In Sep 2023 there were 35 deaths, compared to the average monthly no of deaths in 19/20 of 
15; in 20/21 of 25; in 21/22 of 36; and in 22/23 of 41.  
 
 

Page 116

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/pensioners/pensioner-newsletters


Page 5 of 8 
 

Activity / Process Number 
processed 

in Sep 
2023 

% 
Processed 
within KPI 

in Sep 
2023 

Av 
turnaround 

(working 
days) 
in Sep 
2023 

Target 
turnaround 

(working 
days) 

1 April – 
30 Sep 
2023 

average 
number 

processed 
per month 

 

Joiners notification 
of date of joining 

171 94 24 40 224  

Process and pay 
refund 

            37 84 7 10 41  

Calculate and 
notify deferred 
benefits 

146 99 6 30 158  

Letter notifying 
actual retirement 
benefits 

43 100 3 15 43  

Letter notifying 
amount of 
dependant's 
benefits 

17 100 2 10 11  

Letter 
acknowledging 
death of member 

35 100 2 05 38  

Letter detailing 
CETV for divorce 

9 100 1 45 12  

Letter notifying 
estimate of 
retirement benefits 

102 99 2 15 151  

Letter detailing 
transfer in quote 

10 80 14 10 16  

Process and pay 
lump sum 
retirement grant 

132 100 13 23 105  

Letter detailing 
transfer out quote 

33 82 14 10 34  

Letter detailing 
PSO 
implementation 

2 0 11 15 1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



Page 6 of 8 
 

Activity / Process Number 
processed 

from 1 
Apr to 30 
Sep 2023 

% Processed 
within KPI 

from 1 Apr to 
30 Sep 2023  

 Av turnaround 
(working 
days) 
from 1 Apr to 
30 Sep 2023  

Target 
turnaround 

(working 
days) 

  

Joiners notification of 
date of joining 

1343 98  12 40   

Process and pay refund 244 89  6 10   
Calculate and notify 

deferred benefits 
943 99  5 30   

Letter notifying actual 
retirement benefits 

257 99  2 15   

Letter notifying amount 
of dependant's benefits 

66 100  2 10   

Letter acknowledging 
death of member 

229 98  2 05   

Letter detailing CETV for 
divorce 

69 93  10 45   

Letter notifying estimate 
of retirement benefits 

904 100  2 15   

Letter detailing transfer 
in quote 

93 43  26 10   

Process and pay lump 
sum retirement grant 

630 100  13 23   

Letter detailing transfer 
out quote 

205 72  14 10   

Letter detailing PSO 
implementation 

5 80  7 15   

 
In 2023 /2024 we have written off 6 cases (for £235.06; £986.13; £138.45; £382.05; £423.28; 
and £238.79). 
 
Regarding outstanding payments from employers or debtors for whom we have raised an 
invoice, we have no current concerns. 
 
Legal support:  
We are continuing to work with the internal legal team to procure legal services, externally, 
using the National LGPS Frameworks’ material, covering both Pensions Administration and 
Pensions Investment support. 
 
Public sector exit payments: 
We await the Government’s plans on a subject that there have been no recent developments 
on. 
 
Remedying survivor benefits for opposite-sex widowers and surviving male civil partners: 
The Chief Secretary to the Treasury made a written statement on remedying survivor benefits 
for opposite-sex widowers (the Godwin case) and surviving male civil partners where male 
survivors remain entitled to a lower survivor benefit than a comparable same-sex survivor. We 
have sorted our two male civil partners. We are awaiting regulatory guidance on our opposite-
sex widowers re which we expect DLUHC to legislate. We also expect DLUHC to legislate to 
remove the current death grant upper age limit of 75. 
 
Staffing: 
We have internally recruited to the Benefits Manager role that will be vacated by the current 
holder on 31 March 2024. We are currently in the process of recruiting two apprentices to work 

Page 118

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2020-07-20/HCWS397/


Page 7 of 8 
 

within the Systems and Projects team. We currently have the following vacancies across the 
service to recruit to: Governance Officer (that is on hold to allow the newly recruited 
Governance Lead to settle in) and Business Support. The Business Support role will be offered 
as an apprenticeship. 
  
Training: 
A separate report is tabled at Board / Committee meetings covering our activities and the risks 
that we face in this area. 
 
The key take away is that we have run a number of webinars for members. 
 
3 LOOKING AHEAD 
 
The overview table below summarises the work that we are doing to achieve particular aims.  
 
Since the August 2023 Business Plan, we have: 
 
• Removed project 32 (Reprocure pension admin system) as it has been completed. 
• Merged project 9 (Increase assets managed by LGPS Central Limited) into project 5/6 

(Review of Asset Allocation / ISS). 
• Added project 38 (Stewardship Code Application). 
 
To update members on two of our major, current projects the overview table is preceded by a 
more detailed statement of progress on McCloud and the member portal. 
 
Note: For us, a project is a piece of work that is something that we would not do on a daily 
basis like processing a retirement. Some of our projects recur annually and these are shown 
as unshaded. Shaded projects are one-off projects.  
 
McCloud (project 33):  
The project is all about applying a McCloud underpin to in-scope members. We need to identify 
any rectification due and put in place procedures to identify affected members as part of 
business as usual. 
 
The project is currently on schedule, requiring no corrective action.  
 
Progress made within the period 3 October 2023 to 1 November 2023 includes: 
 

• McCloud software as supplied by Heywood tested and demonstrated to 
management team. 

• Being live re implementing the remedy for members who retire (or have a change in 
status or request an illustration) from 1 October.  

• Identifying 705 members, as of 3 November 2023, who have a potential guarantee. 
This number may fluctuate as work on ‘in scope’ members continues, and additional 
reports are being implemented. 

•     Advising our pensioners members through our 2023 pensioner newsletter of the 
need to contact us if before 1 April 2012 they were either an employee member of a 
different public service pension scheme or an employee member of the LGPS with 
in a different LGPS fund and have not transferred those benefits into 
Worcestershire Pension Fund, as we will not be aware of those details and cannot 
therefore bring them ‘in scope’. 

•     Adding a news article about McCloud on our website. 
 
 
 

Page 119

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/pensioners/pensioner-newsletters
https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/news-0


Page 8 of 8 
 

The next steps and activities for the next period include: 
 

• Quantify potential number of queries to resolve for each status of member. 
• Review Altair calculation documents for any changes because of the McCloud 

underpin. 
• Consider ongoing impact and resourcing considerations on BAU. 

 
We are currently awaiting on guidance on how to proceed with retrospective cases. This will be 
processed using the resource we currently have in the team. 
 
We plan to ask employers to issue an ‘all staff’ email by 31 December 2023 to advise their 
employees how the changes to the LGPS introduced by the new legislation on McCloud affect 
them. 
 
We plan to issue a deferred member newsletter by post in December to advise them how the 
changes to the LGPS introduced by the new legislation on McCloud affect them. 
 
The member portal (project 3): 
The project is all about implementing self-service functionality which enables members to view 
their benefits online through a secure portal and to carry out certain processes. 
 
Docmail and bulk communication options are being investigated alongside the member portal. 
 
Following on from the last update the project continues to be on schedule. 
 
Progress made within the period 3 October 2023 to 1 November 2023 includes: 
 

•  Pre-production environment installed and branding applied. 
•  Access to admin site provided. 
•  Access to knowledge portal provided. 
•  User acceptance testing plan created. 
•  URL and email address options presented after advice from ICT and Heywood. 
•  WCC Joint Impact Assessment including Data Protection completed. 

 
The next steps and activities for the next period include: 
 

•  User Acceptance testing to continue, including technical aspects (e.g. Reporting and 
Admin). 

•  Changes and issues logged with Heywood. 
•  Live testing plan developed.  
•  Meet with representatives from other funds to share their experience and lessons 

learned. 
•  Preparation and planning for Live launch to membership. 

 
We are testing the Heywood product in the Altair test system after which we will link the 
product to our live system. Members will at that point not be able to sign up to the portal, as we 
will not publicise the portal’s URL on our website or elsewhere to allow us to conduct further 
testing on its functionality before we roll it out in a phased manner. 
 
The roll out could for example be something like internal project team, all Fund staff, 
pensioners who are OK with emails announcing their annual newsletter, any member visiting 
our website, employers via ‘all staff emails’, bulk emails from Altair to those with an email 
address on their record, new starters, any member we are processing work for e.g., processing 
a retirement, outbound P60s, outbound bulk deferred benefit statements, outbound bulk active 
benefit statements, outbound bulk  pensioner newsletter, annual reminder, etc. 

Page 120



Projects Nov 2023 Started Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24 Jun 24 Jul 24 Aug 24 Sep 24 Oct 24 Nov 24 Dec 24 Jan 25 Comments

11 LGPSC budget Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee √ to date and scheduled

12 Annual Report & Accounts / associated docs (31 12 23) Cttee Cttee 2023 on schedule

15 ONS Inc / Expend return ¼ rtn ¼ rtn ¼ rtn ¼ rtn ¼ rtn √ to date and scheduled

16/17 DLUHC SF3 return and AUM (31 08 24) Annual √2023 and 2024 scheduled

18 TPR Annual return /survey Annual Survey Annual scheduled

19 CEM investment benchmarking (31 08 24) Annual √2023 and 2024 scheduled

2 GMP equalisation TBD awaiting guidance NB non-club TVouts 1990 to 1997 
in scope

4 Valuation / FSS / pots / admiss  term etc policies Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee √2022 actuarial valuation

10 Pension Administration Strategy review (01 04 24) consult Cttee publish √2023 and 2024 scheduled

13 Review data quality Insight 
results scheduled and Data Improvement Plan in place

25 Revalue CARE accounts (30 04 2024) System 
config. √2023 and 2024 scheduled

26 Provide FRS info admit
bods Sch Millbro

ok Coll Ac admit
bods √ to date and scheduled 

3 Branding & digital strategy (Member Portal) Oct-18 testing started

20 Monitor employer covenants / pots / conts Cttee ask ers Cttee reset 
erconts Cttee Cttee Cttee ask ers Pfaroe in place and 'All about investment pots' 

updated

21 Deferred annual benefit statements (31 08 24) Annual Q
manag √2023 and 2024 scheduled

22 Employee annual benefit statements (31 08 24) Y/End Annual Q
manag √2023 and 2024 scheduled

23 Pensioner P60s (30 04 24) Annual Q
manag √2023 and 2024 scheduled

24 Payslips reflecting pension increase (30 04 24) Annual √2023 and 2024 scheduled

27 Pension Savings Statements (06 10 24) Annual √2023 and 2024 scheduled

29 Pensioner newsletter / life cert (30 11 24) Annual Annual √2023 and 2024 scheduled

28 /30 Good Governance incl TPR TBD Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Breaches of law policy drafted

33 McCloud Aug-20 Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Remedy live, comms on website and pensioner 
newsletter issued

5/6 Review of Asset Allocation / ISS (31 05 24) Sub Cttee Cttee Cttee 
Sub Sub Cttee Sub Cttee √2023 and 2024 scheduled

34 Progress the Fund's RI journey Jan 20 Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Employee members surveyed

35 Pensions Dashboards (31 10 2026) Feb 22 Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Cttee Heywood asked for data quality report

37 Reprocurements other than pensions admin system Equity 
protect Legal

CFH 
Docmai
l

Docmail / inv perform re-procured, actuarial services 
in progress. Custodian services being investigated.

38 Stewardship Code application Submit Cttee Cttee Publish √2023 and 2024 scheduled

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



        
 

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
GOVERNANCE UPDATE 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Worcestershire Pension Fund 

Governance Update and the Fund’s draft Breaches of Law Policy be noted. 
 
Background 
 

2. The Fund has been updating its Business Plan and Risk Register, its key operational 
/ planning / management documents, quarterly since March 2019.  
 
3. Following the March 2023 review of the Fund’s Risk Register, progress in developing 
mitigating action for five risks will henceforth be reported in our Governance Updates, so 
that members can assess whether further mitigating actions are appropriate: 

 
a) WPF 26 Fraud by staff; 
b) WPF 15 Failure of the actuary to deliver the services contracted;   
c) WPF 01 Failure of governance arrangements to match up to recommended best 

practice; 
d) WPF 17 Failure of custodian to deliver the services contracted; and 
e) WPF 04 Not having an established and meaningful Business Plan / Pension 

Administration Strategy. 
 

4. Progress in mitigating the five risks since the last quarterly Board / Committee cycle 
has included: 

 
a) Drafting a Breaches of Law Policy to add to our range of governance material 

(attached as an Appendix); 
b) Arranging the candidate interviews for reprocuring actuarial services; and 
c) Adding more detail to the Business Plan projects appendix. 

 
5. It is also worth noting that our Good Governance Position Statement August 2023 
remains an up-to-date statement of where we are as we await statutory guidance. 

 
 

Supporting information 
 

• Appendix - Draft Breaches of Law Policy November 2023 
 
 

 
Contact Points 
 
Chris Frohlich, Governance & Engagement Manager  
Tel: 01905 844004 
Email: cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Page 123

AGENDA ITEM 8

mailto:cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury Management & Banking 
Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Rich Sultana 
Head of Pensions Administration 
Tel: 01905 643805 
Email: rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper Officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer), there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 
 
 

Page 124

mailto:SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BREACHES OF 
LAW POLICY 

Page 125



Page 2 of 8  

 

Contents 
Management summary ...................................................................................................................... 3 
Background ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
What constitutes a breach of law? ..................................................................................................... 4 
Who is responsible for reporting breaches of law? .............................................................................. 4 
How are records of breaches of law maintained? ............................................................................... 5 
When a breach of law may be considered reportable / material ......................................................... 6 
Reporting a breach of law to TPR ...................................................................................................... 6 
Whistleblowing .................................................................................................................................. 7 

 

Page 126



Page 3 of 8  

Management summary 
We are aware that, despite our best efforts, from time-to-time things can go wrong and that, 
despite having relevant training in place, we are all open to human error. Whenever something to 
do with the law is broken, we must ensure that we do everything that is required of us, and we 
do this by having a breaches of law policy. We make our employers and our internal staff aware 
of the policy and that, as soon as something does not happen as it should, they have a 
responsibility to report it. 

 
Initially, the Head of Pensions Administration will receive an email of a suspected breach of law 
from the reporter. The Head of Pensions Administration will involve relevant officers, who may 
differ dependent on the circumstances, in investigating the suspected breach of law in line with 
The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) expectations, using the (see paras 35 to 45) traffic light 
framework that TPR have released. Our Pension Board and Pensions Committee will be advised 
as appropriate. 
 
The flowchart below summaries the process, with more detail provided in the later sections. 

 
 

Page 127

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/scheme-management-detailed-guidance/communications-and-reporting-detailed-guidance/complying-with-the-duty-to-report-breaches-of-the-law
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/scheme-management-detailed-guidance/communications-and-reporting-detailed-guidance/complying-with-the-duty-to-report-breaches-of-the-law


Page 4 of 8  

Background  
In April 2015 TPR published Code of Practice no 14 (the Code) concerning the governance and 
administration of public service pension schemes. Paragraphs 241 to 275 cover reporting 
breaches of the law. These paragraphs supplement the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) Section 
70(1), Section 70(2) and Section 311. 

 

As part of conducting our affairs in a responsible manner and ensuring that our activities are 
open and effectively managed, this document sets out our policy and procedures for identifying, 
monitoring and, where appropriate, reporting breaches of law. 

This policy will be reviewed by the Fund at least annually. 

The Fund will monitor all breaches of law and will ensure that adequate resources are allocated 
to managing and administering this process. 

The Head of Pensions Administration will be responsible for the management and execution of 
this breaches of law policy. 

 
The introduction of our breaches of law policy will deliver an additional tool for the Fund to 
reduce risk and provide an early warning of possible malpractice. It provides an opportunity to 
learn from mistakes and review and improve processes in the areas where the breach 
occurred. 

 
What constitutes a breach of law? 
A breach of the law is when a legal duty which is relevant to the administration of the Fund 
has not been, or is not being, complied with. It can encompass many aspects of the 
management and administration of the Fund, including failures such as: 

• To do anything required under overriding legislation, applicable statutory guidance, 
or codes of practice. 

• To maintain accurate records. 
• To act on any fraudulent act or omission that is identified. 
• Of an employer to pay over member or employer contributions on time. 
• To pay member benefits either accurately or in a timely manner. 
• To issue annual benefit statements on time. 
• Failure to comply with the Fund’s policies, for example, Funding Strategy Statement or 

Pension Administration Strategy. 
 

Who is responsible for reporting breaches of law? 
Everyone involved with the Fund has a responsibility to take a pro-active approach to the 
identification, management and reporting of all breaches of law that have occurred, or are likely to 
occur, i.e.: 

• Members of the Pensions Committee. 
• Members of the Pension Board. 
• Officers of the Fund. 
• All participating employers in the Fund. 
• Professional advisers: including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers, and fund managers. 

Page 128

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/codes-of-practice/code-14-public-service-pension-code-of-practice
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/section/70
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/section/70
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/section/70A
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/section/311


Page 5 of 8  

How are records of breaches of law maintained? 
All breaches or suspected breaches will be recorded in the Fund’s breaches of law log 
which the Head of Pensions Administration will maintain. The log has the following fields: 

 

 
The WCC form referred to in columns H and I is available via MYIT or by emailing  
dataprotection@worcestershire.gov.uk. 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 129

mailto:dataprotection@worcestershire.gov.uk


Page 6 of 8  

The Head of Pensions Administration will be responsible for: 

• Investigating the circumstances of all reported breaches and likely breaches. 
• Ensuring, where necessary, that an action plan is put in place and acted on to 

correct the identified breach and ensure further breaches of a similar nature do not 
reoccur. 

• Reporting to the Pensions Committee and Pension Board: Updates required to the 
breaches of law log will be reported to the Pensions Committee and Pension Board at its 
next meeting. 

 
If the next scheduled meetings of the Pensions Committee and Pension Board are more than 30 days 
away, the Head of Pensions Administration will consult with the Chairs of the Pensions Committee 
and Pension Board within the 30-day period and after (verbally if necessary) consultation with the 
CFO, Head of Financial Planning and Pension Investments, and the Assistant Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services. 

 
A record of all material breaches experienced in the reporting period will also be included in the 
Fund’s annual report. 

 
When a breach of law may be considered reportable / material 
TPR has produced the following general, themed guidance to assist schemes in identifying the 
severity of a breach and whether it should then be reported: 
 
• Cause – dishonesty, poor governance, or administration, slow or inappropriate decision-making 

practices, incomplete or inaccurate advice, or acting in deliberate contravention of the law. 
• Effect – Pension Board members not having appropriate degree of knowledge, Pension Board / 

Pensions Committee members having a conflict of interest, inadequate controls, inaccurate 
information relating to benefits and scheme administration, or misappropriation of assets. 

• Reaction – delayed and ineffective action to remedy the breach, failure to pursue corrective 
action, or failure to notify any scheme members affected appropriately. 

• Wider implications – indication that the fact a breach has occurred makes it more likely that other 
breaches will emerge of similar circumstances in the future. 

 
Not all breaches of law will need to be reported. Where prompt and effective action is taken to 
investigate and correct the breach and its causes and, where appropriate, notify any affected 
members, TPR will not typically consider this to be of material significance. 

In the first instance the Head of Pensions Administration should be informed of all potential 
breaches. However, if the suspicion is around theft, fraud, or other serious offences where 
discussions may alert those implicated or impede the actions of the policy or a regulatory 
authority, the reporter should go to TPR directly and at the earliest opportunity. 

 
 

Reporting a breach of law to TPR 
A material breach of law must be notified to TPR as soon as reasonably practicable and no 
later than one month after becoming aware of the breach or likely breach. 
 
Where it is considered that a breach is of such significance that TPR is required to intervene 
as a matter of urgency (for example, serious fraud) the matter should be brought to the 
attention of TPR immediately. 
 

Page 130



Page 7 of 8  

Reports must be submitted in writing and can be sent by post or electronically, including by 
email. Wherever possible reporters should use the standard format available via the 
Exchange online service on the regulator’s website: 

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/trustees/exchange.aspx 
 

The report should be dated and include as a minimum: 

• Full name of the Fund. 
• Description of the breach or breaches. 
• Any relevant dates. 
• Name of the employer (where known). 
• Name, position and contact details of the reporter, and 
• Role of the reporter in relation to the Fund. 

Additional information that would help the regulator 

includes: 

• The reason the breach is thought to be of material significance to the regulator. 
• The address of the Fund. 
• The contact details of the Fund (if different to the Fund address). 
• The Fund’s registry number (if available), and 
• Whether the concern has been reported before. 

 
Reporters should draw attention to matters considered serious by marking them as urgent upon 
submission. 

 
Reporters should ensure they receive an acknowledgement for any report sent. TPR will acknowledge 
all reports within 5 working days or receipt. Reporters are not typically updated on progress of the 
report made unless further information is requested from the reporter to help the regulator exercise its 
functions. In cases of potential dishonesty, the reporter should avoid, where possible, checks which 
might alert those implicated. 

 
Whistleblowing 
It is a statutory duty to report breaches of the law. In some instances, this may involve a 
duty to whistle-blow by an employee of the Fund. The Pensions Act 2004 makes clear that 
the statutory duty to report overrides any other duties a reporter may have such as 
confidentiality and that any such duty is not breached by making a report. The statutory 
duty to report does not, however, override ‘legal privilege’. Therefore, oral, and written 
communications between the Fund, Pensions Committee or Pension Board and a 
professional legal adviser do not have to be disclosed. Given the statutory duty that exists, 
in exercising this breaches of law policy, the Fund will ensure it adheres to the 
requirements of the Employment Rights Act 1996 in protecting an employee making a 
whistle-blowing disclosure to TPR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/trustees/exchange.aspx
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/18/contents


Page 8 of 8  

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 
Worcestershire Pension Fund Breaches of Law Policy 
Version: Final draft for approval by Pension Board 
Author: Emily Stanfield, Governance Lead 
Dated: 06 11 23 
Signed off at: 

Page 132



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
RISK REGISTER  
 
 
Recommendation 

 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the November 2023 

Worcestershire Pension Fund Risk Register be noted. 
 

Background and update 
 

2. The Risk Register is kept under regular review and, following the November 2023 
review by officers, an updated Risk Register is attached as an Appendix. 
 
3. Following the February 2023 review of the Register that resulted in the number of 
risks being included in the Register being reduced from 32 to 16, 5 risks are being 
covered in the Governance Update, and 4 risks are being covered in the Training 
Update. 

 
4. The November 2023 review added no new risks and no changes to the risk scores.  

 
5. Mitigating actions have been updated for: 

 
a) new measures e.g. reviewing the responses from our stewardship survey of our 

employee members, planning a further RI & ESG focussed workshop for 
members on 31 January 2024, testing the member portal to Altair, and changing 
who is responsible for employer admissions; and 

 
b) previous measures that have been completed / developed further / have 

changed timelines e.g. we are live re implementing the McCloud remedy, have 
covered off our legislative communication to pensioners obligations, and have 
reviewed our data against TPR categories. 

 
 

Supporting information 
 
• Appendix - WPF Risk Register November 2023  
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
 
Chris Frohlich, Governance & Engagement Manager  
Tel: 01905 844004 
Email: cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury Management & Banking 

Page 133

AGENDA ITEM 9

mailto:cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Rich Sultana 
Head of Pensions Administration 
Tel: 01905 643805 
Email: rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 134

mailto:SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Register 
 

As at November 2023 
 
 
 
 
 

About this Risk Register 
 
The following colour coding is used for the 18 residual risk scores: 
 

• Red       > = 45                   (03 risks) 
• Amber >= 25 but < 45    (11 risks) 
• Green   < 25                      (04 risks) 

 
 
Risk scores can range from 0 to 100 and are derived by multiplying an impact score by a 
probability score as follows: 
 
Impact = 0 (none); 5 (minor); 15 (moderate); 20 (major); or 25 (severe). 
 
Probability = 0 (no chance); 1 (25% likely to happen); 2 (50:50); 3 (75% likely); or 4 (certain 
to happen). 
 
The far-right column, Residual Risk Score, includes upwards or downwards arrows if the 
score has changed since the previous Risk Register (as at August 2023 in this case). 
 
In the far-right column, Residual Risk Score, the scores in brackets below the current score 
indicate what the previous score was, if the score has changed since the previous Risk 
Register. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



The 18 risks logged in this register are in highest Residual Risk Score order (shown in 
brackets): 
 

1. WPF 35 Being an LGPSC partner fund. (75) 
2. WPF 12 Mismatch in asset returns and liability movements. (50) 
3. WPF 34 Inflation. (50) 
4. WPF 23 Employers cannot pay their contributions or take on an inappropriate level of 

risk or their contributions take them too close to limits of their available expenditure. 
(40) 

5. WPF 07 Future change to LGPS regulations or other legislation, for example from 
government legislation on minimum normal pension age or exit payments. (40) 

6. WPF 33 Climate change. (40) 
7. WPF 24 Employers having insufficient skilled resources to supply our data 

requirements. (40) 
8. WPF 36 WCC procurement policies hindering the Fund's ability to secure key 

investment services efficiently. (30) 
9. WPF 11 Failure to pool assets using LGPS Central Limited. (30)   
10. WPF 06 Fair Deal consultation proposals being implemented. (30) 
11. WPF 20 Having insufficient resources in pensions administration. (25) 
12. WPF 28 Cyber-attack leading to loss of personal data or ransom, or our hardware 

being disabled or from financial loss from our banking / custody arrangements being 
compromised. (25) 

13. WPF 08 Failure to appoint suitable investment managers and review their 
performance / markets / contracts. (25) 

14. WPF 19 Failure to have an appropriate pensions admin system. (25) 
15. WPF 30 Failure to maintain the quality of our member data. (15) 
16. WPF 13 Liquidity / cash flow is not managed correctly. (15) 
17. WPF 14 Failure to exercise proper stewardship of our assets. (15) 
18. WPF 29 Failure to deliver member communications in line with regulatory 

requirements, for example the 31 August annual benefit statement deadline. (5) 

Page 136



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

In this risk area the Pension Investment Sub 
Committee, supported by advice from our 
independent investment adviser, monitors market 
conditions; emerging legislation that could affect us 
(in areas such as our asset allocation, climate 
change, and asset pooling); and the performance of 
our investment managers. The Pensions Committee 
and Officers supported by advice from our 
investment adviser review our key governance 
documents that include our Climate Change Risk 
Strategy / Funding Strategy Statement / Investment 
Strategy Statement along with quarterly risk, return 
and ESG analyses of our investments. We are a 
working member and shareholder of LGPSC: 
Shareholders meetings and the Practitioners 
Advisory Form (PAF) meetings with the pool's 
investment managers are taking place regularly. The 
pool has a number of work streams: investments; 
client reporting; finance; responsible investment; and 
governance. The LGPSC Partner Fund Investment 
Working Group meets monthly with LGPSC to 
explore new investment opportunities and to discuss 
and monitor performance / the strategy agreed by 
LGPSC shareholders. 

1

P
age 137



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 35 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Being an 
LGPSC partner 
fund

Investment 
underperforma
nce, ineffective 
management 
of pooled 
funds and 
increased 
expenditure

25 4 100 The Fund has requested to see the LGPSC company 
risk register. This request is still ongoing. Whilst 
partner funds have discussed staff turnover at 
LGPSC, there is not sufficient appetite to include a 
specific item relating to it on the PAF risk register. 
The Fund will therefore seek to address these 
concerns at the next 1-1 partner fund meeting with 
LGPSC. The Fund has continually expressed its 
dislike of the multi-manager model operated by 
LGPSC in emerging markets (EM) and challenged 
performance. LGPSC has almost concluded its 3-
year review of its EM fund and has invited the Fund 
to an Investor Open Day to discuss performance, 
manager selection and investment geographies. The 
Fund is now investigating options concerning its 
allocation to the EM fund and liaising with other 
partner funds.

25 3 75

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 12 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Mismatch in 
asset returns 
and liability 
movements.

Exposure to 
risk 
or missing 
investment
opportunities 
or 
increases in 
employer 
contributions.

25 3 75

The Fund maintains a well diversified portfolio. Our 
Investment Strategy Statement 2023 was approved 
by the Pensions Committee on 22 March 2023. 
Whole Fund and individual employer funding 
positions / contribution rates, actuarial valuation 
assumptions and mortality / morbidity experience 
were reviewed as part of the as at 31 03 2022 
actuarial valuation and its report was approved by the 
Pensions Committee on 22 March 2023. Ideas are 
always encouraged by Officers who also carry out 
peer group discussions. 

25 2 50

2

P
age 138



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 34 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Inflation Higher 
employer pay 
settlements 
leading to 
increases in 
liabilities. 
Lower real 
investment 
returns 
requiring 
increases in 
employer conts 
and leading to 
weaker 
employer 
covenants. 
Increased 
pension 
payments 
putting 
pressure on 
liquidity

25 2 50

The Fund successfully operates a diversified 
investment portfolio, both in terms of asset class and 
also geographical allocation. That diversity provides a 
degree of inbuilt insulation to inflationary 
environments. Another key mitigation comes from the 
Fund's investment strategy. We are primarily 
focussed on a longer-term view when evaluating 
investments, therefore we believe that the Fund's 
investments are well positioned to ride out shorter 
term inflationary periods. We monitor our funding 
position quarterly and our cashflow monthly. We are 
primarily an investor in equities that via dividends 
have historically maintained real rates of return. We 
also invest in assets whose returns move with 
inflation e.g. infrastructure, real estate, and index-
linked Government bonds. As part of the actuarial 
valuation as at 31 March 2022 we have amended our 
inflation assumptions. We intend to develop the 
investment pots further to provide greater inflation 
protection.

25 2 50

3

P
age 139



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 23 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Employers 
cannot pay their 
contributions or 
take on an 
inappropriate 
level of risk or 
their 
contributions 
take them too 
close to limits of 
their available 
expenditure.

Increase in 
liabilities.

20 3 60

We consulted employers on some changes to our 
Funding Strategy Statement that were approved by 
the Pensions Committee on 22 March 2023. Risk 
profile analysis is performed to understand the 
strength of an employer's covenant when setting the 
terms of admission agreements (that may require 
bonds). In setting the term of deficit recovery periods 
and employer at actuarial valuations, we aim to keep 
employer contributions as stable and affordable as 
possible. We monitor membership profiles and 
changes, ensure that employers are reminded of 
their responsibilities where this is appropriate and 
work with at risk employers. We analyse selected 
employers' financial metrics using Mercer's Pfaroe 
tool. We have employer grouped investment 
strategies.

20 2 40

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 33 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Climate Change Investment 
under-
performance

20 3 60

We task LGPSC with producing an annual climate 
risk report which we used to target managers which 
have a high carbon footprint to see what measure 
they are taking to reduce their carbon output. We ran 
another ESG / responsible investment workshop on 8 
February 2023 for Board, Committee, and Investment 
Sub-Committee members.  We have invested in 
LGPSC’s All World Climate Multi Factor Fund.  We 
produce Climate Related Financial Disclosures. We 
ask our investment managers to present their TCFD 
report and to deliver carbon risk metrics on their 
portfolios.

20 2 40

4

P
age 140



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 36 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

WCC 
procurement 
policies 
hindering the 
Fund's ability to 
secure key 
investment 
services 
efficiently

Further 
pressure on 
already 
stretched 
resources and 
the possibility 
of failure to 
secure key 
investment 
services in a 
timely manner 
having an 
impact on cost

15 3 45 As the Norfolk Framework provides for the most 
timely and cost efficient way possible of procuring 
investment services and in order to maintain a 
degree of agility when conducting its commercial 
affairs, the Fund is seeking to have greater control 
over its procurement by utilising the Norfolk 
Framework as far as possible. 

15 2

30

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 11 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Failure to pool 
assets using 
LGPS Central 
Limited. 

Lack of 
compliance 
with legislation 
/ government 
guidance.

25 3 75

Formal asset-transition procedures are in place. We 
are monitoring developments following the Budget on 
15 March 2023. We will take legal advice before not 
pooling our assets and monitor the willingness of the 
pool to invest in the sort of assets that could have a 
positive impact on future funding levels. The first 
transfers of our assets (in emerging markets and 
corporate bonds) were undertaken in July 2019 / Feb 
2020. We have also transitioned assets to LGPSC’s 
All World Climate Multi Factor Fund and Sustainable 
Equities Active Fund.

15 2 30

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 08 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Failure to 
appoint suitable 
investment 
managers / 
advisers and 
review their 
performance / 
markets / 
contracts.

Investment 
underperforma
nce / 
regulatory 
non-
compliance / 
paying too 
much in fees.

25 3 75

We have re-procured our independent investment 
adviser. We place managers on watch as 
appropriate. We review our investment managers' 
internal control reports and report any significant 
exceptions to the Chief Financial Officer. Objectives 
for our independent investment adviser are reviewed 
and reported to Committee every 6 months.

25 1 25

5

P
age 141



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 13 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Liquidity / cash 
flow is not 
managed 
correctly.

Assets may 
need 
to be sold at 
unplanned 
times or 
investment 
opportunities 
may be 
missed.

15 2 30

Cash flow is monitored on a monthly basis. We have 
under 15% of total net assets exposure to illiquid 
assets. All contributing employers are provided with 
deadlines for payments and clear guidelines for 
providing associated information. We monitor 
contributions payable and paid on a monthly basis 
and also reconcile to E5 (our accounting system) on 
a monthly basis.

15 1 15

INVESTMENT / 
FUNDING

WPF 14 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer)

Failure to 
exercise proper 
stewardship of 
our assets.

Potential 
erosion of 
investment 
returns or 
reputational 
damage.

15 2 30

Having achieved signatory status to the UK 
Stewardship Code 2020 in 2021, we have retained 
our status in 2022 and 2023. We have reviewed the 
responses from the Nov 2022 online pensioners (and 
the August 2023 for employee members) 
questionnaires about our stewardship. We participate 
in LAPFF and other groups. We ran an ESG / 
responsible investment workshop on 8 February for 
Board, Committee, and Investment Sub-Committee 
members. We are planning a further RI & ESG 
focussed workshop for those members on 31 
January 2024. 

15 1 15

ADMINISTRATION In this risk area we have restructured and increased 
our headcount to 39 to provide resilience in our ability 
to deliver business as usual / our KPIs; to be able to 
respond to the increasing number of issues facing 
LGPS funds; and to move forward the things that we 
have not been able to but would have liked to. For 
example, we have established project streams on 
McCloud and Member Self Service.

6

P
age 142



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 24 (Head 
of Pensions 
Administration)

Employers 
having 
insufficient 
skilled resources 
to supply our 
data 
requirements.

Missing, 
incomplete 
and incorrect 
records 
on pensions 
administration
system that 
undermines 
service 
delivery 
and causes 
difficulties in 
establishing 
correct 
benefits 
at individual 
level / 
liabilities at 
employer and 
whole of Fund 
level. 
Potential 
issues with 
The Pensions 
Regulator.

20 3 60

Regular quarterly meetings between WCC HR Lead, 
Head of Pensions Admin and Liberata Service 
Delivery Lead are in place to ensure that open 
communication takes place with issues that arise and 
to monitor improvements. Following our annual 
employer consultation and internal review, our 
updated Pension Administration Strategy was 
approved by Committee. We support employers with 
monthly newsletters / an area on our website that has 
a range of material / employer fora. Checking 
individual records at points of significant transaction 
is undertaken. 

20 2 40

7

P
age 143



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 07 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer and 
Head of 
Pensions 
Administration)

Future change 
to LGPS 
regulations or 
other legislation, 
for example 
from 
government 
legislation on 
minimum normal 
pension age or 
on exit 
payments.

Increasing 
administrative 
complexity or 
failure to 
comply with 
The 
Pensions 
Regulator.

25 3 75

We have added resource to pensions administration 
and are implementing the McCloud remedy. We 
advise members about things that will affect their 
benefits through annual newsletters. We have a list 
of projects that we include in our quarterly rolling 
Business Plans reported to Board / Committee. 
Officers participate in various scheme and industry 
groups and fora. We are aware that as part of its 
Levelling Up agenda, the Government issued a white 
paper on education in England which confirms plans 
to permit councils to establish their own Multi 
Academy Trusts (MATs) and to require all local 
authority schools to convert to academy status by 
2030. We are aware that GMP equalisation will affect 
historic non-club transfers out.  

20 2 40

ADMINISTRATION WPF 06 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer and 
Head of 
Pensions 
Administration)

Fair Deal 
consultation 
proposals being 
implemented.

Increasing 
administrative 
complexity.

15 3 45

We have added resource to pensions administration. 
When the regulations come out we will develop 
measures to mitigate this risk. Meantime risk profile 
analysis is performed to understand the strength of 
an employer's covenant when setting the terms of 
admission agreements (that may require bonds), and 
we ensure that employers are made aware of 
consequences of their decisions and that they are 
financially responsible.

15 2 30

8

P
age 144



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 20 (Chief 
Financial 
Officer and 
Head of 
Pensions 
Administration)

Having 
insufficient 
resources in 
pensions 
administration.

Insufficient 
staff 
resource or 
remaining staff 
not 
having the 
skills to do 
their areas of 
work.

25 2 50

We have rolled out the WCC 121 preparation and 
meeting record as part of the Finance Workforce 
Strategy and have developed a skills matrix to give 
us a high level understanding of where there are 
areas in which we need to focus on to ensure that we 
have the right resilience in place across the service. 
We are using it to take a look at where work currently 
sits and whether it can be redistributed to other 
areas, for example re employer admissions. We 
have completed a phased transition for staff who 
secured new roles in the service to ensure business 
continuity.  Although we have recruited to the 
Membership Manager, Communications & Training 
Lead and Systems & Projects Lead positions, we 
have found our recruitment activities are constrained 
by the LGPS market where demand for staff is high 
and where other LGPS funds are advertising 100% 
WFH positions that do not require the jobholder to go 
to the LGPS fund, something that may even cause us 
to lose staff. Absences are managed in line with 
Worcestershire County Council's attendance policy. 
Exit interviews / questionnaires are used to explore 
the reason for anyone leaving. 

25 1 25

9

P
age 145



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 28 (Head 
of Pensions 
Administration)

Cyber attack 
leading to loss 
of personal data 
or ransom or our 
hardware being 
disabled or from 
financial loss 
from our 
banking / 
custody 
arrangements 
being 
compromised. 

Data 
Protection 
breach  / fraud.

25 2 50

Our pensions administration system is Cloud based. 
Our staff undertake WCC mandatory training. WCC 
has measures that are updated constantly to stop 
malicious emails; to remove malicious links in emails; 
to prevent outbound emails being sent to 
unacceptable recipients; to prevent access to fake 
websites; to encrypt our emails; to keep our laptops 
clean; and to catch ransom demands. We review our 
administration system supplier's annual Cyber 
Security reviews, probing about what they have been 
doing to keep the cloud / our data / our login 
arrangements / sending (bulk / individual) emails 
from Altair safe; what new threats they have popped 
mitigations in place for; what recent changes or 
patches have been made to their disaster recovery 
arrangements; evidencing (perhaps via internal or 
external audits) the things that they have done 
recently to keep up to date; and the ongoing 
vulnerability scanning they have in place alerting 
them to new vulnerabilities. We have obtained 
business continuity assurance and assurances about 
connectivity to our pensions administration system 
given we do not use multi-factor authentication, and 
contract service is reviewed annually, with regular 
meetings / robust system maintenance routines / 
internal and external systems support / back-up 
procedures in place. We have produced a Cyber 
Security Top Tips document and a Cyber Security 
Data Transmission Grid detailing who we send data 
to or receive data from and how that data is protected 
when transmitted / received.

25 1 25

10

P
age 146



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 19 (Head 
of Pensions 
Administration)

Failure to have 
an appropriate 
pensions admin 
system.

Inability to 
pay pensions / 
reputational or 
financial loss / 
staff downtime 
/
loss of service 
delivery / 
data loss. 25 3 75

We have re-procured our existing pensions 
administration system, Altair, and are testing a 
member portal to Altair / developing a bulk email 
facility. As the National LGPS Framework for pension 
admin systems confirms Heywood are an approved 
supplier, we have independent validation of our 
supplier. We attend our supplier's user groups.

25 1 25

ADMINISTRATION WPF 30 (Head 
of Pensions 
Administration)

Failure to 
maintain the 
quality of our 
member data

Paying 
incorrect or no 
benefits / 
problems with 
the Pensions 
Regulator / 
reputational or 
financial loss.

25 2 50

We have produced our first formal Data Improvement 
Plan. Our annual review of data against TPR 
categories has been conducted. We have received 
the results of our 2022 NFI data matching and have 
completed the exercise  only having 2 matches 
overall. We are working with a company called 
Target Professional Services (UK) to find members 
who we have lost touch with and using the LGPS 
framework for mortality screening. We undertake 
regular data quality reviews.  

15 1 15

11

P
age 147



WPF Risk Register 
Nov 2023 Risk Area 
(risk owned by)

Risk number 
(risk owned by)

Description of 
Risk

Leading to Gross 
Impac

t

Gross 
Prob-
ability

Gross 
Risk  

Score

Mitigating Actions Resi-
dual 

Impac
t

Resi-
dual 
Prob-
ability

Resi-
dual 
Risk 

Score

ADMINISTRATION WPF 29
(Head of 
Pensions 
Administration)

Failure to deliver 
member 
communications 
in line with 
regulatory 
requirements, 
for example the 
31 August 
annual benefit 
statement 
deadline.

Financial loss 
or 
loss of 
reputation / 
employer 
confidence or 
need for 
corrective 
action 
at short notice.

5 1 5

After consulting our employers, our 2023 Policy 
Statement on Communications was approved by 
Committee on 22 March 2023. We issued the 2023 
deferred annual benefit statements / newsletters and 
the 2023 employee annual benefit statements / 
newsletters by 31 August. We have also issued a 
pensioner newsletter that covers off our legislative 
obligations for McCloud to that audience and have 
plans in place to make employee / deferred members 
aware of what we are doing re McCloud.

5 1 5

WPF 29
(HR Service
Centre Manager)

Failure to deliver 
member 
communications 
in line with 
regulatory 
requirements, 
for example the 
31 August 
annual benefit 
statement 
deadline.

Financial loss 
or 
loss of 
reputation / 
employer 
confidence or 
need for 
corrective 
action 
at short notice.

5 1 5

The Fund has a Policy Statement on 
Communications. Employee annual benefit 
statements that are returned to the Fund are passed 
on to the member's employer. The 2019 deferred and 
employee annual benefit statements were 
despatched before 31 Aug.

5 1 5

12

P
age 148



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
TRAINING UPDATE 
 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Worcestershire Pension Fund 

Training Update including the training and conferences calendar attached as 
an Appendix be noted. 

 
Background 

 
2. The Committee reviewed the Fund’s Training Policy & Programme at its meeting 

on 22 March 2023. 
 

3. The training delivered to members since the last Training Update has included: 
 

• A Pensions Taxation webinar hosted by AON on 19 October for high earners 
and those who exceeded their annual allowance in 2022 / 2023  

• Understanding Your Annual Benefit Statement webinars for WCC staff on 06 
September, 12 September, and 04 October 

• An Ask your pension provider webinar for HCC staff on 13 September  
• An LGPS Pensions Q&A webinar for WCC Staff on 27 September 

 
4. On 1 Nov Bromsgrove and Redditch Council’s payroll team were provided with a 
training session on ‘employer responsibilities in the LGPS’. 
 
5. Comparing our August 2023 skills matrix for the Benefits and Membership teams to 
now, reveals where we have boosted scores for our staff; moving staff internally to gain 
new skills has added to their matrix score; and the extra skilled resource that we have 
delivered. Headcount has risen from 31 to 32, and, where a score of 100 is fully 
competent on a process / a score of 75 needs limited assistance /  a score of 50 needs 
ongoing support / a score of 25 needs substantial ongoing support, the total score for the 
37 processes that we measure has risen from 22,625 to 23,865. 
 
6. Our Training Officer has continued to provide training and support to pensions 
administration staff on new member starter processes, LGPS calculations and transfers 
(internal and external). 
 
7. Two further members of staff have started studying for a CIPP qualification. 
 
8. Following the March 2023 review of the Fund’s Risk Register, progress in 
developing mitigating actions for four risks will henceforth be reported in our Training 
Updates, so that members can assess whether further mitigating actions are appropriate: 
 

a) WPF 02 Insufficient knowledge amongst members of Pensions Committee / 
Pension Board / Pension Investment Sub Committee members. 

Page 149

AGENDA ITEM 10

https://www.worcestershirepensionfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/wpf_training_policy_and_programme.pdf
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=5870&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=5870&Ver=4


 

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 

b) WPF 03 Failure of officers to maintain a sufficient level of knowledge / 
competence or to act in accordance with our roles and responsibilities matrix. 

c) WPF 21 Failure of business continuity planning. 
d) WPF 27 Incorrect calculation of benefits through human error or delayed 

notification of a death.  
 

9 Progress in mitigating the four risks since the last quarterly Board / Committee cycle 
has included Officers participating in various scheme / industry groups / fora to keep up to 
date on pensions issues. These have included attending Hymans Robertson webinars 
about cash flow risk and longevity risk. Officers have also been continuing to review 
specialist publications. PB / PC members were made aware of the LGPS governance 
conference on 18-19 January 2024. Training on equity protection was also provided at 
the Pension Investment Sub Committee meeting on 30 November. 

 
Supporting information 
 
• Appendix - Training and Conferences Calendar 
 
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
 
Chris Frohlich, Governance & Engagement Manager  
Tel: 01905 844004 
Email: cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury Management & Banking 
Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Rich Sultana 
Head of Pensions Administration 
Tel: 01905 643805 
Email: rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper Officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer), there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 150

mailto:cfrohlich@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:SLoutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rsultana@worcestershire.gov.uk


183297183297

Month Scheme Members Employers Fund Staff Board & Committee Conferences

January • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with WCC staff • What being an LGPS Employer entails
• Employer Role, 30 Jan, online (LGA)

• Pensions Administration 
Service meeting

• ESG workshop, 31 Jan • Governance conference 18-19 Jan 2024 (LGA)

February • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with HCC staff • Preparing for Year End • Topical training session,
subjects on page 3

• Strategic Investment Forum 1 Feb, London (DG publishing LAPF)
• Investment Conference 27-29 Feb, Edinburgh (PLSA)

March • Pensions Basics, Q&A session open to all 
employer staff • Funding, Investments and Finance • Training session, 

subjects on page 2

• Impact & Responsible Investment Summit 14 Mar, London (DG publishing LAPF)
• Investment Seminar March, 14-15 Mar, Cheshire (LGC)
• Trusteeship – part 1: the theory, 14 Mar, London (PLSA)

April • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with WCC staff • FRS - Financial aspects of being an LGPS employer
• Employer Role, 16 & 22 Apr, online (LGA)

• Pensions Administration 
Service meeting

• Trusteeship – part 2: the practice, 16 Apr, London (PLSA)
• LGPS Pooling Symposium 23-24 April, nr Birmingham (DG publishing LAPF)

May • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with HCC staff
• Member Portal demo 

• Monthly returns drop in session
• Employer Role, 2 & 14 May, online (LGA)

• Topical training session,
subjects on page 3

• Training session, 
subjects on page 2

June • Pensions Basics, Q&A session open to all 
employer staff • Retirement process overview • Trusteeship – part 1: the theory, 4 Jun, London (PLSA)

• Local Authority Conference 11-13 Jun, Gloucestershire (PLSA)

July • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with WCC staff • Leavers forms, calculating final pay and APP • Pensions Administration 
Service meeting

• Training session, 
subjects on page 2

• Strategic Investment Forum 1 -3 Jul, Watford (DG publishing LAPF)
• Trusteeship – part 2: the practice, 2 Jul, London (PLSA)

August • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with HCC staff
• Member Portal demo 

• IDRP Process 
• Employer Role, 13 Aug, London (LGA)
• Employer Role, 29 Aug, online (LGA)

• Topical training session,
subjects on page 3

September
• Pensions Basics, Q&A session open to all 

employer staff
• Understanding your ABS

• What being an LGPS Employer entails • Training session, 
subjects on page 2

• Investment & Pensions Summit, date TBC, Birmingham (LGC)
• Trusteeship – part 1: the theory, 12 Sept, London (PLSA)

October • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with WCC staff
• Pensions Taxation Webinar 

• Ill Health Retirements
• Employer Role, 1 Oct online (LGA)

• Pensions Administration 
Service meeting

• Fundamentals - Day 1, October, York/London/online (LGA)
• The Local Authority Responsible Investment 10 October, London (DG publishing LAPF)
• Annual Conference 15-17 Oct, Liverpool (PLSA)

November • Pensions Basics, Q&A session with HCC staff • Monthly returns drop in sessionEmployer Role, 7 
& 26 Nov, online (LGA)

• Topical training session,
subjects on page 3

• Training session, 
subjects on page 2

• Fundamentals - Day 2, October, York/London/online (LGA)
• Trusteeship – part 2: the practice, 5 Nov, London (PLSA)
• Trusteeship – part 3: the expert, 20 Nov, London (PLSA)
• LGPS Pension Managers’ Conference, Date TBC, Torquay
• ESG Conference 28 Nov, London (PLSA)

December
• Pensions Basics, Q&A session open to all 

employer staff
• Member Portal demo 

• Outsourcing of Contracts 
• Fundamentals - Day 3, October, York/London/online (LGA)
• LAPFF Annual Conference, 6-8 Dec

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 C
al

en
da

r

P
age 151

https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp?pageID=658501&eventID=1890&CSPCHD=001001000000Y931x77S3wjpVci$P9EeNTE0RzfH$FzhM9fkJn
https://www.dgpublishing.com/lapf-strategic-investment-forum-february/
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/2024-conference-dates
https://www.dgpublishing.com/responsible-and-impact-investment-summit/
https://investmentseminar.lgcplus.com/investment2023/en/page/home
https://investmentseminar.lgcplus.com/investment2023/en/page/home
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-1-The-Theory
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-2-The-Practice
https://www.dgpublishing.com/lgps-pooling-symposium/
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-1-The-Theory
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/2024-conference-dates
https://www.dgpublishing.com/lapf-strategic-investment-forum-february/
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-2-The-Practice
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://www.lgcplus.com/
https://www.lgcplus.com/
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-1-The-Theory
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://www.dgpublishing.com/laris/
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/2024-conference-dates
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training/Trusteeship-Part-2-The-Practice
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Trustee-Training-Trusteeship-Part-3-The-Expert
https://swcouncils.gov.uk/events/pension-managers-conference/
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/2024-conference-dates
https://lgpslibrary.org/assets/bulletins/2023/243Training%20programme%202024.pdf
https://lapfforum.org/engagements/lapff-annual-conference-2023/


List of Training Possibles 
for Board and 
Committee Members 

Annual accounts and annual report

Fixed interest investment 

Funding and investment strategy / risk

Investing in alternative assets such as infrastructure and property 

Investing in equities 

Investing in private debt 

Investing in private equity 

LGPS Central Limited 

LGPS employers 

Pension administration processes and key performance indicators (KPIs)

• Annual benefit statements
• Paying pensions
• Processing retirements
• Year end 

Responsible investment / stewardship / climate change

The Fund’s non-investment governance and associated documents i.e. Risk Register

• Business Plan
• Governance Policy Statement 
• Policy Statement on Discretions
• Pension Administration Strategy
• SAB Good Governance Project Positioning Statement 

What the LGPS provides members with

P
age 152



Topical Training for 
Fund staff 

• Member portal demo
• Insights reports
• Altair “hacks”

Administration system features

Funding, investments and finance

Legislation changes

• Aggregations
• Deferred benefits
• Employer returns
• Estimates
• Retirements
• Refunds
• Starters
• Transfers

Process overviews:

P
age 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Pensions Committee – 13 December 2023 
 

 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
13 DECEMBER 2023 
 
FORWARD PLAN  
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Committee comment and 

approve the Forward Plan.  
 

2. The forward plan was presented to the last Committee meeting to highlight the key 
areas that are anticipated to be reported in the future. The Forward Plan was approved 
and was to be reviewed at each Committee meeting. This is attached as an Appendix 
and Committee are asked to comment and approve the plan. 
 
 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendix – Forward Plan  
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Sherief Loutfy 
Head of Pension Investments, Treasury & Banking 
Tel: 01905 843103 
Email: sloutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report:  
 

Page 155

AGENDA ITEM 11

mailto:sloutfy@worcestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Committee Proposed Forward Plan Appendix 
 

Pensions Committee items 31/1/2024 20/3/2024 25/6/2024 10/10/2024 
LGPSC Update Y Y Y Y 
LGPSC budget and business plan Y    
ESG workshop, Climate Risk Report, TCFD Report  Y    
Annual report / accounts   Y  
Stewardship Code   Y  
Business Plan (to include the latest on administration and 
investment areas and CMA investment advisor objectives monitoring) 

 
 

 
Y 

 
Y 

 
Y 

Annual Investment Strategy Statement / Climate Change Risk 
Strategy / Climate Risk Report / Climate-related Financial Disclosures 
reviews 

  
 

Y 

  

Training Update   Y Y Y 
Investment Update  Y Y Y 
Budget  Y   
Internal Audit report (Inv & Admin)     
Risk Register  Y Y Y 
Governance Update  Y Y Y 
Pension Board / regulatory updates including Scheme Advisory Board 
updates e.g., pooling & responsible investment consultations 

  
Y 

 
 

 
Y 

 

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 159

AGENDA ITEM 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 169

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 267

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 281

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 283

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 287

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 301

AGENDA ITEM 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 307

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 369

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 391

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Pension Board and Pension Sub-Committee Minutes
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	PENSION BOARD AND PENSION INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
	Recommendation
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Simon Lewis, Committee Officer
	Tel: 01905 846621
	Email: slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk
	Background Papers


	6 Pension Fund Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2023
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
	Recommendation
	Background
	Contact Points
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers

	PC 2023 12 13 - Pension Fund Annual Report 2022-23 - Appendix

	7 Business Plan
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	Recommendation
	Background / Management Summary
	Contact Points

	PC 2023 12 13 - Business Plan - App BP
	V5 Business Plan November 2023
	V2 Business Plan November 2023 Projects Appendix
	Sheet1



	8 Governance Update
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	Recommendation
	Contact Points

	PC 2023 12 13 - Governance Update - App - Breaches of the Law Policy
	Management summary
	Background
	What constitutes a breach of law?
	Who is responsible for reporting breaches of law?
	How are records of breaches of law maintained?
	When a breach of law may be considered reportable / material
	Reporting a breach of law to TPR
	Whistleblowing


	9 Risk Register
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	Recommendation
	Background and update
	Contact Points

	PC 2023 12 13 - Risk Register - App Risk Register
	V1 Risk Register front November 2023
	V2 1 November 2023 Risk Register spreadsheet
	Risk Register



	10 Training update
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	Recommendation
	Contact Points

	PC 2023 12 13 - Training Update - App - Training and Conferences calendar
	Training and Conferences Calendar
	List of Training Possibles for Board and Committee Members 
	Topical Training for Fund staff 


	11 Forward Plan
	PENSIONS COMMITTEE
	13 DECEMBER 2023
	FORWARD PLAN
	Recommendation
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers

	PC 2023 12 13 - Forward Plan (Appendix)

	13 Pension Investment Update
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App1 IA Report
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App2 Hymans Pertformance Report 30 September 2023
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App3 LGPSC Q3 Report
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App4 EP Update
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App5 Investment Pipeline Update
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App6 PEL Benchmark Discussion
	PC 2023 12 13 - Pen Invest Report - App7 LAPFF_Q3 Rpt

	14 LGPS Central Update
	PC 2023 12 13 - LGPSC Update - App1 Corporate Bond Fund 3 Year Review
	PC 2023 12 13 - LGPSC Update - App2 2024 - 2027 Proposed Stewardship Strategy
	PC 2023 12 13 - LGPSC Update - App3 Net-Zero Strategy Report




